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o - THE SAFESTYEAR IN NUCOR'S HISTORY

At Nucor, safety is more than a commitment—it's our #1 value.

By leveraging every available resource, fostering innovation, and strategic
partnerships, we continue to strengthen our safety culture. In 2024, over
32,000 teammates set a new safety record, demonstrating their dedication to
Grow the Core, Expand Beyond, and Live Our Culture. Their efforts are driving
Nucor towards our goal of becoming the World's Safest Steel Company.
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FinanCiaI High"g htS (Dollar and share amounts in millions, except per share data)
2024 2023 % CHANGE
FOR THE YEAR
Net sales $30,734 $34,714 -MN%
Earnings:
Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests 2902 6,273 -54%
Provision for income taxes 583 1,360 -57%
Net earnings before noncontrolling interests 2,319 4,913 -53%
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests 292 388 -25%
Net earnings attributable to Nucor stockholders 2,027 4,525 -55%
Per share:
Basic 8.47 18.05 -53%
Diluted 8.46 18.00 -53%
Dividends declared per share 217 2.07 5%
Percentage of net earnings to net sales 6.6% 13.0%
Return on average stockholders' equity 9.8% 23.0%
Capital expenditures 3,288 2,215 48%
Depreciation 1,094 931 18%
Acquisitions (net of cash acquired) 758 71 968%
Sales per average employee (in thousands) 953 1107 -14%
AT YEAR END
Working capital $7498 $11,791 -36%
Property, plant and equipment, net 13,243 11,050 20%
Long-term debt and finance lease obligations (including current maturities) 6,725 6,723 -
Total Nucor stockholders' equity 20,294 20,940 -3%
Per share 8717 85.51 2%
Shares outstanding 233 245 -5%
Employees 32,700 31,600 3%

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS: Certain statements made in this annual report, or in other public filings, press releases, or other written
or oral communications made by Nucor, which are not historical facts are forward-looking statements subject to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties which we expect will or may occur in the future and may impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations. The words "anticipate,” "believe,” "expect,” "intend,” "project,” “may,” "will,” "should,” "could” and similar expressions are intended to identify
those forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company'’s best judgment based on current information, and, although we base these statements
on circumstances that we believe to be reasonable when made, there can be no assurance that future events will not affect the accuracy of such forward-looking information.

As such, the forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance, and actual results may vary materially from the projected results and expectations discussed
in this report. Factors that might cause the Company's actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: (1)
competitive pressure on sales and pricing, including pressure from imports and substitute materials; (2) U.S. and foreign trade policies affecting steel imports or exports; (3) the
sensitivity of the results of our operations to general market conditions, and in particular, prevailing market steel prices and changes in the supply and cost of raw materials,
including pig iron, iron ore and scrap steel; (4) the availability and cost of electricity and natural gas which could negatively affect our cost of steel production or result in a delay
or cancellation of existing or future drilling within our natural gas drilling programs; (5) critical equipment failures and business interruptions; (6) market demand for steel products,
which, in the case of many of our products, is driven by the level of nonresidential construction activity in the United States; (7) impairment in the recorded value of inventory,
equity investments, fixed assets, goodwill or other long-lived assets; (8) uncertainties and volatility surrounding the global economy, including excess world capacity for steel
production, inflation and interest rate changes; (9) fluctuations in currency conversion rates; (10) significant changes in laws or government regulations affecting environmental
compliance, including legislation and regulations that result in greater regulation of greenhouse gas emissions that could increase our energy costs, capital expenditures and
operating costs or cause one or more of our permits to be revoked or make it more difficult to obtain permit modifications; (11) the cyclical nature of the steel industry; (12) capital
investments and their impact on our performance; (13) our safety performance; (14) our ability to integrate businesses we acquire; (15) the impact of any pandemic or public health
situation; and (16) the risks discussed in "lItem 1A. Risk Factors” of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 and elsewhere therein and in
the other reports on file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Dear Stockholders,

The domestic steel industry encountered several headwinds in 2024, including economic and political
uncertainty, elevated interest rates and higher levels of imports. Despite these challenges, our more
than 32,000 Nucor teammates continued to put Nucor in a position for long-term success as they
executed our growth strategy. Our strategic investments have enhanced our ability to meet evolving
customer demands while also creating stockholder value.

This past year marked another milestone in our journey to become the World's Safest Steel Company,
with our team achieving the safest year in Nucor history. We had the lowest number of reportable
injuries in our history, and 26 Nucor divisions had zero recordable injuries in 2024, which is also

a new record. This outstanding safety performance is a testament to our teammates’ unwavering
commitment to caring for each other.

To our entire team: thank you for your steadfast dedication to safety excellence and for your daily
contributions that expand our capabilities and elevate our customer service. Your efforts drive our success.

Financial Highlights

In 2024, Nucor had revenue of $30.7 billion and earnings of $2.0 billion, or $8.46 per diluted share. While our revenue
and earnings were down compared to the historic highs we achieved over the previous three years, our 2024 earnings
are still well above our historical average.

Challenging market conditions also led to a decline in our shipments and average sales price. Total tons shipped to
outside customers in 2024 were approximately 24.8 million tons, a decrease of 2% from 2023, while the average sales
price perton decreased 10% from the prior year. Operating rates at our steel mills averaged 76% for the full year.

We continue to generate strong cash flow from operations, which totaled $4.0 billion, and we ended the year with cash
of $41 billion. Our capital spending totaled $3.2 billion, and we deployed approximately $760 million on acquisitions.

The Board of Directors continued its practice of increasing Nucor's regular quarterly cash dividend, raising it from
$0.54 to $0.55 per share. The company has increased its regular, or base, dividend for 52 consecutive years - every
year since we first began paying dividends in 1973. In November, we made our 206th consecutive dividend payment.

We returned approximately $2.7 billion to stockholders through share repurchases and dividend payments,
representing approximately 135% of 2024 net earnings. Our strong financial position is a competitive advantage,
enabling future growth, value creation and stockholder returns.



Midway Through a Decade
of Tremendous Growth

Five years ago, | began my tenure as Nucor's CEO and worked
with our Executive Leadership team to develop our mission
statement to Grow the Core, Expand Beyond and Live Our Culture.
This started us on a decade-long path to grow Nucor and our
capabilities to create value for our customers, stockholders and
teammates. Today, we are about two-thirds of the way through
this journey in terms of capital deployment. We are investing in
new technology in our raw materials segment, increasing our
product mix of higher margin, value-added products in our steel
mills segment, and investing in automation to improve safety
and develop new products and solutions for our customers in our
steel products segment.

A significant portion of our $3.2 billion in capital spending in
2024 went to our investments in building greenfield steel mills
and projects to expand our steelmaking capabilities at several of
our existing mills. Our largest project is the new state-of-the-art
sheet steel mill we are building in West Virginia. We are nearly 40
percent of the way through the construction phase and on track
to commission the mill in 2026. When fully operational, we will
be able to make some of the cleanest and most advanced sheet
steels in North America, targeting the automotive, construction
and industrial markets.

In 2025, we expect to start up two steel mill projects: our new rebar
micro mill in Lexington, North Carolina, and our new melt shop at
our existing bar mill in Kingman, Arizona. Both projects will enable
us to better serve the nonresidential construction

Lt}bn J. Topalian
Chair, President and Chief Executive Officer

and infrastructure markets in two of the fastest-growing parts

of the country. We will also continue to ramp up production at
our new innovative plate mill in Kentucky, where our team made
excellent progress this year in reaching production milestones
and producing plate sizes and grades that are only available from
this facility.

Turning to our Expand Beyond initiatives, we made two key
acquisitions in 2024. We acquired Southwest Data Products
(SWDP), a manufacturer and installer of data center infrastructure.
Data centers are one of the fastest-growing markets and acquiring
SWDP gives us expanded capabilities to meet the demand being
driven by the rise of artificial intelligence and cloud computing.
By combining the capabilities of SWDP, Nucor Warehouse Systems,
and Nucor Buildings Group, we can now provide our customers
with nearly all the steel products that go into a data center from
the building to the interior infrastructure.

We also acquired Rytec Corporation, which produces high-
performance doors for warehouses, auto dealerships, advanced
manufacturing facilities and cold storage at two manufacturing
facilities in Wisconsin. Rytec has a strong reputation for quality
products and superior customer service. We have combined the
product lines of our two premium brands - Rytec and C.H.| - into
a new Nucor Door Technologies product group, which allows us
to go into the market with a comprehensive product portfolio of
residential and commercial overhead doors targeting a larger
customer base.
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Another of our Expand Beyond growth platforms - Nucor
Towers & Structures - is building two new highly automated
utility structures production facilities in Decatur, Alabama,
and Crawfordsville, Indiana, both of which are expected

to start operations in 2025. We recently announced plans

to build a third utility structures production facility on our
existing campus of businesses in Brigham City, Utah. These
new facilities, when combined with an existing facility in
Pennsylvania, will give us a national footprint to help build out
electric transmission and telecommunications infrastructure.

Each of the investments we are making addresses specific
customer needs and will serve as a catalyst for earnings
growth, While projects like these can take time to reach their
full earnings potential, we believe they will create long-term
value for our stockholders.

Partnering to Accelerate Development of
New Energy Technologies

Access to reliable and affordable energy is vital for our
operations. Electricity demand is expected to grow substantially
inthe U.S. over the next decade as advances in artificial
intelligence fuel demand for data centers and we grow our
industrial base through the reshoring of manufacturing. To help
meet these needs, we announced a partnership with Google and
Microsoft to address barriers to market access that new, novel
clean energy technologies often encounter. The goal of this
partnership is to develop new business models to help accelerate
the development of first-of-a-kind and early commercial projects,
including advanced nuclear, next-generation geothermal, clean
hydrogen, long-duration energy storage and others. Through

this partnership, we reached an agreement with Duke Energy to
develop new rate structures, known as Accelerating Clean Energy
(ACE) tariffs, that will allow large industrial and commercial
customers to directly finance clean energy generation and
long-duration energy storage through individualized portfolios.
Innovative tools like this are necessary to accelerate the
development of abundant and reliable clean energy sources.

During the year, we continued to take steps to advance our
sustainability goals. We established Net-Zero science-based
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity targets, which are
defined by the Global Steel Climate Council's (GSCC) Steel Climate
Standard. Recently, the GSCC certified our GHG intensity targets
as we look to build on our leadership role in decarbonizing the
global steel industry. The U.S. steel industry is truly a global
leader in decarbanizing the industrial sector, and Nucor is
demonstrating that we will continue to be a clean, technology-
driven business in the decades ahead.

Better Serving Our Customers

We are always looking for better ways to serve our customers,
which is why we decided to introduce weekly pricing updates
for our hot-rolled coil sheet products. Our consumer spot
price, or CSP, provides customers with reliable, real time

pricing information for hot-rolled coil. Having real time pricing
coupled with shorter lead times will help our customers
reduce the risks inherent in price speculation. Introduced

last spring, customer feedback has been positive throughout
the year. Our goal is to help our customers make informed
decisions for their businesses.

Excited About the Opportunities Ahead

As we look ahead into 2025, we believe that demand for steel and
fabricated steel construction products will increase from 2024
levels. The ISM Manufacturing Index registered above 50 for the
first time in several months as the year got underway, signaling
moderately improved conditions. We also expect continued strong
demand from several segments of the nonresidential construction
sector in 2025, including semiconductor factories, advanced
manufacturing facilities, data centers and institutional buildings.

We look forward to working with members of the Trump
Administration as they advance the President’s fair trade and pro-
growth economic agenda. Unfairly traded imports by those who
intentionally circumvent our trade laws have been a challenge
for our industry for far too long. We believe strengthening and
aggressively enforcing our trade laws is required to ensure a level
playing field for a healthy American steel industry.

As | finish my fifth year as Nucor's CEO, | am incredibly proud of
what our team has accomplished through a tremendous period

of growth. We appreciate the valuable capital that you, our
stockholders, entrust to us. Our team is committed to executing our
growth strategy to create long-term value for your investment in us
generate superior returns on that capital.

| also want to extend my gratitude to our customers, vendors and
neighbors across North America who are integral to our success. We
value the relationships that we have with you.

Congratulations again to my Nucor teammates for continuing to
elevate our safety performance and for taking care of one another. |
am proud of all we have achieved together in 2024 and look forward
to an even better 2025. | am excited by the opportunities we have
before us. Nucor's greatest days are still ahead of us.

Sincerely,

Lo

Leon J. Topalian
Chair, President & Chief Executive Officer
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Fellow Stockholders,

The American steel industry faced several challenges this year that resulted
in weaker market conditions relative to the historic highs of the past few
years. The Nucor team responded to these challenges by remaining focused
on safety and executing the company's growth strategy. The men and
women of Nucor delivered the safest year in company history, advanced
major capital investment projects and returned significant capital to our
stockholders. Thank you to the more than 32,000 Nucor teammates for the
results you achieved in 2024.

When Leon Topalian assumed the role of Chief Executive Officer five years ago,
he charted a course for ambitious growth summed up in the company’s mission
statement: Grow the Core, Expand Beyond and Live Our Culture.

Since launching this strategy in 2020, the company has returned more than

$12 billion in capital to our investors, representing approximately 57% of net
earnings, while also reinvesting approximately $10 billion in capital expenditures
and making $6 billion in acquisitions. Many of these projects and acquisitions
are already contributing positively to Nucor’s profitability. We expect their full
earnings potential to be unlocked over the course of the next few years, creating
even more value for you, our stockholders.

Prudent fiscal management and consistently returning capital to shareholders
have been hallmarks of Nucor throughout its history. At the end of the year, the
Board of Directors increased Nucor's regular quarterly cash dividend, raising it from
$0.54 to $0.55 per share. The company has increased its regular, or base, dividend
for 52 consecutive years - every year since we first began paying dividends in

1973. In November, we made our 206th consecutive dividend payment. Few other
companies can match this kind of commitment to stockholders.

On behalf of the board, | thank you for your continued investment in Nucor
and extend our appreciation to Nucor's more than 32,000 teammates for your
dedication to working safely, staying focused and for delivering results, even in

the face of an uncertain market throughout 2024.

Sincerely,

4

Christopher J. Kearney
Lead Director
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In the steel mills segment, Nucor produces sheet steel (hot-rolled, cold-rolled and galvanized), plate
steel, structural steel (wide-flange beams, beam blanks, H-piling and sheet piling) and bar steel
(blooms, billets, concrete reinforcing bar, merchant bar and engineered special bar quality (“SBQ")).
Nucor manufactures steel principally from scrap steel and scrap steel substitutes using electric

arc furnaces (“"EAFs") along with continuous casting and automated rolling mills. The steel mills
segment also includes Nucor’s equity method investment in NuMit LLC (“"NuMit") (see “Steel Joint
Venture"- below), as well as international trading and distribution companies that buy and sell steel
manufactured by the company and other steel producers.

The steel mills segment sells its products primarily to steel service centers, fabricators and manufacturers located
throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. The steel mills segment sold approximately 18,480,000 tons

to outside customers in 2024. In 2024, 80% of the shipments made by our steel mills segment were to external
customers. The remaining 20% of the steel mills segment'’s shipments went to our steel products segment.

Bar Mills

Nucor has 15 bar mills located across the United States
that manufacture a broad range of products, including
concrete reinforcing bars, hot-rolled bars, rounds,

light shapes, structural angles, channels, wire rod and
highway products in carbon and alloy steels. Four of the
bar mills have a significant focus on manufacturing SBQ
and wire rod products.

Steel produced by our bar mills has a wide usage
serving end markets, including the agricultural,
automotive, construction, energy, infrastructure,
machinery, metal building, railroad, recreational
equipment, shipbuilding, heavy truck and trailer
market segments. Considering Nucor’s production
capabilities and the mix of bar products generally
produced and marketed, the capacity of the bar mills
is estimated at approximately 9,560,000 tons per year.

Reinforcing and merchant bar steel are sold in standard
sizes and grades, which allows us to maintain inventory
levels of these products to meet our customers' expected
orders. Our SBQ products are hot-rolled to exacting
specifications primarily servicing the automotive, energy,
agricultural, heavy equipment and transportation sectors.

In April 2022, Nucor announced that it will build a
new rebar micro mill, with spooling capabilities,
in Lexington, North Carolina. The new micro mill is
currently under construction.

In February 2024, Nucor announced that the Board of
Directors approved $860 million to construct a rebar
micro millin the Pacific Northwest. Nucor is evaluating
potential locations, and the project is expected to take
two years to construct, subject to regulatory approvals.



Sheet Mills

Nucor operates six sheet mills that produce flat-rolled steel for
automotive, appliance, construction, pipe and tube and many
otherindustrial and consumer applications. Included in our six
sheet mills is California Steel Industries, Inc., in which Nucor

has a 51% controlling ownership position. Considering Nucor's
production capabilities and the mix of flat-rolled products
generally produced and marketed, the capacity of the sheet mills
is estimated at approximately 14,600,000 tons per year. All of our
sheet mills are equipped with galvanizing lines and four of them
are equipped with cold rolling mills for further processing of hot-
rolled sheet steel.

Nucor produces hot-rolled, cold-rolled and galvanized sheet
steel to customers' specifications. Contract sales within the
steel mills segment are most notable in our sheet operations,
as it is common for contract sales to account for the majority of
sheet sales in a given year. We estimate that greater than 80%
of our sheet steel sales in 2024 were to contract customers.
These sheet sales contracts are noncancellable agreements that
generally incorporate monthly or quarterly price adjustments
reflecting changes in the current market-based indices and/or
raw material cost, and typically have terms ranging from six to 12
months. The balance of our sheet steel sales were made in the

@ Bar Mills
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spot market at prevailing prices at the time of sale. The number
of tons sold to contract customers at any given time depends on
avariety of factors, including our consideration of current and
future market conditions, our strategy to appropriately balance
spot and contract tons in a manner to meet our customers’
requirements while considering the expected profitability, our
desire to sustain a diversified customer base, and our end-use
customers' perceptions about future market conditions.

Nucor owns a 51% controlling economic and voting interest in
Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. ("NJSM"). NJSM is a joint
venture with JFE Steel Corporation ("JFE") of Japan that operates
a galvanized sheet steel plant in central Mexico with an annual
capacity of approximately 400,000 tons that is expected to
supply the country’s automotive market.

In January 2022, Nucor announced it had selected Mason County,
West Virginia as the site for its new three-million-ton state-of-the-
art sheet mill. When operational, the new mill will be equipped

to produce 84-inch sheet products, and among other features,
will include a 76-inch tandem cold mill and two galvanizing

lines capable of producing advanced high-end automotive and
construction grades.
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Structural Mills

Nucor operates two structural mills that produce wide-flange steel
beams, pilings and heavy structural steel products for fabricators,
construction companies, manufacturers and steel service centers.
Nucor owns a 51% interest in Nucor-Yamato Steel Company (Limited
Partnership) (“Nucor-Yamato") located in Blytheville, Arkansas.
Nucor-Yamato is the only North American producer of high-strength,
low-alloy beams. Common applications for the high-strength,
low-alloy beams include gravity columns for high-rise buildings,
long-span trusses for stadiums and convention centers, and for use
in all projects where seismic design is a critical factor. The benefits
of high-strength, low-alloy beams are increasingly recognized

by Nucor's customers in the construction sector. These include
savings in terms of construction time, weight, space and overall
environmental impact. Nucor sells its high-strength, low-alloy
beams under the trade name AEOS™.

Nucor also owns a steel beam mill in Berkeley County, South
Carolina. Considering Nucor's production capabilities and the mix of
structural products generally produced and marketed, the capacity
of the two structural mills is estimated at approximately 3,250,000
tons peryear.

Structural steel products come in standard sizes and grades, which
allows us to maintain inventory levels of these products to meet our
customers' expected orders.

Plate Mills

Nucor operates three plate mills that produce plate for
manufacturers of barges, bridges, heavy equipment, rail

cars, refinery tanks, ships, wind towers and other items. Our
products are further used in the pipe and tube, pressure vessel,
transportation and construction industries. Considering Nucor's
production capabilities, and the mix of plate products generally
produced and marketed, the capacity of the plate mills is
estimated at approximately 3,600,000 tons per year.

Certain plate steel products come in standard sizes and grades,
which allows us to maintain inventory levels of these products to
meet our customers' expected orders.

Steel Joint Venture

Nucor owns a 50% economic and voting interest in NuMit,

a company that owns 100% of the equity interest in Steel
Technologies LLC (“Steel Technologies"), an operator of 32
strategically located sheet processing facilities in the United
States, Canada and Mexico. Steel Technologies transforms flat-
rolled steel into products that meet exacting specifications for
customers in a wide range of industries, including the automotive,
agricultural and consumer goods markets.
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Inthe steel products segment, Nucor produces steel
joists and joist girders, steel deck, galvanized torque
tubes used in solar arrays, hollow structural section
("HSS") steel tubing, electrical conduit, fabricated
concrete reinforcing steel, cold finished steel, steel
fasteners, steel grating and expanded metal, wire
and wire mesh, metal building systems, insulated
metal panels, steel racking for warehouse systems
and data centers, overhead doors and utility towers
and structures for communications and energy
transmission. The steel products segment also
includes our piling distributor.

Our capabilities in insulated metal panels, steel racking,
overhead doors and towers and structures have all been
acquired over the past several years as part of our Expand
Beyond strategy, which we believe can enhance our profit
margins, return on invested capital and free cash flow
generation and, over time, accelerate our overall growth
while reducing the volatility of our earnings. A value driver
in each of these businesses is to readily leverage our
core competencies as a highly efficient manufacturer of
steel products, as well as our inclusive, safety-focused,
performance-oriented culture.

Our steel products businesses primarily serve the
nonresidential construction and infrastructure markets.
Our door technologies businesses also serve the garage
door repair and replacement market.

Vulcraft/Verco

The Vulcraft/Verco group is the nation’s leading producer of
open-web steel joists, joist girders and steel decking, which are
used primarily for nonresidential building construction. Steel
joists and joist girders are produced and marketed throughout
the United States by seven domestic Vulcraft facilities. The
Vulcraft/Verco group’s steel decking is produced and marketed
throughout the United States by nine domestic plants. Six of
these plants are adjacent to Vulcraft joist facilities. The Vulcraft/
Verco group also has two plants in Canada—one in Eastern
Canada and one in Western Canada—that produce both joist
and deck. The annual joist production capacity is approximately
745,000 tons and the annual deck production capacity is
approximately 560,000 tons.

Sales of steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are
dependent on the nonresidential building construction market.

The majority of steel joists, joist girders and steel decking

are used extensively as part of the roof and floor structural
support systems in warehouses, data centers, manufacturing
buildings, retail stores, shopping centers, schools, hospitals,
and, to a lesser extent, in multi-story buildings and apartments.
We make these products to our customers' specifications and
typically deliver them directly to a construction site according
to a prearranged schedule and sequence. The majority of these
contracts are firm, fixed-price contracts that are, in most cases,
competitively bid against other suppliers.

Our Vulcraft/Verco group also manufactures and fabricates
steel bar grating products at four of its facilities and serves
the new construction and maintenance-related markets.
The annual production capacity for our grating business is
approximately 49,000 tons.
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Tubular Products

The Nucor Tubular Products ("NTP") group has eight tubular facilities
that are located in close proximity to Nucor’s sheet mills. The NTP group
produces HSS steel tubing, mechanical steel tubing, galvanized solar
torque tube, piling, sprinkler pipe, heat-treated tubing and electrical
conduit. HSS steel tubing, mechanical steel tubing and sprinkler pipe are
used in structural and mechanical applications, including nonresidential
construction, infrastructure, agricultural, automotive and construction
equipment end-use markets. Heat-treated tubing and electrical conduit
are primarily used to protect and route electrical wiring in various
nonresidential structures such as hospitals, schools, office buildings,
data centers, hotels, stadiums and shopping malls. Galvanized solar
torque tube is an essential component for ground-mount solar systems.
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Rebar Fabrication

Nucor Rebar Fabrication fabricates, installs and distributes

rebar for a wide variety of construction work classified as
infrastructure (e.g., highways, bridges, reservoirs, utilities and
airports) and various building projects, including manufacturing
facilities, warehouses, data centers, hospitals, schools, stadiums,
commercial office buildings and multi-tenant residential
construction. We sell and install fabricated reinforcing products
primarily on a construction contract bid basis.

Reinforcing products are essential to concrete construction.
They supply tensile strength, as well as additional compressive
strength, and protect concrete from cracking. In many markets,
Nucor Rebar Fabrication sells reinforcing products on an installed
basis (i.e., Nucor Rebar Fabrication fabricates the reinforcing
products for a specific application and performs the installation).
Nucor Rebar Fabrication operates nearly 70 fabrication facilities
across the United States and Canada, with each facility serving

a local market. Total annual rebar fabrication capacity is
approximately 1,736,000 tons.

Piling Products

Skyline Steel LLC and its subsidiaries (“Skyline") are primarily steel
foundation distributors serving the North American market. Skyline
distributes products to service marine construction, bridge and
highway construction, heavy civil construction, flood protection,
underground commercial parking and environmental containment
projects in the infrastructure and construction industries. Skyline
also manufactures a complete line of geostructural foundation
solutions, including threaded bar, micropile, strand anchors and
hollow bar. It also processes and fabricates spiral weld pipe piling,
rolled and welded pipe piling, and cold-formed sheet piling.

Cold Finish

Nucor Cold Finish (“NCF") is the largest and most diversified
producer of cold finished bar products for a wide range of
industrial markets in North America, with assets in Canada,
Mexico and throughout the United States. The total capacity of
the Nucor cold finished bar and wire facilities is approximately
1,065,000 tons per year.

Nucor's cold finished facilities produce cold finished bars for
demanding applications. NCF obtains most of its steel from the
Nucor bar mills, ensuring consistent quality and supply through
all market conditions. These facilities produce cold-drawn,
turned, ground and polished steel bars that are used extensively
for shafting and other precision machined applications. NCF
produces rounds, hexagons, flats and squares in carbon, alloy
and leaded steels. These bars are purchased by the appliance,
automotive, construction equipment, electric motor, farm
machinery and fluid power industries, as well as by service
centers. NCF bars are used in tens of thousands of products.

A few examples include anchor bolts, hydraulic cylinders and
shafting for air conditioner compressors, ceiling fan motors,
garage door openers, electric motors and lawn mowers.

Steel Mesh & Fasteners

Nucor manufactures wire products and industrial fasteners.

Nucor produces mesh at Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc. and
Nucor Wire Products Utah. Nucor also produces mesh in Canada
at Laurel Steel.

Nucor Fastener’s bolt-making facility in Indiana produces
carbon and alloy steel hex head cap screws, hex bolts,
structural bolts, nuts and washers, finished hex nuts and
custom-engineered fasteners. Nucor fasteners are used in a
broad range of markets, including automotive, machine tool,
farm implement, construction and military applications.

Buildings Group

The Nucor Buildings group is the nation’s leading supplier of pre-
engineered metal buildings. Nucor produces metal buildings and
components throughout the United States under the following
brands: Nucor Building Systems, American Buildings Company
and Kirby Building Systems.



The sizes of the buildings that can be produced range from
less than 1,000 square feet to more than 1,000,000 square
feet. Complete metal building packages can be customized
and combined with other materials such as glass, wood,
insulated metal panels and masonry to produce cost-effective,
energy efficient, aesthetically pleasing buildings designed to
the customers’ special requirements. The buildings are sold
primarily through independent builder distribution networks in
order to provide fast-track, customized solutions for building
owners. The primary markets served are commercial, industrial
and institutional buildings, including distribution centers, data
centers, automobile dealerships, retail centers, schools and
manufacturing facilities.

Insulated Metal Panels ("IMP")

We believe the Nucor Insulated Panels group, which includes
industry leading brands CENTRIA and Metl-Span, broadens the
value-added solutions that the Nucor Buildings group can provide
to targeted end markets such as warehousing, distribution and
data centers. We expect these end-use markets to continue to
grow in the coming years. IMPs facilitate cost-effective climate
controlin the built environment and reduce energy usage and
overall operations related greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions for
owners and lessees.

Racking

Nucor Racking group ("NRG") produces and installs standard

and custom designed steel racking systems for warehouse
applications, including rack supported buildings and warehouses
designed to leverage emerging automatic storage and retrieval
(ASRS) technology. In April 2024 we acquired Southwest Data
Products, Inc. to expand and enhance NRG's ability to serve

the rapidly growing data center market with steel racking and

other products. NRG's added capabilities now include airflow
containment structures, cabinet/enclosures, caging and other
products for both new data centers and data center retrofits.
NRG now has five primary manufacturing locations and a team of
dedicated installers.

Door Technologies

In June 2022, Nucor acquired C.H.I. Overhead Doors, LLC ("CHI"),

a leading manufacturer of overhead doors for residential and
commercial markets in the United States and Canada. We believe
that by leveraging Nucor's existing sales channels into the
broader nonresidential construction market we can facilitate
CHI's continuing growth. CHI has two manufacturing locations.

In July 2024, Nucor acquired Rytec Corporation (“Rytec”), a
leading manufacturer and seller of high-speed, high-performance
commercial doors. We believe adding high-performance

doors will create cross selling opportunities with other Nucor
businesses. Rytec has two manufacturing facilities.

Towers & Structures

In August 2022, Nucor acquired Summit Utility Structures LLC and
a related company, Sovereign Steel Manufacturing LLC. These
companies form Nucor Towers & Structures (“NTS"). NTS produces
metal poles and other steel structures for utility infrastructure
and highway signage.

In 2023, Nucor announced it will build new manufacturing
locations to expand NTS adjacent to Nucor’s existing steel mills
in Decatur, Alabama and Crawfordsville, Indiana. Construction on
those locations is in process and we expect them to be complete
in 2025. In 2024, Nucor announced an additional NTS location to
be built in Brigham City, Utah.
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Inthe raw materials segment, Nucor produces direct reduced iron ("DRI") and, through The David J.
Joseph Company and its affiliates (“DJJ"), brokers ferrous and nonferrous metals, pig iron, hot briquetted
iron and DRI; supplies ferro-alloys; and processes ferrous and nonferrous scrap metal. The raw

materials segment also includes our natural gas production operations and our industrial gas business,
Universal Industrial Gases. Nucor's raw materials investments are focused on creating an advantage

for its steelmaking operations, through a global information network and a multi-pronged and flexible
approach to raw materials supply.

Scrap Recycling &
Brokerage Operations

DJJ operates six regional scrap recycling companies
across the United States that together have shredders
capable of processing approximately 5,648,000

tons of ferrous scrap annually. DJJ's scrap recycling
operations use expertise and technology to maximize
metal recovery and minimize waste.

DJJis the leading broker of ferrous scrap in North
America and is a global trader of scrap metal, pig
iron and other metallics. In addition to sourcing steel
scrap for Nucor's mills, DJJ is a global trader of ferro-
alloys and nonferrous metals. DJJ's logistics team
owns and operates one of the largest independent
fleets of railcars in the United States dedicated to the
movement of scrap and steel and also offers railcar
leasing and railcar fleet management services.

Our primary external customers for ferrous scrap are
EAF steel mills and foundries that use ferrous scrap

as a raw material in their manufacturing process.
External customers purchasing nonferrous scrap metal

include aluminum can producers, secondary aluminum
smelters, steel mills and other processors and
consumers of various nonferrous metals. We market
scrap metal products and related services to our
external customers through in-house sales forces. In
2024, approximately 8% of the ferrous and nonferrous
metals and scrap substitute tons we brokered and
processed were sold to external customers. We
consumed the balance in our steel mills.

Direct Reduced Iron Operations

DRI is a substitute material for high-quality grades
of scrap and pig iron. Nucor operates two DRI plants
which supplied approximately 3,500,000 metric
tons of material with world-class metallization
rates and carbon content to our steel mills in 2024.
Nucor's wholly owned subsidiary, Nu-lron Unlimited,
is located in Trinidad and benefits from a low-cost
supply of natural gas and favorable logistics for
inbound iron ore and shipment of DRI to the United
States. Nucor's second DRI plant in Louisiana also
benefits from favorable logistics and proximity to its
steel mill customers.
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Nucor's DRI production and brokering capabilities provide our
steel mills flexibility to quickly adjust their metallic input mix

to changing market conditions, enabling them to maintain
competitiveness in the often-volatile ferrous scrap market. With
the potential for high-quality scrap to become scarcer, coupled
with the risk of third-party supplier disruptions, Nucor’s DRI
facilities provide a greater degree of certainty over metallics
supply to its steel mills.

Natural Gas Production Programs

Nucor owns operating wells and leasehold interests in natural
gas properties in the South Piceance Basin in the Western Slope
of Colorado.

Nucor's access to a long-term, low-cost supply of natural gas is
a component in the execution of Nucor’s raw material strategy.
Natural gas produced by Nucor’s production operations is sold
to third parties to partially offset our exposure to changes in the
price of natural gas consumed by our DRI plant in Louisiana and
our steel mills in the United States.

Process Gases

Universal Industrial Gases ("UIG") provides the capability to build
and operate our own air separation units to serve our steel mills,
providing us with an alternative to long-term service contracts
with outside providers. Where economies of scale and regional
market conditions warrant, we can also sell excess output from
these plants on a merchant basis. As of December 31, 2024,
Nucor had six industrial gas plants operating, and eight others at
various stages of commissioning, construction or planning.
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Steel Capacity
AT DECEMBER 31,2024

Product Thousands of Tons
M Sheet 14,600
M Bar 9,560
Structural 3,250
Plate 2,400
Total 29,810

Steel Products Capacity

AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

Product Thousands of Tons
B Rebar Fabrication 1,736
M Tubular 1,365
M Cold Finish 1,065
Joist 745
Deck 560
Buildings Group 355
M Insulated Metal Panel 97
M Steel Mesh 128
M Grating 49
Fastener 75
Racking Group 175
Door Technologies 138
Towers & Structures 1

Total 6,499

24
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PART |

Item 1. Business.
Overview

Nucor Corporation, a Delaware corporation incorporated in 1958, and its affiliates (“Nucor,” the
“Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) manufacture steel and steel products. The Company also produces and
procures ferrous and non-ferrous materials primarily for use in its steel manufacturing business. Most of
the Company’s operating facilities and customers are located in North America. The Company’s
operations include international trading and sales companies that buy and sell steel and steel products

manufactured by the Company and others.

Nucor is North America’s largest recycler, using scrap steel as the primary raw material in producing
steel and steel products. In 2024, we recycled approximately 18 million gross tons of scrap steel.

Segments, Principal Products Produced, and Markets and Marketing

Nucor reports its results in three segments: steel mills, steel products and raw materials. The steel
mills segment is Nucor’s largest segment, representing 61% of the Company’s sales to external
customers in the year ended December 31, 2024.

We market products from the steel mills and steel products segments mainly through in-house sales
forces. We also utilize our internal distribution and trading companies to market our products abroad. The
markets for these products are largely tied to end-use markets such as nonresidential construction,
durable goods and capital spending that are affected by changes in general economic conditions.

We are a leading domestic provider for most of the products we supply, and, in many cases (e.g.,
structural steel, merchant bar steel, steel joist and deck, pre-engineered metal buildings, steel piling, cold
finish bar steel, steel electrical conduit pipe and insulated metal panels), we are the leading supplier.

In recent years we have embarked on a strategy to advance Nucor’s capabilities and further its
value creation, as summarized in our Mission Statement: Grow the Core, Expand Beyond and Live Our
Culture.

We have examined and prioritized growth opportunities across our core steelmaking, steel products
and raw materials operations, and we have identified and executed on several acquisitions and
investments to expand the products and services we offer beyond our traditional capabilities. We believe
that the Expand Beyond growth opportunities we are pursuing leverage our core competency as a highly
efficient, industrial manufacturer working primarily with steel and steel products, while positioning us to
generate attractive profit margins and returns on our invested capital selling products into growing end-
use markets.

Steel mills segment

In the steel mills segment, Nucor produces sheet steel (hot-rolled, cold-rolled and galvanized), plate
steel, structural steel (wide-flange beams, beam blanks, H-piling and sheet piling) and bar steel (blooms,
billets, concrete reinforcing bar, merchant bar and engineered special bar quality (“SBQ”)). Nucor
manufactures steel principally from scrap steel and scrap steel substitutes using electric arc furnaces
(“EAFs”) along with continuous casting and automated rolling mills. The steel mills segment also includes
Nucor’s equity method investment in NuMit LLC (“NuMit”) (see “Steel joint venture”- below), as well as
international trading and distribution companies that buy and sell steel manufactured by the Company
and other steel producers.

The steel mills segment sells its products primarily to steel service centers, fabricators and
manufacturers located throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. The steel mills segment sold



approximately 18,480,000 tons to outside customers in 2024. In 2024, 80% of the shipments made by our
steel mills segment were to external customers. The remaining 20% of the steel mills segment’s
shipments went to our steel products segment.

Bar mills - Nucor has 15 bar mills located across the United States that manufacture a broad
range of products, including concrete reinforcing bars, hot-rolled bars, rounds, light shapes,
structural angles, channels, wire rod and highway products in carbon and alloy steels. Four of
the bar mills have a significant focus on manufacturing SBQ and wire rod products.

Steel produced by our bar mills has a wide usage serving end markets, including the
agricultural, automotive, construction, energy, infrastructure, machinery, metal building,
railroad, recreational equipment, shipbuilding, heavy truck and trailer market segments.
Considering Nucor’s production capabilities and the mix of bar products generally produced
and marketed, the capacity of the bar mills is estimated at approximately 9,560,000 tons per
year.

Reinforcing and merchant bar steel are sold in standard sizes and grades, which allows us to
maintain inventory levels of these products to meet our customers’ expected orders. Our SBQ
products are hot-rolled to exacting specifications primarily servicing the automotive, energy,
agricultural, heavy equipment and transportation sectors.

In April 2022, Nucor announced that it will build a new rebar micro mill, with spooling
capabilities, in Lexington, North Carolina. The new micro mill is currently under construction.

In February 2024, Nucor announced that the Board of Directors approved $860 million to
construct a rebar micro mill in the Pacific Northwest. Nucor is evaluating potential locations,
and the project is expected to take two years to construct, subject to regulatory approvals.

Sheet mills - Nucor operates six sheet mills that produce flat-rolled steel for automotive,
appliance, construction, pipe and tube and many other industrial and consumer applications.
Included in our six sheet mills is California Steel Industries, Inc., in which Nucor has a 51%
controlling ownership position. Considering Nucor’s production capabilities and the mix of flat-
rolled products generally produced and marketed, the capacity of the sheet mills is estimated
at approximately 14,600,000 tons per year. All of our sheet mills are equipped with galvanizing
lines and four of them are equipped with cold rolling mills for further processing of hot-rolled
sheet steel.

Nucor produces hot-rolled, cold-rolled and galvanized sheet steel to customers’ specifications.
Contract sales within the steel mills segment are most notable in our sheet operations, as it is
common for contract sales to account for the majority of sheet sales in a given year. We
estimate that greater than 80% of our sheet steel sales in 2024 were to contract customers.
These sheet sales contracts are noncancellable agreements that generally incorporate
monthly or quarterly price adjustments reflecting changes in the current market-based indices
and/or raw material cost, and typically have terms ranging from six to 12 months. The balance
of our sheet steel sales were made in the spot market at prevailing prices at the time of sale.
The number of tons sold to contract customers at any given time depends on a variety of
factors, including our consideration of current and future market conditions, our strategy to
appropriately balance spot and contract tons in a manner to meet our customers’ requirements
while considering the expected profitability, our desire to sustain a diversified customer base,
and our end-use customers’ perceptions about future market conditions.

Nucor owns a 51% controlling economic and voting interest in Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico, S. de
R.L. de C.V. ("NJSM"). NJSM is a joint venture with JFE Steel Corporation (“JFE”) of Japan
that operates a galvanized sheet steel plant in central Mexico with an annual capacity of
approximately 400,000 tons, that is expected to supply the country’s automotive market.

In January 2022, Nucor announced it had selected Mason County, West Virginia as the site for
its new three-million-ton state-of-the-art sheet mill. When operational, the new mill will be
equipped to produce 84-inch sheet products, and among other features, will include a 76-inch



tandem cold mill and two galvanizing lines capable of producing advanced high-end
automotive and construction grades.

. Structural mills - Nucor operates two structural mills that produce wide-flange steel beams,
pilings and heavy structural steel products for fabricators, construction companies,
manufacturers and steel service centers. Nucor owns a 51% interest in Nucor-Yamato Steel
Company (Limited Partnership) (“Nucor-Yamato”) located in Blytheville, Arkansas. Nucor-
Yamato is the only North American producer of high-strength, low-alloy beams. Common
applications for the high-strength, low-alloy beams include gravity columns for high-rise
buildings, long-span trusses for stadiums and convention centers, and for use in all projects
where seismic design is a critical factor. The benefits of high-strength, low-alloy beams are
increasingly recognized by Nucor’s customers in the construction sector. These include
savings in terms of construction time, weight, space, and overall environmental impact. Nucor
sells its high-strength, low-alloy beams under the trade name AEOS™,

Nucor also owns a steel beam mill in Berkeley County, South Carolina. Considering Nucor’s
production capabilities and the mix of structural products generally produced and marketed,
the capacity of the two structural mills is estimated at approximately 3,250,000 tons per year.

Structural steel products come in standard sizes and grades, which allows us to maintain
inventory levels of these products to meet our customers’ expected orders.

. Plate mills - Nucor operates three plate mills that produce plate for manufacturers of barges,
bridges, heavy equipment, rail cars, refinery tanks, ships, wind towers and other items. Our
products are further used in the pipe and tube, pressure vessel, transportation and
construction industries. Considering Nucor’s production capabilities and the mix of plate
products generally produced and marketed, the capacity of the plate mills is estimated at
approximately 3,600,000 tons per year.

Certain plate steel products come in standard sizes and grades, which allows us to maintain
inventory levels of these products to meet our customers’ expected orders.

o Steel joint venture - Nucor owns a 50% economic and voting interest in NuMit, a company that
owns 100% of the equity interest in Steel Technologies LLC (“Steel Technologies”), an
operator of 32 strategically located sheet processing facilities in the United States, Canada
and Mexico. Steel Technologies transforms flat-rolled steel into products that meet exacting
specifications for customers in a wide range of industries, including the automotive, agricultural
and consumer goods markets.

Steel products segment

In the steel products segment, Nucor produces steel joists and joist girders, steel deck, galvanized
torque tubes used in solar arrays, hollow structural section (“HSS”) steel tubing, electrical conduit,
fabricated concrete reinforcing steel, cold finished steel, steel fasteners, steel grating and expanded
metal, wire and wire mesh, metal building systems, insulated metal panels, steel racking for warehouse
systems and data centers, overhead doors, and utility towers and structures for communications and
energy transmission. The steel products segment also includes our piling distributor.

Our capabilities in insulated metal panels, steel racking, overhead doors and towers and structures
have all been acquired over the past several years as part of our Expand Beyond strategy, which we
believe can enhance our profit margins, return on invested capital and free cash flow generation and,
over time, accelerate our overall growth while reducing the volatility of our earnings. A value driver in
each of these businesses is to readily leverage our core competencies as a highly efficient manufacturer
of steel products, as well as our inclusive, safety-focused, performance-oriented culture.

Our steel products businesses primarily serve the nonresidential construction and infrastructure
markets. Our door technologies businesses also serve the garage door repair and replacement market.



Vulcraft/Verco — The Vulcraft/\VVerco group is the nation’s leading producer of open-web steel
joists, joist girders and steel decking, which are used primarily for nonresidential building
construction. Steel joists and joist girders are produced and marketed throughout the United
States by seven domestic Vulcraft facilities. The Vulcraft/\VVerco group’s steel decking is
produced and marketed throughout the United States by nine domestic plants. Six of these
plants are adjacent to Vulcraft joist facilities. The Vulcraft/\VVerco group also has two plants in
Canada—one in Eastern Canada and one in Western Canada—that produce both joist and
deck. The annual joist production capacity is approximately 745,000 tons and the annual deck
production capacity is approximately 560,000 tons.

Sales of steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are dependent on the nonresidential
building construction market. The majority of steel joists, joist girders and steel decking are
used extensively as part of the roof and floor structural support systems in warehouses, data
centers, manufacturing buildings, retail stores, shopping centers, schools, hospitals, and, to a
lesser extent, in multi-story buildings and apartments. We make these products to our
customers’ specifications and typically deliver them directly to a construction site according to
a prearranged schedule and sequence. The majority of these contracts are firm, fixed-price
contracts that are, in most cases, competitively bid against other suppliers.

Our Vulcraft/Verco group also manufactures and fabricates steel bar grating products at four of
its facilities and serves the new construction and maintenance-related markets. The annual
production capacity for our grating business is approximately 49,000 tons.

Tubular products — The Nucor Tubular Products (“NTP”) group has eight tubular facilities that
are located in close proximity to Nucor’s sheet mills. The NTP group produces HSS steel
tubing, mechanical steel tubing, galvanized solar torque tube, piling, sprinkler pipe, heat-
treated tubing and electrical conduit. HSS steel tubing, mechanical steel tubing and sprinkler
pipe are used in structural and mechanical applications, including nonresidential construction,
infrastructure, agricultural, automotive and construction equipment end-use markets. Heat-
treated tubing and electrical conduit are primarily used to protect and route electrical wiring in
various nonresidential structures such as hospitals, schools, office buildings, data centers,
hotels, stadiums and shopping malls. Galvanized solar torque tube is an essential component
for ground-mount solar systems.

Rebar fabrication — Nucor Rebar Fabrication fabricates, installs and distributes rebar for a wide
variety of construction work classified as infrastructure (e.g., highways, bridges, reservoirs,
utilities and airports) and various building projects, including manufacturing facilities,
warehouses, data centers, hospitals, schools, stadiums, commercial office buildings and multi-
tenant residential construction. We sell and install fabricated reinforcing products primarily on
a construction contract bid basis.

Reinforcing products are essential to concrete construction. They supply tensile strength, as
well as additional compressive strength, and protect concrete from cracking. In many markets,
Nucor Rebar Fabrication sells reinforcing products on an installed basis (i.e., Nucor Rebar
Fabrication fabricates the reinforcing products for a specific application and performs the
installation). Nucor Rebar Fabrication operates nearly 70 fabrication facilities across the United
States and Canada, with each facility serving a local market. Total annual rebar fabrication
capacity is approximately 1,736,000 tons.

Piling products - Skyline Steel LLC and its subsidiaries (“Skyline”) are primarily steel
foundation distributors serving the North American market. Skyline distributes products to
service marine construction, bridge and highway construction, heavy civil construction, flood
protection, underground commercial parking and environmental containment projects in the
infrastructure and construction industries. Skyline also manufactures a complete line of
geostructural foundation solutions, including threaded bar, micropile, strand anchors and
hollow bar. It also processes and fabricates spiral weld pipe piling, rolled and welded pipe
piling, and cold-formed sheet piling.



Cold finish - Nucor Cold Finish (“NCF”) is the largest and most diversified producer of cold
finished bar products for a wide range of industrial markets in North America, with assets in
Canada, Mexico and throughout the United States. The total capacity of the Nucor cold
finished bar and wire facilities is approximately 1,065,000 tons per year.

Nucor’s cold finished facilities produce cold finished bars for demanding applications. NCF
obtains most of its steel from the Nucor bar mills, ensuring consistent quality and supply
through all market conditions. These facilities produce cold-drawn, turned, ground and
polished steel bars that are used extensively for shafting and other precision machined
applications. NCF produces rounds, hexagons, flats and squares in carbon, alloy and leaded
steels. These bars are purchased by the appliance, automotive, construction equipment,
electric motor, farm machinery and fluid power industries, as well as by service centers. NCF
bars are used in tens of thousands of products. A few examples include anchor bolts,
hydraulic cylinders and shafting for air conditioner compressors, ceiling fan motors, garage
door openers, electric motors and lawn mowers.

Steel mesh and fasteners — Nucor manufactures wire products and industrial fasteners.

Nucor produces mesh at Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc. and Nucor Wire Products Utah. Nucor
also produces mesh in Canada at Laurel Steel.

Nucor Fastener’s bolt-making facility in Indiana produces carbon and alloy steel hex head cap
screws, hex bolts, structural bolts, nuts and washers, finished hex nuts and custom-
engineered fasteners. Nucor fasteners are used in a broad range of markets, including
automotive, machine tool, farm implement, construction and military applications.

Buildings group — The Nucor Buildings group is the nation’s leading supplier of pre-engineered
metal buildings. Nucor produces metal buildings and components throughout the United
States under the following brands: Nucor Building Systems, American Buildings Company and
Kirby Building Systems.

The sizes of the buildings that can be produced range from less than 1,000 square feet to
more than 1,000,000 square feet. Complete metal building packages can be customized and
combined with other materials such as glass, wood, insulated metal panels and masonry to
produce cost-effective, energy efficient, aesthetically pleasing buildings designed to the
customers’ special requirements. The buildings are sold primarily through independent builder
distribution networks in order to provide fast-track, customized solutions for building owners.
The primary markets served are commercial, industrial and institutional buildings, including
distribution centers, data centers, automobile dealerships, retail centers, schools and
manufacturing facilities.

Insulated metal panels (“IMP”) — We believe the Nucor Insulated Panels Group, which includes
industry leading brands, CENTRIA and Metl-Span, broadens the value-added solutions that
the Nucor Buildings group can provide to targeted end markets such as warehousing,
distribution and data centers. We expect these end-use markets to continue to grow in the
coming years. IMPs facilitate cost-effective climate control in the built environment and reduce
energy usage and overall operations related greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions for owners
and lessees.

Racking — Nucor Racking Group (“NRG”) produces and installs standard and custom designed
steel racking systems for warehouse applications, including rack supported buildings and
warehouses designed to leverage emerging automatic storage and retrieval (ASRS)
technology. In April 2024 we acquired Southwest Data Products, Inc. to expand and enhance
NRG's ability to serve the rapidly growing data center market with steel racking and other
products. NRG's added capabilities now include airflow containment structures,
cabinet/enclosures, caging and other products for both new data centers and data center
retrofits. NRG now has five primary manufacturing locations and a team of dedicated
installers.



Door Technologies — In June 2022, Nucor acquired C.H.l. Overhead Doors, LLC (“CHI"), a
leading manufacturer of overhead doors for residential and commercial markets in the United
States and Canada. We believe that by leveraging Nucor’s existing sales channels into the
broader nonresidential construction market we can facilitate CHI's continuing growth. CHI has
two manufacturing locations.

In July 2024, Nucor acquired Rytec Corporation ("Rytec"), a leading manufacturer and seller of
high-speed, high-performance commercial doors. We believe adding high-performance doors
will create cross selling opportunities with other Nucor businesses. Rytec has two
manufacturing facilities

Towers & Structures — In August 2022, Nucor acquired Summit Utility Structures LLC and a
related company, Sovereign Steel Manufacturing LLC. These companies form Nucor Towers
& Structures (“NTS”). NTS produces metal poles and other steel structures for utility
infrastructure and highway signage.

In 2023, Nucor announced it will build new manufacturing locations to expand NTS adjacent to
Nucor's existing steel mills in Decatur, Alabama and Crawfordsville, Indiana. Construction on
those locations is in process and we expect them to be complete in 2025. In 2024, Nucor
announced an additional NTS location to be built in Brigham City, Utah.

Raw materials segment

In the raw materials segment, Nucor produces direct reduced iron ("DRI") and, through The David J.
Joseph Company and its affiliates ("DJJ"), brokers ferrous and nonferrous metals, pig iron, hot briquetted
iron and DRI; supplies ferro-alloys; and processes ferrous and nonferrous scrap metal. The raw materials
segment also includes our natural gas production operations and our industrial gas business, Universal
Industrial Gases. Nucor’s raw materials investments are focused on creating an advantage for its
steelmaking operations, through a global information network and a multi-pronged and flexible approach
to raw materials supply.

Scrap recycling and brokerage operations - DJJ operates six regional scrap recycling
companies across the United States that together have shredders capable of processing
approximately 5,648,000 tons of ferrous scrap annually. DJJ’s scrap recycling operations use
expertise and technology to maximize metal recovery and minimize waste.

DJJ is the leading broker of ferrous scrap in North America and is a global trader of scrap
metal, pig iron and other metallics. In addition to sourcing steel scrap for Nucor’s mills, DJJ is
a global trader of ferro-alloys and nonferrous metals. DJJ’s logistics team owns and operates
one of the largest independent fleets of railcars in the United States dedicated to the
movement of scrap and steel and also offers railcar leasing and railcar fleet management
services.

Our primary external customers for ferrous scrap are EAF steel mills and foundries that use
ferrous scrap as a raw material in their manufacturing process. External customers purchasing
nonferrous scrap metal include aluminum can producers, secondary aluminum smelters, steel
mills, and other processors and consumers of various nonferrous metals. We market scrap
metal products and related services to our external customers through in-house sales forces.
In 2024, approximately 8% of the ferrous and nonferrous metals and scrap substitute tons we
brokered and processed were sold to external customers. We consumed the balance in our
steel mills.

Direct reduced iron operations - DRI is a substitute material for high-quality grades of scrap
and pig iron. Nucor operates two DRI plants which supplied approximately 3,500,000 metric
tons of material with world-class metallization rates and carbon content to our steel mills in
2024. Nucor’s wholly owned subsidiary, Nu-Iron Unlimited, is located in Trinidad and benefits
from a low-cost supply of natural gas and favorable logistics for inbound iron ore and shipment
of DRI to the United States. Nucor’s second DRI plant in Louisiana also benefits from
favorable logistics and proximity to its steel mill customers.



Nucor’s DRI production and brokering capabilities provide our steel mills flexibility to quickly
adjust their metallic input mix to changing market conditions, enabling them to maintain
competitiveness in the often-volatile ferrous scrap market. With the potential for high-quality
scrap to become scarcer, coupled with the risk of third-party supplier disruptions, Nucor’'s DRI
facilities provide a greater degree of certainty over metallics supply to its steel mills.

. Natural gas production programs - Nucor owns operating wells and leasehold interests in
natural gas properties in the South Piceance Basin in the Western Slope of Colorado.

Nucor’s access to a long-term, low-cost supply of natural gas is a component in the execution
of Nucor’s raw material strategy. Natural gas produced by Nucor’s production operations is
sold to third parties to partially offset our exposure to changes in the price of natural gas
consumed by our DRI plant in Louisiana and our steel mills in the United States.

. Process Gases — Universal Industrial Gases ("UIG") provides the capability to build and
operate our own air separation units to serve our steel mills, providing us with an alternative to
long-term service contracts with outside providers. Where economies of scale and regional
market conditions warrant, we can also sell excess output from these plants on a merchant
basis. As of December 31, 2024, Nucor had six industrial gas plants operating, and eight
others at various stages of commissioning, construction, or planning.

Customers and Markets

We have a diverse customer base and are not dependent on any single customer. Our largest
single customer in 2024 represented approximately 5% of sales and consistently pays within terms. Our
steel mills use a significant portion of the products of the raw materials segment while our steel products
segment uses approximately 20% of our steel mills' output.

We believe that nonresidential construction is the largest end-use market that we serve. Products
from our steel mills and steel products segments are used in a variety of nonresidential construction
applications (e.g., commercial, industrial and infrastructure).

In recent years, we have come to see our EAF-based steelmaking method, with its lower GHG
intensity when compared with blast furnace technology that is reliant on mined or extracted virgin iron ore
and coking coal, as a competitive advantage for reasons beyond its flexible, highly variable cost base.
Customers are expressing greater concern for the GHG emissions in their supply chains and are
prioritizing sourcing their steel requirements from EAF steelmakers for incorporation into their projects
and products.

We have developed branded product lines to leverage this, and other advantages conferred by our
specialized capabilities:

) Our AEOS™ line of high-strength, low-alloy steel beams is one such example. AEOS™'’s
benefits are increasingly recognized by Nucor’s customers in the construction sector. These
include savings in terms of construction time, weight, space and overall environmental impact.

. Our ECONIQ™ line of net zero carbon steel is another example. We launched ECONIQ™
during 2021 and continue to find interest from customers in both the automotive and
construction end-use markets. These are the two largest end-use markets for steel in the
United States.

. Our Elcyon™ line of sustainable heavy gauge steel plate product will be made specifically for
wind energy producers. We launched Elcyon™ in January 2023 and plan to manufacture this
product at our new plate mill in Brandenburg, Kentucky.

We have also invested in people and processes to organize more of our commercial activities
around large customers and end-use markets. We have developed dedicated teams tasked with
developing relationships and educating decision makers in these sectors.



General Development of Qur Business in Recent Years

Consistent with our strategy to Grow the Core, Expand Beyond and Live our Culture, Nucor has
invested significant capital in recent years to expand our product portfolio to include more value-added
steel mill products and capabilities, improve our cost structure, enhance our operational flexibility and
increase our exposure to markets with attractive growth prospects, such as data centers and renewable
energy. These investments totaled approximately $11.84 billion over the last three years, with
approximately 63% going to capital expenditures and the remainder going to acquisitions. We believe that
these investments will help us deliver higher returns on invested capital and long-term growth. Further,
we believe shifting our product mix to a greater proportion of value-added products will make our overall
business less volatile.

In our steel mills segment, Nucor has initiated several new capital projects and an acquisition of a
majority ownership position of a steel mill over recent years to support our expansion of value-added
product offerings and cost-reduction strategies.

. In July 2022, Nucor completed construction of its approximately $650 million investment to
modernize and expand the production capability at its Gallatin flat-rolled sheet mill located in
Ghent, Kentucky. The project increased the production capability of the mill from
approximately 1,600,000 tons to approximately 2,800,000 tons annually. This enables the
Gallatin mill to cast new, thicker slabs and wider coils, expanding our product capabilities so
that we can serve new markets, such as APl (American Petroleum Institute) grade pipelines
and new opportunities in the heavy equipment sector.

. Nucor has completed construction of its approximately $1.70 billion state-of-the-art plate mill in
Brandenburg, Kentucky on the Ohio River. The new plate mill rolled its first plate in December
2022 and began shipping tons to customers in the first quarter of 2023. We expect the mill to
be capable of producing approximately 1,200,000 tons per year of steel plate products. With
the capability to manufacture nearly all the different types of plate products consumed in the
United States, we believe this mill will position Nucor as the supplier of choice in the domestic
plate market.

. In January 2022, Nucor announced that its new state-of-the-art sheet mill will be located in
Mason County, West Virginia. Construction of the new sheet mill began in the third quarter of
2023 and the mill is expected to be completed by the end of 2026. In February 2025, Nucor’'s
Board of Directors approved the allocation of additional capital to the project as the estimate of
total construction costs increased to approximately $4 billion. Factors contributing to the
increased cost estimate include higher labor, material and equipment costs. The State of West
Virginia has committed $350 million for the project. Nucor expects its net cash outlay for the
West Virginia sheet mill will be approximately $3.65 billion.

Nucor Steel West Virginia is expected to have an annual production capacity of approximately
3,000,000 tons. The new mill will be equipped to produce 84-inch sheet products, and among
other features, will include a 76-inch tandem cold mill and two galvanizing lines. Galvanizing
capabilities will include an advanced automotive line with full inspection capabilities as well as
a construction-grade line. In addition to its advanced capabilities and strategic location, the
new greenfield mill's product mix is anticipated to have a significantly lower GHG intensity than
blast furnace based competitors who have historically supplied the region.

o In February 2022, Nucor completed its acquisition of a majority ownership position in California
Steel Industries, Inc. (“CSI”) by purchasing a 50% equity ownership interest from a subsidiary
of Vale S.A. for a cash purchase price of $400 million, adjusted for net debt and working
capital at closing, as well as a 1% equity ownership stake from JFE. CSl is a flat-rolled steel
converter based in Fontana, California.

Our acquisition of CSI expanded the reach of Nucor’s sheet mill group to the west coast of the
United States and increased our exposure to more value-added sheet steel. CSl’s product



capabilities include hot-rolled, pickled and oiled, cold-rolled and galvanized sheet steels. Its
annual capacity is approximately 2,000,000 tons.

. In April 2022, Nucor announced that it will build its new rebar micro mill, with spooling
capabilities, in Lexington, North Carolina. This will be Nucor's third rebar micro mill, joining its
existing micro mills in Missouri and Florida. We expect this $440 million investment to have an
annual capacity of approximately 430,000 tons and we expect it to be in operation in 2025.

These mills are referred to as micro mills because they have a smaller operational footprint
than our traditional rebar mills, as well as less productive capacity — typically about 400,000
tons per year. This makes them suitable for regional markets and enables us to serve these
markets with a logistics cost advantage relative to competitors operating from further away.
Micro mills also have a lower environmental footprint due to their smaller size and the fact that
their plant design does not include a natural gas fired reheat furnace that is common in many
steel mills.

Nucor has made strategic acquisitions in the steel products segment over the last three years.
These were largely to further the Expand Beyond component of our strategy.

. In April 2022, Nucor expanded its steel racking capabilities by acquiring Elite Storage
Solutions for $75 million.

In April 2024, Nucor acquired Southwest Data Products, Inc. ("SWDP"), a manufacturer and
installer of data center infrastructure for $115 million. SWDP provides Nucor with expanded
capabilities in airflow containment structures, as well as new product capabilities that include
manufacturing cabinets/enclosures and caging for data centers and installation services.

These acquisitions combined with Nucor’s initial steel racking business, Hannibal, form the
NRG group.

. In June 2022, Nucor completed the largest acquisition in its history with the purchase of CHI
for approximately $3 billion. CHI is a leading manufacturer of overhead doors for residential
and commercial markets in the United States and Canada. Commercial overhead doors are
used in warehousing and retail, areas that Nucor has focused its attention on recently through
other value-added products such as insulated metal panels and steel racking solutions.

CHI has approximately 800 teammates across two manufacturing plants in Arthur, lllinois, and
Terre Haute, Indiana, and regional warehouses located in California, Colorado, New
Hampshire and New Jersey. With a highly diversified national customer network of
professional garage door dealers, CHI is able to maintain minimal inventory levels and realize
industry-leading fulfillment times, while providing direct delivery to customers.

. In July 2024, Nucor acquired Rytec Corporation, a manufacturer and seller of high-speed,
high-performance commercial doors, for $565 million. We believe the combination of Rytec
and CHI will create an overhead door platform designed to deliver superior product breadth
and solutions to Nucor's commercial customers.

Capital Allocation Strateqy

Our highest capital allocation priority is to invest in our business for profitable long-term growth
through our multi-pronged strategy of optimizing existing operations, greenfield expansions and
acquisitions.

Our second priority is to return capital to our stockholders through cash dividends and share
repurchases. Nucor has paid $1.57 billion in dividends to its stockholders during the past three years.
That dividend payout represents 7% of cash flows from operations during that three-year period.



The Company repurchased $2.22 billion of its common stock in 2024 ($1.55 billion in 2023 and
$2.76 billion in 2022).

We intend to return at least 40% of our net income to stockholders over time via a combination of
both cash dividends and share repurchases. Over the past three years, we have returned approximately
57% of our net income in this manner. At December 31, 2024, the Company had approximately $1.11
billion available for share repurchases under the currently authorized share repurchase program.

We intend to execute on our capital allocation strategy while maintaining a strong balance sheet,
with relatively low financial leverage, as measured in terms of funded debt to total capital, as well as
ample liquidity. At year-end 2024, our debt to total capital was approximately 25% and we had cash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents on hand of $4.14
billion. At the end of 2024, Nucor had the strongest credit ratings in the North American steel sector (A-/A-
/Baa1) with stable outlooks at Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Ratings and a positive outlook at Moody’s.

Competition

We compete in a variety of steel and metal markets, including markets for finished steel products,
unfinished steel products and raw materials. These markets are highly competitive with many domestic
and foreign firms participating, and, as a result of this highly competitive environment, we find that we
primarily compete on price and service.

In our steel mills segment, our EAF steel mills face many different forms of competition, including
domestic integrated steel producers (who use iron ore converted into liquid form in a blast furnace as their
basic raw material instead of scrap steel), other domestic EAF steel mills, steel imports and alternative
materials. Large domestic integrated steel producers have the ability to manufacture a variety of products
but are often burdened with higher capital and fixed operating costs. EAF-based steel producers, such as
Nucor, are sensitive to increases in scrap prices but tend to have lower capital and fixed operating costs
compared with large integrated steel producers. EAF-based steel producers also typically emit fewer
GHGs per ton of steel produced than integrated steel producers.

Fluctuations in the supply of steel from non U.S. competitors are a source of significant volatility in
our primary markets. Finished steel imports supplied approximately 23% of U.S. demand in 2024, an
increase of 3.7% from 2023. Increases in the volume of steel and fabricated steel products tend to occur
during periods of relatively stronger U.S. economic conditions, or a stronger U.S. dollar, resulting in U.S.
domestic pricing that is attractive to our foreign competitors.

Many of these non-U.S. based competitors operate in non-market economies and are often state
subsidized or state owned, such that employment stability or other concerns take priority over the need to
generate returns on their capital. They can receive support in the form of direct subsidies, low-cost
energy, labor, raw material and capital. They also often face less stringent environmental and safety
regulations and can benefit from an artificially low exchange rate relative to the U.S. dollar.

Many Chinese steel producers receive these kinds of support and China continues to be the largest
steel producing country. In 2024, despite a continuing downturn in its property market and a government-
mandated freeze on steel output in order to lower carbon emissions, China still produced more than one
billion tons of steel, accounting for approximately 53% of all steel produced globally. China exported 122
million net tons in 2024, which was their highest level of exports since 2015, dampening steel prices in
markets around the world.

Trade remedies implemented by the U.S. International Trade Commission, (“the USITC”) such as
antidumping duties ("AD") and countervailing duties ("CVD") and similar measures play a key role in
allowing the American steel industry to compete on a level playing field against unfairly traded imports.
There are currently 128 AD/CVD orders in place on core steel product lines made by Nucor, and sunset
reviews are typically held with respect to specific exporters and products every five years.
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During 2024, sunset review hearings by the U.S. International Trade Commission (the "USITC")
kept in place AD orders on rebar imports from several countries, as well as circular welded pipe imports
from China. Also during 2024, U.S. steel producers also initiated a new trade case seeking AD/CVD
orders against imports of corrosion-resistant flat-rolled steel products ("CORE") from 10 different
countries. The U.S. Department of Commerce and the USITC are expected to issue their final
determinations later in 2025.

Circumvention of trade duties also continues to pose a threat. Besides producing over a billion tons
of steel in its own country, China continues to invest heavily in steel production in other countries to avoid
being subject to trade duties on exports to the U.S. market. Most of the investment being done by
Chinese state-owned companies outside of the country’s borders is occurring in other Southeast Asia
countries and Africa.

The Section 232 steel tariffs enacted in 2018 have also been effective in keeping unfairly traded
imports out of the U.S. market. However, over time their impact has waned, due to the granting of country
exemptions, product exclusions and quota arrangements. On February 10, 2025, President Trump issued
an executive order reimposing Section 232 25% tariffs on steel imports from all sources, ending country
and product exemptions, and broadening the application of the tariffs on fabricated steel products. This
order is scheduled to go into effect on March 12, 2025.

Tariffs and quota arrangements impacting steel and steel products may be enacted, enforced,
extended, modified or terminated in the future. No assurance can be given as to the timing or extent of
any of these changes.

We also experience competition from other materials. Depending on our customers’ end use of our
products, there are often other materials, such as concrete, aluminum, plastics, composites and wood
that compete with our steel products. When the price of steel relative to other raw materials rises, these
alternatives can become more attractive to our customers.

In our steel products segment we manufacture a wide range of products that primarily have
construction applications. In each of our product lines, we face competition from well capitalized domestic
and international providers offering similar products and services. We compete on price, service (e.g.,
consulting on engineering requirements, facilitating logistics, and timeliness of order fulfillment) and
quality (e.g., reliably producing to exacting custom specifications). We believe we have established a
reputation as a market leader who can consistently meet customer needs for these products in a timely
manner due to our nationwide footprint of modern production facilities and entrepreneurial, performance
driven culture.

Competition in our scrap and raw materials business is also vigorous. The scrap metals market
consists of many firms and is highly fragmented. Firms typically compete on price and geographic
proximity to the sources of scrap metal.

Backlog

In the steel mills segment, Nucor’s backlog of orders was approximately $2.13 billion and $2.71
billion at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Order backlog for the steel mills segment includes
only orders from external customers and excludes orders from other Nucor businesses. Nucor’s backlog
of orders in the steel products segment was approximately $4.02 billion and $4.97 billion at December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively. The majority of these orders are expected to be filled within one year. Order
backlog within our raw materials segment is not meaningful because the vast majority of the raw materials
that segment produces are used internally.
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Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

An ample supply of high-quality scrap and scrap substitutes is critical to support Nucor’s ability to
produce high-quality steel. The goal of Nucor’s raw materials segment is to safely produce, source, trade
and transport steelmaking raw materials. Nucor’s raw materials investments are focused on creating an
advantage for our steelmaking operations, through a global information network and flexible approach to
metallics supply.

Scrap and scrap substitutes are the most significant element in the total cost of steel production.
The average cost of scrap and scrap substitutes used in our steel mills segment decreased approximately
6% from $421 per gross ton used in 2023 to $394 per gross ton used in 2024. On average, it takes
approximately 1.1 tons of scrap and scrap substitutes to produce one ton of steel. We employ variable
steel pricing mechanisms so that we are better able to maintain operating margins and meet our
customer commitments as scrap and scrap substitute costs fluctuate.

Nucor remains focused on securing reliable access to low-cost raw material inputs as they are the
Company’s largest expense. We believe Nucor’s broad, balanced supply chain is an important strength
which allows us to reduce the cost of our steelmaking operations, create a shorter supply chain and have
greater control over our metallic inputs. Our investment in DRI production facilities and scrap yards, as
well as our access to international raw materials markets, provides Nucor with significant flexibility in
optimizing our raw material mix. Additionally, having a significant portion of our raw materials supply
under our control minimizes risk associated with the global sourcing of raw materials, particularly since a
good deal of scrap substitutes comes from regions of the world that have historically experienced greater
political turmoil, such as Ukraine, Russia and Brazil. We believe the continued successful implementation
of our raw material strategy, including key investments in DRI production, as well as in the scrap
brokerage and processing services performed by our team at DJJ, gives us greater control over our
metallic inputs and thus helps us navigate significant fluctuations in the availability and costs of critical
inputs.

DJJ acquires ferrous scrap from numerous sources, including manufacturers of products made from
steel, industrial plants, scrap dealers, peddlers, auto wreckers and demolition firms. In recent years, we
have developed closed loop recycling programs with some of our larger customers, through which we are
able to reliably source more high purity prime scrap while reducing the waste inherent in our customers’
operations.

We purchase pig iron as needed primarily from overseas sources. We received over 1,500,000
gross tons of pig iron in 2024. Our DRI plants in Trinidad and Louisiana supplied approximately 3,350,000
metric tons of DRI to our steel mills in 2024. The primary raw material for our DRI facilities is pelletized
iron ore, which we purchase from various international suppliers.

The primary raw material for our steel products segment is steel produced by Nucor’s steel mills.

Energy Consumption and Costs

Steel manufacturing is an energy-intensive, trade exposed industry. As a result, we continuously
strive to make our operations in all three of our business segments more energy efficient. In addition, we
proactively engage with suppliers, regulators and other energy industry participants to ensure the
continued domestic availability of reliable, low-cost sources of energy in various forms.

Our steelmaking operations utilize EAFs for 100% of their production. The total energy consumed
by Nucor includes electricity, natural gas, oxygen and carbon raw material inputs. For the scrap melting
process, electricity is the primary energy source, with natural gas combustion serving as the fuel for
reheat furnaces and other pre-heating operations. Our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana are also
large consumers of natural gas.
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The availability and prices of electricity and natural gas are influenced by many factors, including
changes in supply and demand, the regulatory environment, technological innovation, and
pipeline/transmission infrastructure.

We closely monitor developments in public policy relating to energy production and consumption.
We engage with policymakers to provide technical information that can inform policy decisions and avoid
unintended adverse consequences of legislative and regulatory actions. We believe that a thoughtful
approach to domestic energy policy can help ensure that steel and steel products manufactured in the
United States remain competitive in the global marketplace.

Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions

While steel is widely understood to be essential in any modern economy, and is increasingly seen
as a critical material for addressing challenges associated with climate change, the sector also has
received increased attention for its GHG emissions and their potential contribution to climate change.

As the leading U.S. supplier of numerous essential steel products using primarily recycled ferrous
scrap metal, we believe we are in a competitively advantageous position. Our circular production process
has one third the GHG emissions intensity of the average traditional extractive steelmaking process using
a blast furnace.

We are committed to further reducing our GHG footprint over time. In November 2023, we
announced net-zero, science-based greenhouse gas (GHG) targets for 2050 and established a new
interim emissions reduction target for 2030. These new GHG intensity targets are defined by the Global
Steel Climate Council’'s ("GSCC") “Steel Climate Standard”, an ambitious standard that is aligned with
both the Paris Climate Agreement’s emission reduction goals for the steel sector by 2050, and the
International Energy Agency’s “Net Zero by 2050: A Roadmap for the Global Energy System” glidepath.

Nucor’s net-zero 2050 and interim 2030 targets include scopes 1, 2, and 3 emissions from the
production of hot rolled steel as defined by the GSCC, making Nucor the first diversified steelmaker in the
U.S. to set GHG reduction targets encompassing all three scopes. In December 2024, the GSCC
independently certified both science-based targets set in accordance with the GSCC’s Steel Climate
Standard.

We plan to achieve our goals by increasing the use of clean electricity, deploying carbon capture
and sequestration where practical and developing near zero GHG ironmaking technologies, as well as
through the development and deployment of technologies enabling us to reduce our consumption of
injection and charge carbon and natural gas.

Clean Electricity Initiatives

GHG emissions associated with our consumption of electrical power constitute approximately 32%
of our current footprint.

We have invested in two companies developing next generation nuclear power technology, and we
are exploring ways in which we can work with these companies and with our electric utility partners to
accelerate deployment of these technologies on the regional power grids serving our operations, as they
mature and become scalable.

Currently, we are a party to two Power Purchase Agreements (“PPAs”). Under these PPAs, we
have agreed to purchase for a fixed price output from one solar and one wind project in the United States.
The PPAs are structured for monthly financial settlement. We have undertaken these initiatives to support
the ongoing transition of the U.S. power grid to a greater reliance on renewable power. As part of these
arrangements, we will also receive Renewable Energy Credits (“RECs”) commensurate with the
renewable power we purchase. These RECs can be applied against a portion of our GHG emissions,
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enabling us to receive credit for reducing them. The pay-fixed, receive-floating nature of this arrangement
also offsets a portion of our exposure to higher prices for electricity over the life of the contract. We
continue to evaluate and consider similar additional transactions, as well as opportunities to deploy
renewable power generation and storage assets on site at our facilities.

Carbon Capture and Sequestration (CCS) Activity

In 2023, we signed an agreement with ExxonMobil Corporation ("ExxonMobil") to capture, transport,
and inject carbon from our DRI plant in Convent, Louisiana. ExxonMobil will capture between 600,000
and 800,000 metric tons per year of CO, from our DRI plant and store the CO, at an ExxonMobil-owned
deep underground geological formation in Texas. We expect start-up in 2026. ExxonMobil will receive
the related tax credits and pay us a fee for each ton of CO, we supply.

Near Zero Ironmaking

We have invested in Electra, a company that is working to develop and scale a process to produce
carbon-free iron that can be used to make steel. Electra’s technology relies on intermittent, clean energy
to refine low-grade iron ores through electrochemical and hydrometallurgical processes. Electra’s process
operates at 60°C and removes critical impurities from low-grade ores to produce high purity iron that can
be charged directly into EAF steelmaking. Electra’s technology is unproven at scale at this stage.

We have entered into a partnership with Tata Steel to explore the possibility of scaling and
commercializing Hlsarna, a technology that enables the production of high-purity iron from low grade iron
ore fines without using coke ovens. Coke ovens consume bituminous coal at high temperature to make
coke, an essential ingredient for producing iron in a blast furnace. Both coke ovens and blast furnaces
are GHG emissions intensive. While the Hisarna process produces GHG emissions, its CO, rich waste
gas stream can be efficiently captured and sequestered. Hisarna also produces a slag co-product that
has high value for use in the cement industry.

Government Regulations

Our business operations are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations, the
most significant of which are intended to protect our teammates and the environment. Due to the nature
of the steel industry, we are subject to substantial regulations related to safety in the workplace. In
addition to the requirements of the state and local governments of the communities in which we operate,
we must comply with federal health and safety regulations and environmental regulations, the most
significant of which are enforced by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) and the
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"). Safety and environmental stewardship are important values to
Nucor. We expect that capital expenditures we will direct toward our efforts in these areas will total
approximately $344 million in 2025.

Nucor operates a robust and sustainable environmental program that incorporates the concept of
each individual teammate, as well as management, being responsible for environmental performance. All
steel mills that have been owned and operated by Nucor for over five years are ISO 14001 certified.
Achieving ISO 14001 certification requires Nucor’s steel mills to implement an environmental
management system with measurable targets and objectives, such as reducing the use of oil and grease
and minimizing electricity use.

The principal federal environmental laws that regulate our business include the Clean Air Act (the
“CAA”), which regulates air emissions; the Clean Water Act (the “CWA”), which regulates water
withdrawals and discharges; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (the “RCRA”), which
addresses solid and hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal; and the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (the “CERCLA”), which governs releases of
hazardous substances, and remediation of contaminated sites. Our operations are also subject to state
and local environmental laws and regulations.
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As it relates to air emission rates, EAFs are the most efficient and cleanest steel making process
commercially available today. In comparison to blast furnaces, EAF emissions of sulfur oxides, particulate
matter and GHGs per ton of steel are significantly less than integrated steelmaking operations utilizing
blast furnaces. Operating EAFs instead of blast furnaces is a proven air quality improvement strategy. In
addition, each of our steel mills operates air pollution control devices (baghouses) to collect and capture
particulate emissions (“EAF dust”) from the steelmaking process.

The primary raw material of Nucor’s steelmaking operations is scrap metal. The process of melting
scrap metal to make steel generates particulate matter emissions that includes contaminants such as
paint, zinc, lead, chrome and other metals. Initially, the particulate matter captured and collected is
classified as a listed hazardous waste under the RCRA. However, because these contaminants contain
valuable metals, this EAF dust is recycled to recover these metals. Nucor sends all but a small fraction of
the EAF dust it collects to recycling facilities that recover the zinc, lead, chrome and other valuable metals
from this dust.

In addition to recycling EAF dust, Nucor mills beneficially reuse steel slag in road materials as a
granular base, embankments, engineered fill, highway shoulders, and hot mix asphalt pavement. The
physical, chemical, mechanical and thermal properties of steel slag provide a vital resource for
construction companies and activities. We take considerable pride in our recycling efforts.

Not only does the RCRA establish standards for the management of solid and hazardous wastes,
the RCRA also addresses the environmental impact of contamination from waste disposal activities and
from recycling and storage of most wastes. Periodically, past waste disposal activities that were legal
when conducted that may now pose a contamination threat are discovered. When the EPA determines
that properties are contaminated, Nucor quickly evaluates such claims and, if Nucor is determined to be
responsible, we do our part to remediate our share of such issues. Nucor believes all identified liabilities
under the RCRA are either currently being resolved or have been fully resolved.

Nucor is also not presently considered a major contributor to any major cleanups under the
CERCLA for which Nucor has been named a potentially responsible party. Nucor regularly evaluates
these types of potential liabilities and, if appropriate, maintains reserves appropriate to remediate the
identified liabilities. Under the RCRA, private citizens may also bring an action against the operator of a
regulated facility for potential damages and payment of cleanup costs. Nucor believes that its system of
internal evaluation and due diligence provides reasonable assurance as to these types of potential
liabilities so that compliance with these regulations will not have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

To protect water resources, the CWA regulates water withdrawals and discharges. When
applicable, Nucor maintains water withdrawal and discharge permits at its facilities under the national
pollutant discharge elimination system program of the CWA and conducts its operations in compliance
with those permits. Nucor also maintains permits from local governments if the facility discharges into
publicly owned treatment works.

Capital expenditures at our existing facilities that are associated with environmental regulation
compliance for 2025 and 2026 are estimated to be less than $100 million per year.

Human Capital Resources

Culture, Organization and Compensation

We consider our teammates the most important part of Nucor and believe that our culture—and the
encouragement that we provide to our teammates to “grow the core; expand beyond; and live our culture”
—provides us with a competitive advantage.
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While our business strategy shapes "what we do", our culture shapes "how" we go about doing it.
We believe adherence to the key tenets of our culture — safety, integrity, trust, innovation, open
communication, teamwork, inclusion, courage, can-do attitude and ownership — is a powerful
differentiator for Nucor and positions the Company favorably to deliver ongoing stockholder value to our
investors.

THE MUCOR WaY

SAFETY

INTEGRITY

TRUST

INMOVATION

OPEN COMMUNICATION
TEAMWOR K

INCLUSION

COURAGE

CAM-DO ATTITUDE

OWHNERSHIP

Nucor has a streamlined organizational structure that allows our teammates to make quick
decisions and innovate. Our organization is also highly decentralized, with most day-to-day operating
decisions made by our division general managers and their teams. With approximately 32,700
teammates, fewer than 200 work in our principal executive offices in Charlotte, North Carolina. By
empowering our teammates, our goal is to foster an entrepreneurial mindset, along with a strong sense of
personal responsibility and a culture of accountability and belonging. This empowerment is reinforced by
our compensation policies (see discussion on “Pay for Performance” in Our Teammates - Compensation,
Training & Development section below) to drive results and contribute to our success.

Teammate input is essential for us to maintain our culture of empowered teammates enabling
efficient operational decisions. Aside from our practice of everyday open communication, we periodically
ask our teammates to formally provide feedback. Since 1986, we have asked our teammates to complete
a comprehensive survey in order to gather feedback on a range of topics, including matters relating to the
effectiveness of our culture. We view the survey as an important tool in continually improving our
company and ensuring our teammates remain engaged and satisfied. This survey is conducted every
three years, the last of which was conducted in 2022. In the most recent survey, 89% of the responses
were favorable in the category of “Satisfaction & Commitment.” The overall percentage of negative
responses in the most recent survey has dropped by 25 percentage points since the survey began in
1986. The next survey will be conducted in the summer of 2025. Teammates of certain previously
acquired businesses — which accounted for approximately 13% of our workforce as of December 31,
2024 — complete a comparable survey that has also shown an improving trend over time.
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Safety

One of Nucor’s core values is our teammates’ well-being and safety, and it is our goal to become
the safest steel company in the world. Our foremost responsibility is to work safely, which requires our
teammates to identify unsafe conditions and activities and mitigate these hazards. We will continue
working to eliminate exposures that can lead to injury and encourage our teammates to share their ideas
for safety improvement. Two key metrics Nucor uses to measure safety are: the Injury/lliness Rate and
Days Away, Restricted and Transfer (‘DART”) Case Rate.

Nucor calculates the annual Injury/lliness Rate by dividing the number of work-related injuries and
illnesses by the total number of hours worked by all Nucor teammates in a given year, and then
multiplying the resulting percentage by 200,000, the equivalent of 100 full-time employees working 40
hours per week, 50 weeks per year. In 2024, we achieved an annual Injury/lliness Rate of 0.77, which
marks the safest year in the Company's history. This marks an improvement over our annual Injury/lliness
Rate of 0.79 in 2023.

Nucor uses the DART Case Rate to assess and manage the risk of serious injury in the workplace.
Nucor calculates the annual DART Case Rate by dividing the number of cases resulting in days away
from work, restricted work activity and/or job transfers by the total number of hours worked by all Nucor
teammates in a given year, and then multiplying the resulting percentage by 200,000, the equivalent of
100 full-time employees working 40 hours per week, 50 weeks per year. In 2024, we achieved an annual
DART Case Rate of 0.41 (0.36 in 2023).

Since 1998, Nucor has used the President’s Safety Award to recognize divisions that achieve strong
records of safety performance based on objective metrics. The President’s Safety Award has the
following three levels: Platinum, which is awarded to divisions with zero recordable illnesses or injuries;
Gold, which is awarded to divisions that have an lliness/Injury Rate below 0.6 and a DART Case Rate
below one-third of the national average for their NAICS code; and Silver, which is awarded to divisions
that achieve one-third the national average on lliness/Injury Rate and DART Case Rate. In 2024, 28
divisions achieved the Platinum level award, 24 divisions achieved the Gold level award and 19 divisions
achieved the Silver level award. Nucor also has 24 OSHA Voluntary Protection Program Sites, OSHA’s
highest level of recognition.

In 2020, the Company introduced the Nucor President’s Safety Cup as a way to foster more safety
benchmarking throughout the Company. The President’s Safety Cup is an additional annual award that is
presented to the region that has the best safety record across all of Nucor. Not only does this reward a
facility for exceeding their individual safety goals, but it encourages our teams to innovate and to share
ideas and improve safety as a group. The President’s Safety Cup trophy travels among the mills and
divisions that make up the winning region.

We believe, however, that safety is about more than just avoiding injuries. At Nucor, safety means
making sure our teammates feel safe, welcome and valued when they come to work each day. We are
accelerating our efforts with the objective of ensuring that each teammate feels a sense of belonging at
Nucor. By creating an inclusive workplace, we believe we will attract top talent, foster innovation, increase
a sense of empowerment and make Nucor a stronger company.

Some of the relevant initiatives include:

. Conducting focused discussion groups to share experiences of the workplace and the effects
of race and gender;

. Taking feedback onboard to enhance training and development;
. Webcasts by diverse senior leaders sharing their career progression and life experiences, and
. Increasing focus and intensity of engagement with supportive external partners, such as:

o National Society of Black Engineers;
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Society of Women Engineers;
National Society of Hispanic Professional Engineers;

Tuskegee University; and

o O O o

Black Engineer of the Year Award.

Our Teammates - Compensation, Training & Development

Nucor had approximately 32,700 teammates as of December 31, 2024. The vast majority of our
teammates are located in the United States, with only a small number of teammates located outside of
North America. Our operations are highly automated, allowing us to improve safety outcomes and take
advantage of lower employment costs while still providing our teammates with compensation that we
believe is highly competitive as compared to businesses in our industry. At Nucor, we believe in “Pay-for-
Performance.” Nucor teammates typically earn a significant part of their compensation based on their
productivity. Production teammates work under group incentives that provide increased earnings for
increased production. This additional incentive compensation is paid weekly in most cases. Nucor has
also historically contributed 10% of earnings before federal taxes to a profit sharing plan for the majority
of teammates below the officer level. We believe such compensation practices incentivize our workforce
and reinforce our culture.

While Nucor seeks to hire qualified and talented individuals as new teammates, we also believe in
developing the skills of our existing team by providing educational and on-the-job training, in addition to
safety training. Further, Nucor believes it is important for senior management to also be familiar with, and
have had direct experience running, Nucor’s mills and other operational divisions. The vast majority of our
teammates are not represented by labor unions and we believe our teammate turnover is low.

At Nucor, we believe that a diversity of perspectives and background helps to facilitate the “Nucor
Way” as we work to “grow the core; expand beyond; and live our culture.” We also believe that recruiting
and hiring the best talent available will continue to provide us with the best opportunity for continued
future success.

Policies

Nucor has a long history of conducting our businesses in a manner consistent with high standards
of social responsibility. We have adopted a comprehensive Human Rights Policy, which operates in
conjunction with many other Nucor policies related to ethical conduct and human rights, including our
Standards of Business Conduct and Ethics, Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals, Supplier
Code of Conduct and Policy on Eliminating Forced Labor from our Supply Chain.

More information about our social strategies, including our most recent Equal Employment
Opportunity EEO-1 report, can be found at www.nucor.com/esg.

Available Information

Nucor’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-
K, and any amendments to these reports, as well as proxy statements and other information, are
available on our website at www.nucor.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after Nucor files these
documents electronically with, or furnishes them to, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”).

We use the investor relations portion of our website, investors.nucor.com, to distribute information,
including as a means of disclosing material, non-public information and for complying with our disclosure
obligations under Regulation FD. We routinely post and make accessible financial and other information
regarding the Company on our website. Accordingly, investors should monitor the investor relations
portion of our website, in addition to our press releases, SEC filings and other public communications.
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Except as otherwise expressly stated in these documents, the information contained on our website or
available by hyperlink from our website is not a part of this report and is not incorporated into this report
or any other documents we file with, or furnish to, the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Many of the factors that affect our business and operations involve risk and uncertainty. The factors
described below are some of the risks that could materially negatively affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Industry Specific Risk Factors

Overcapacity in the global steel industry could increase the level of steel imports into the United
States, which may negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

Global steel production overcapacity continues to be an ongoing risk to Nucor and the entire steel
industry. The OECD has estimated that global steel production overcapacity could grow to 710 million
tons in 2025, with additional capacity expected to come online over the next few years. China continues
to be a significant contributor to excess steelmaking capacity, producing more than one billion tons of
steel in each of the past five years, despite experiencing slower economic growth. Chinese steel
producers are also investing in new steelmaking capacity in several countries in southeast Asia and
Africa.

During periods of global economic weakness, the effects of this overcapacity are amplified because
of weaker global demand for steel and steel products. Steel manufacturers in non-market economies,
such as China, tend not to adjust their production levels in line with regional demand and instead export
significant amounts of steel and steel products at prices that can be at or below their costs of production.
In countries with non-market economies, the steel industry is often subsidized or owned in whole or in
part by the government, which can provide these producers with cost advantages or cause their
production decisions to be driven by political or social factors rather than price and demand signals.
Surplus output from steel producers in these countries can flow into the U.S. market. These exports to the
U.S. can result in downward pressure on realized steel prices for Nucor, adversely affecting our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

In 2018, a 25% tariff or quota limits were imposed under the first Trump Administration under
Section 232 of the Trade Expansion Act on all imported steel products for an indefinite period of time.
However, over time the Section 232 measures were weakened through country exemptions, quota
arrangements and individual product exclusions. As a result, the Section 232 program’s coverage
narrowed significantly since its initial implementation, with duties eventually applicable to less than 20% of
total import volumes. If the Section 232 or other import tariffs, quotas or duties expire or if others are
further relaxed or repealed, or if relatively higher U.S. steel prices or a stronger U.S. dollar make it
attractive for foreign steelmakers to export their steel products to the United States, despite the presence
of import tariffs, quotas or duties, the resurgence of substantial imports of foreign steel could create
downward pressure on U.S. steel prices.

Most recently, on February 10, 2025, President Trump issued an executive order reimposing
Section 232 25% tariffs on steel imports from all sources, ending country and product exemptions, and
broadening the application of the tariffs to fabricated steel products. This order is scheduled to go into
effect on March 12, 2025. There can be no assurance as to when or if Section 232 or other import tariffs,
quotas or other duties may be enacted, enforced, extended, modified or terminated in the future.

Our industry is cyclical and both recessions and prolonged periods of slow economic growth may
negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Demand for most of our products is cyclical in nature and sensitive to general economic conditions.
Our business supports cyclical industries, such as the construction, energy, metals service centers,
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appliance and automotive industries. As a result, downturns in the U.S. economy or any of these
industries could materially adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We are unable to predict the duration of current economic conditions or the magnitude or timing of
changes in economic activity. Future economic downturns, prolonged slow growth or stagnation in the
economy, a sector-specific slowdown in one of our key end-use markets, such as nonresidential
construction, or changes in inflation could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows, especially in light of the capital-intensive nature of our business.

Competition from other steel producers, imports or alternative materials may negatively affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

We face ongoing competition from other steel producers and imports that compete with our products
on price, quality and service. The markets for our products are highly competitive and a number of firms,
domestic and foreign, participate in the steel, steel products and raw materials markets. Depending on a
variety of factors, including the cost and availability of raw materials, energy, technology, labor,
transportation and capital costs, currency exchange rates, government subsidies of foreign steel
producers and other global political and economic factors, our business may be materially adversely
affected by more intense competitive forces.

In many applications, steel competes with other materials, such as concrete, aluminum, plastics,
composites and wood. Increased use or availability of these materials in substitution for steel products
could have a material adverse effect on prices and demand for our steel products.

Our business requires substantial capital investment and maintenance expenditures, and our capital
resources may not be adequate to provide for all of our cash requirements.

Our business requires substantial expenditures for routine maintenance and to remain competitive.
For the three-year period ended December 31, 2024, our total capital expenditures were approximately
$7.46 billion. In the last three years we announced various substantial capital projects that we expect will
increase production capacity, increase the efficiency of our operations and enhance our product offerings.
Although we expect requirements for our business needs, including the funding of capital expenditures,
debt service for financings and any contingencies, will be financed by internally generated funds, short-
term commercial paper issuances, offerings of our debt securities or from borrowings under our $1.75
billion unsecured revolving credit facility, we cannot guarantee that this will be the case. Additional
acquisitions, increases in interest rates or unforeseen events could require financing from additional
sources.

Changes in the availability and cost of electricity and natural gas are subject to volatile market
conditions which may negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows.

Our steel mills are large consumers of electricity and natural gas. In addition, our DRI facilities are
also large consumers of natural gas. We rely upon third parties for our supply of energy resources
consumed in the manufacture of our products. The prices for and availability of electricity and natural gas
can be volatile. They are often affected by weather, political, regulatory and economic factors beyond our
control, and we may be unable to raise the price of our products to offset increased energy costs.
Disruptions, including physical or information systems related issues, that impact the supply of our energy
resources could temporarily impair our ability to manufacture our products for our customers. Increases in
our energy costs that are not similarly applicable to our competitors' operations could materially adversely
affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
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Our business and results of operations may be negatively affected by volatility in steel prices and
the cost and availability of raw materials, particularly scrap steel.

We rely to an extent on outside vendors to supply us with key consumables such as graphite
electrodes, alloys and other raw materials, including both scrap and scrap substitutes (e.g., prime scrap,
pig iron and DRI) that are critical to the manufacture of our steel products. The raw material required to
produce DRI is pelletized iron ore. Although we have vertically integrated our business by constructing
our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana and also by acquiring our scrap processing and brokerage
operations, DJJ, in 2008, we still must purchase most of our primary raw material, steel scrap, from
numerous other sources located throughout the United States and internationally. Although we believe
that the supply of scrap and scrap substitutes will remain adequate to operate our facilities, prices of
these critical raw materials are volatile and are influenced by changes in scrap exports in response to
changes in the scrap, scrap substitutes and iron ore demands of our global competitors, as well as
volatility in currency rates and political conditions.

At any given time, we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of these critical raw materials
with price and other terms acceptable to us. The availability and prices of raw materials may also be
negatively affected by new laws and regulations, allocation by suppliers, interruptions in production,
accidents or natural disasters, war and other forms of armed conflict or political instability, changes in
exchange rates, worldwide price fluctuations, including due to global political and economic factors,
changes in governmental, business and consumer spending, inflation, increases in interest rates, labor
shortages, and the availability and cost of transportation. Many countries that export steel into our
markets restrict the export of scrap, protecting the supply chain of some foreign competitors. This trade
practice creates an artificial competitive advantage for foreign producers that could limit our ability to
compete in the U.S. market.

If our suppliers increase the prices of our critical raw materials, we may not have alternative sources
of supply. In addition, to the extent that we have quoted prices to our customers and accepted customer
orders for our products prior to purchasing necessary raw materials, we may be unable to raise the price
of our products to cover all or part of the increased cost of the raw materials or pass along increased
transportation costs. Also, if we are unable to obtain adequate, cost-effective and timely deliveries of our
required raw materials, we may be unable to timely manufacture sufficient quantities of our products. This
could cause us to lose sales, incur additional costs, experience margin compressions or suffer harm to
our reputation and customer relationships, any of which may negatively affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our steelmaking processes, our DRI processes, and the manufacturing processes of many of our
suppliers, customers and competitors are energy intensive and generate carbon dioxide and other GHGs.
The regulation of these GHGs may negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

Our operations are subject to numerous federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to the
protection of the environment, and, accordingly, we make provision in our financial statements for the
estimated costs of compliance. There are inherent uncertainties in these estimates. Most notably, the
uncertainty of policies, enforcement priorities, legislation and regulations related to climate change
mitigation strategies pose the greatest risk.

As a carbon steel producer, Nucor could be increasingly affected both directly and indirectly by new
or changing carbon policy decisions and mandates. Carbon is an essential raw material in Nucor’s steel
production processes. Furthermore, Nucor steel mills use significant amounts of electricity as all of its
mills utilize EAFs for 100% of their steel melting operations and the decarbonization of electricity
generation may lead to high power costs and decreased reliability. Significant changes to the regional
power grids serving our steel mills and/or new rulemaking or legislation affecting the operation of these
power grids may negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
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Environmental regulation compliance and remediation could result in substantially increased costs
and materially adversely impact our competitive position.

We incur significant costs to achieve and maintain compliance with environmental regulations and
remediation obligations. The principal federal environmental laws include the CAA, which regulates air
emissions; the CWA which regulates water withdrawals and discharges; the RCRA, which addresses
solid and hazardous waste treatment, storage and disposal; and the CERCLA, which governs releases of
hazardous substances, and remediation of contaminated sites. Our operations are also subject to state
and local environmental laws and regulations.

In addition to the above mentioned statutes, revisions to National Ambient Air Quality Standards
(NAAQS), including the implementation actions/decisions of environmental agencies, could make it
significantly more difficult to obtain construction permits and permits to expand existing operations.
Resulting cancellations, delays or unanticipated costs to these projects could negatively impact our ability
to generate expected returns on our investments. Emission reductions for existing operations due to a
NAAQS revision can also be required. These regulations can also increase our cost of energy, primarily
electricity, which we use extensively in the steelmaking process. We may in the future incur substantially
increased costs complying with such regulations, particularly if federal regulatory agencies were to
change their enforcement posture with respect to such regulations.

Emerging customer preferences for greater product transparency and less GHG intensive materials
may put us at a competitive disadvantage or reduce demand for our products.

The federal government and numerous states are considering establishing, or have already
established, requirements for Environmental Product Declarations (“EPDs”) so that consumers may more
readily evaluate the environmental impacts of products. California has enacted the “Buy Clean California
Act” and California has also established Global Warming Potential benchmarks through EPDs for certain
materials, including certain steel products. The federal government has also implemented a "Buy Clean"
guidance associated with the Inflation Reduction Act. EPD legislation has caused Nucor to incur
additional costs and has the potential to put Nucor and its customers at a disadvantage to foreign
competitors unless standardized mechanisms are used to fully evaluate products produced by foreign
producers.

General Risk Factors

We are subject to information technology and cybersecurity threats which could have an adverse
effect on our business and results of operations.

We utilize various information technology systems to efficiently address business functions ranging
from the operation of our production equipment to administrative computation to the storage of data such
as intellectual property and proprietary business information. We also utilize third-party service providers
for certain information technology services that are important to our operations. We continuously evaluate
our cybersecurity systems and practices, assess potential threats, and improve our information
technology networks, policies and procedures to address potential vulnerabilities. Despite efforts to
assure secure and uninterrupted operations, threats from increasingly sophisticated cyberattacks or
system failures could result in materially adverse operational disruptions or security breaches of our
systems or those of our third-party service providers. These risks could result in disclosure or destruction
of key proprietary information or personal data or reputational damage, theft of assets or trade secrets, or
could adversely affect our ability to physically produce or transport steel, resulting in lost revenues, as
well as delays in reporting our financial results. We also could be required to spend significant financial
and other resources to remedy the damage caused by a cyber-security breach, including to repair or
replace networks and information technology systems. We may also contend with potential liability for
stolen information, increased cyber-security protection costs, litigation expense and increased insurance
premiums.
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Our operations are subject to business interruptions and casualty losses.

The steelmaking business is subject to numerous inherent risks, particularly unplanned events such
as explosions, fires, other accidents, natural disasters such as floods, hurricanes or earthquakes, critical
equipment failures, acts of terrorism, inclement weather and transportation interruptions. Nucor maintains
property insurance for these types of losses but self-insures a significant portion of the program.
Therefore, while our insurance coverage could offset a portion of the losses relating to some of those
types of events, our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely impacted to the extent that
any such losses are not covered by our insurance, or that there are significant delays in resolving our
claims with our insurance providers.

We acquire businesses and enter into joint ventures from time to time and we may encounter
difficulties in integrating businesses we acquire.

We plan to continue to seek attractive opportunities to acquire businesses, enter into joint ventures
and make other investments that strengthen Nucor. Realizing the anticipated benefits of acquisitions or
other transactions will depend on our ability to operate these businesses and integrate them with our
operations, effectively identify and manage risks, and cooperate with our strategic partners. Our business,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be materially adversely affected if we are
unable to successfully integrate these businesses or otherwise fail to realize the anticipated benefits of
acquisitions or other transactions.

Risks associated with operating in international markets may negatively affect our business, results
of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Certain of our businesses and investments are located outside of the United States, in Canada,
Mexico and in emerging markets. There are a number of risks inherent in doing business in or sourcing
raw materials from such markets. These risks include, but are not limited to: unfavorable political or
economic factors; local labor and social issues; changes in regulatory requirements; fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and inflation; and complex foreign laws, treaties including
tax laws, and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977. These risks could restrict our ability to operate
our international businesses profitably and therefore have a negative impact on our financial position and
results of operations. In addition, our reported results of operations and financial position could also be
negatively affected by exchange rates when the activities and balances of our foreign operations are
translated into U.S. dollars for financial reporting purposes.

Pandemics, epidemics and other public health emergencies in the future, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our operations expose us to risks associated with pandemics, epidemics and other public health
emergencies. A pandemic or any similar event may have negative impacts on our operations, supply
chain, transportation networks and customers, which may compress our margins or impact demand for
our steel products, including as a result of preventative and precautionary measures that we, other
businesses and governments have taken or may take in the future.

In addition, the ability of our teammates and our suppliers’ and customers’ teammates to work may
be significantly impacted by these types of public health emergencies. Our customers may be directly
impacted by business interruptions or weak market conditions and may not be willing or able to fulfill their
contractual obligations. Furthermore, the progression of and global response to these types of public
health emergencies can cause and increase the risk of delays in construction activities and equipment
deliveries related to our capital projects, including potential delays in obtaining permits from government
agencies, as well as changes in the prices and availability of labor and equipment for capital projects.
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The accounting treatment of equity method investments, goodwill and other long-lived assets could
result in future asset impairments, which would reduce our earnings.

We periodically test our equity method investments, goodwill and other long-lived assets to
determine whether their estimated fair value is less than their value recorded on our balance sheet. The
results of this testing for potential impairment may be adversely affected by uncertain market conditions
for the global steel industry, as well as changes in interest rates, commodity prices and general economic
conditions. If we determine that the fair value of any of these assets is less than the value recorded on
our balance sheet, and, in the case of equity method investments the decline is other than temporary, we
would likely incur a non-cash impairment loss that would negatively impact our results of operations.

Tax increases and changes in tax laws and regulations or exposure to additional tax liabilities may
negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial conditions and cash flows.

The steel industry and our business are sensitive to changes in taxes. As a company based in the
United States, Nucor is more exposed to the effects of changes in U.S. tax laws than some of our major
competitors. Our provision for income taxes and cash tax liability in the future could be adversely affected
by changes in U.S. tax laws.

Nucor recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are believed to be more
likely than not of being sustained. We cannot predict whether taxing authorities will conduct an audit
challenging any of our tax positions and there can be no assurance as to the outcome of any challenges.
If we are unsuccessful in any of these matters, we may be required to pay taxes for prior periods, interest,
fines or penalties.

We are subject to legal proceedings and legal compliance risks.

We spend substantial resources ensuring that we comply with domestic and foreign regulations,
contractual obligations and other legal standards. Notwithstanding this, we are subject to a variety of legal
proceedings and legal compliance risks in respect of various issues, including regulatory, safety,
environmental, employment, transportation, intellectual property, contractual, import/export, international
trade and governmental matters that arise in the course of our business and in our industry. For
information regarding our current significant legal proceedings, see “ltem 3. Legal Proceedings.” A
negative outcome in an unusual or significant legal proceeding or compliance investigation could
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. While we believe that we have adopted
appropriate risk management and compliance programs, the nature of our operations means that legal
compliance risks will continue to exist and additional legal proceedings and other contingencies, the
outcome of which cannot be predicted with certainty, will arise from time to time.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 1C. Cybersecurity

Nucor recognizes the importance of developing, implementing, and maintaining effective
cybersecurity measures designed to protect our information systems and the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of our data. We face a number of information technology and cybersecurity threats which
could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Notwithstanding the Company’s cybersecurity framework and preventative strategies, we may not

be successful in preventing or mitigating a cybersecurity incident that could have a material adverse
effect on us. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors” for a discussion of cybersecurity risks.

24



Risk Management and Strateqy

Overview

We have developed and implemented a cybersecurity risk management program that is intended
to enable us to assess, identify, and manage risk associated with cybersecurity threats. Our program is
based on the Cybersecurity Framework promulgated by the National Institute of Standards and
Technology and other applicable industry standards, and includes the following key elements:

. identification and assessment of cybersecurity threats based on internal and external
assessments and monitoring, information from internal stakeholders, and external publications
and resources such as those made available by the United States Cybersecurity and
Infrastructure Security Agency;

. technical and organizational safeguards designed to protect against identified threats,
including documented policies and procedures, technical controls, and employee education
and awareness;

. processes to detect the occurrence of cybersecurity events, and maintenance and regular
testing of incident response and recovery and business continuity plans and processes; and

. a third-party risk management process to manage cybersecurity risks associated with our
service providers, suppliers, and vendors.

The program is designed to foster a culture of cybersecurity risk management across the
Company.

Integrated Overall Risk Management

Assessing, identifying, and managing cybersecurity-related risks is integrated into our overall risk
management framework. The Company conducts an annual cybersecurity risk assessment and reports
the most significant risks and associated planned mitigation strategies to the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors. The annual risk assessment is carried out under the supervision of the Executive Vice
President of Business Services and General Counsel, the President of Nucor Business Technology, the
Company’s Cybersecurity Director, and the Company’s Vice President and Corporate Controller. See
“Governance” below. The Board also regularly receives focused presentations regarding cybersecurity
risks from the Company’s Cybersecurity Director.

Third-Party Engagement

Due to the complexity and ever-changing nature of cybersecurity threats, Nucor engages a range
of external experts to assist in its assessment, identification, and management of risks from cybersecurity
threats. These include cybersecurity assessors, forensic and incident response experts, and auditors to
review the Company’s cybersecurity posture and responsive efforts. Our relationships with these external
partners enable us to leverage their expertise with the goal of maintaining best practices.

Oversight of Third-Party Risks

Our third-party service providers, suppliers, and vendors face their own risks from cybersecurity
threats that could impact Nucor in certain circumstances. In response, we have implemented processes
for overseeing and managing these risks. Those processes include limiting the exposure of our
information systems to external systems to the least practicable amount, assessing the third parties’
information security practices before allowing them to access our information systems or data, requiring
the third parties to implement appropriate cybersecurity controls in our agreements with them, and
conducting ongoing monitoring of their compliance with those requirements. We also utilize third-party risk
and compliance monitoring services to monitor our service providers, suppliers, and vendors and to
augment the effectiveness of our risk mitigation efforts in this area.
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Risks from Cybersecurity Threats

As of the date of this report, no risks from cybersecurity threats, including as a result of
cybersecurity incidents we have experienced in the past, have materially affected or are reasonably likely
to materially affect the Company, including its business strategy, results of operations, or financial
condition.

Governance

The Company seeks to ensure effective governance in managing risks associated with
cybersecurity threats, as more thoroughly described below.

Board of Directors Oversight

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for the oversight of risks from
cybersecurity threats. The Audit Committee is composed of directors with a wide range of experience,
including risk management and controls, and technology. See “Integrated Overall Risk Management”
above.

Management’s Role in Cybersecurity Risk Management

A division of the Company known as Nucor Business Technology, or NBT, is responsible for the
Company’s information technology needs, including cybersecurity risk assessment and management.
NBT’s cybersecurity function is led by the Cybersecurity Director, who reports to the President of NBT,
who in turn reports to the Company's Executive Vice President of Business Services and General
Counsel and to the Chair, President, and Chief Executive Officer. The current Cybersecurity Director has
more than twenty years of experience in the cybersecurity field and has broad expertise in cybersecurity
threat assessments and detection, mitigation technologies, cybersecurity training, and incident response.

The Company also has a Risk Committee composed of the following members of the Company’s

management:

. Executive Vice President of Business Services & General Counsel

. President, Nucor Business Technology

. Vice President and Corporate Controller

. Vice President and General Manager, Corporate Legal Affairs

o General Manager of Internal Audit

. Cybersecurity Director

. Director of Legal Compliance and Assistant Corporate Secretary

. Manager of External Reporting

The Risk Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s response to cybersecurity
incidents. The Risk Committee and the Chair, President, and Chief Executive Officer inform the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors on cybersecurity risks.

Monitoring of Cybersecurity Incidents

The Cybersecurity Director implements and oversees our processes for regularly monitoring our
information systems. This includes security measures and regular audits to identify potential issues. In the
event of a cybersecurity incident, we have an established incident response plan that requires prompt
notification of the Cybersecurity Director or their designee, who in turn oversees our assessment of and
response to the incident. The Cybersecurity Director is also responsible for informing the Risk Committee
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of cybersecurity incidents, which in turn has a detailed process for assessing the impacts of incidents and
monitoring the Company’s mitigation and remediation efforts. Depending on the nature of the incident,
this process also provides for escalating notification to senior executives, including the Chair, President,
and Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Vice President of Business Services and General Counsel and
to the Board of Directors.
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Item 2. Properties

We own most of our principal operating facilities. These facilities, by segment, are as follows:

Approximate
square footage

Location of facilities Principal products

Steel mills:
Fontana, California 4,020,000 Flat-rolled steel
Hickman, Arkansas 2,750,000 Flat-rolled steel
Berkeley County, South Carolina 2,430,000 Flat-rolled steel, structural steel
Blytheville, Arkansas 2,220,000 Structural steel
Decatur, Alabama 2,010,000 Flat-rolled steel
Crawfordsville, Indiana 1,870,000 Flat-rolled steel
Norfolk, Nebraska 1,530,000 Steel shapes
Hertford County, North Carolina 1,350,000 Steel plate
Plymouth, Utah 1,300,000 Steel shapes
Ghent, Kentucky 1,260,000 Flat-rolled steel
Jewett, Texas 1,180,000 Steel shapes
Darlington, South Carolina 980,000 Steel shapes
Kankakee, lllinois 850,000 Steel shapes
Silao, Guanajuato, Mexico 680,000 Steel shapes
Seattle, Washington 660,000 Flat-rolled steel
Tuscaloosa, Alabama 610,000 Steel shapes
Memphis, Tennessee 600,000 Steel plate
Auburn, New York 510,000 Steel shapes
Jackson, Mississippi 490,000 Steel shapes
Brandenburg, Kentucky 490,000 Steel plate
Sedalia, Missouri 490,000 Steel shapes
Birmingham, Alabama 460,000 Steel shapes
Marion, Ohio 430,000 Steel shapes
Kingman, Arizona 380,000 Steel shapes
Frostproof, Florida 350,000 Steel shapes
Wallingford, Connecticut 240,000 Steel shapes

Steel products:
Norfolk, Nebraska 1,160,000 Joist, deck, cold finish bar
Brigham City, Utah Joists, cold finish bar, building systems,

1,130,000 metal panels

Arthur, lllinois 1,070,000 Overhead doors
St. Joe, Indiana 1,010,000 Joist, deck, fastener
Grapeland, Texas 830,000 Joists, deck
Chemung, New York 560,000 Joists, deck
Marseilles, lllinois 550,000 Steel tube
Florence, South Carolina 550,000 Joists, deck
Swansea, South Carolina 510,000 Building systems
Birmingham, Alabama 480,000 Steel tube
Fort Payne, Alabama 470,000 Joists, deck
Decatur, Alabama 470,000 Steel tube
Louisville, Kentucky 440,000 Steel tube
Trinity, Alabama 380,000 Steel tube
Eufaula, Alabama 360,000 Building systems
Chicago, lllinois 350,000 Steel tube
Waterloo, Indiana 350,000 Building systems
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In the steel products segment, we have 92 operating facilities, excluding the locations listed above,
in 39 states with 29 operating facilities in Canada and two in Mexico. Nucor Rebar Fabrication also
operates multiple sales offices in Canada and certain other foreign locations. The steel products segment
also includes Skyline Steel, LLC, our steel foundation distributor. NWS has leased square footage of
approximately 630,000 square feet in Los Angeles, California, and has leased square footage of
approximately 370,000 square feet in Houston, Texas.

In the raw materials segment, we have 93 operating facilities in 19 states with one operating facility
in Point Lisas, Trinidad. For our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana, a significant portion of the
production process occurs outdoors. The Trinidad site, including leased land, is approximately 2 million
square feet. The Louisiana site has approximately 174 million square feet of owned land with buildings
that total approximately 72,500 square feet. DJJ has 74 operating facilities in 18 states along with multiple
brokerage offices in the United States and certain other foreign locations.

The average utilization rates of all operating facilities in the steel mills, steel products and raw
materials segments in 2024 were approximately 76%, 58% and 73% of production capacity, respectively.

We also own our principal executive offices in Charlotte, North Carolina.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Nucor is from time to time a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that
arise in the ordinary course of business. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we
record reserves when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate,
would be expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or
cash flows. Nucor maintains liability insurance with self-insurance limits for certain risks.

During 2022, Nucor Steel Louisiana, our DRI facility located in St. James Parish, Louisiana,
received allegations of violations of the Clean Air Act from the United States Environmental Protection
Agency. A combined settlement is currently being negotiated with the United States Department of
Justice, United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Louisiana Department of Environmental
Quality. We do not believe that any aggregate settlement for these allegations will be material to Nucor.

There were no other proceedings that were pending or contemplated under federal, state or local
environmental laws that the Company reasonably believes may result in monetary sanctions of at least
$1.0 million (the threshold chosen by Nucor as permitted by Item 103 of Regulation S-K promulgated
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "Exchange Act"), and which Nucor believes
is reasonably designed to result in disclosure of any such proceeding that is material to its business or
financial condition).

Item4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Information About Our Executive Officers

The following is a description of the names and ages of the executive officers of the Company,
indicating all positions and offices with the Company held by each such person and each person’s
principal occupation or employment during the past five years. Each executive officer of Nucor is elected
by the Board of Directors and holds office from the date of election until removed by the Board.
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Allen C. Behr (51), Executive Vice President of Raw Materials, was named EVP in May 2020. Mr.
Behr began his career with Nucor in 1996 as Design Engineer at Nucor Building Systems-Indiana and
joined the start-up team at Nucor Building Systems-Texas in 1999. In 2001, he became the Engineering
Manager at Nucor Building Systems-South Carolina and was promoted to General Manager in 2008. Mr.
Behr became the General Manager of Vulcraft-South Carolina in 2011 and was promoted to Vice
President in 2012. He was promoted to President of the Vulcraft/\VVerco group in 2014 and he served as
General Manager of Nucor Steel-Texas from 2017 to 2019.

Brad Ford (46), Executive Vice President of Plate and Structural Products, became EVP in May
2023. Mr. Ford began his career at The David J. Joseph Company (DJJ) in 2001 as a Brokerage
Representative and subsequently served as District Manager and International Trading Manager. In
2013, Mr. Ford became Commercial Vice President at DJJ's subsidiary, Trademark Metals Recycling LLC
(TMR), and then served as President of TMR from 2015 to 2020. Mr. Ford became General Manager of
Vulcraft-Indiana in 2020. He was promoted to Vice President of Nucor in 2022 and most recently served
as Vice President and General Manager of Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC.

Noah Hanners (45), Executive Vice President of Sheet Products, became EVP in January 2023. Mr.
Hanners began his career with Nucor in 2011 as Melt Shop Engineer at Nucor Steel South Carolina. He
next served as Shift Supervisor and was then promoted to Melt Shop Manager at Nucor Steel Auburn,
Inc. Mr. Hanners later served as General Manager of Nucor Tubular Products and General Manager of
Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc. and was promoted to Vice President in 2019. He served as the Vice
President and General Manager of The David J. Joseph Company from 2019 to 2022.

John Hollatz (49), Executive Vice President of Fabricated Construction Products, was named EVP
in May 2022. Mr. Hollatz began his career at Nucor in 1999 as Design Engineer at Vulcraft Indiana and
then served as Sales Engineer and Sales Manager at Vulcraft Nebraska. Mr. Hollatz later served as
General Manager of Nucor Building Systems South Carolina, General Manager of Vulcraft Indiana, and
President of the Vulcraft/Verco group. He was promoted to Vice President and General Manager of Nucor
Steel Decatur, LLC in 2016.

Stephen D. Laxton (54), Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President, became CFO in
March 2022. Mr. Laxton began his career at Nucor in 2003 as General Manager of Business
Development and was promoted to Vice President in 2014. Prior to joining Nucor, Mr. Laxton worked for
Cinergy Corp., holding various positions including Director of Asset Management and Manager of
Corporate Development. Prior to Cinergy, he held various financial roles with Ashland, Inc., North
American Stainless and National City Bank.

Gregory J. Murphy (61), Executive Vice President of Business Services and General Counsel, was
named EVP in January 2021. Mr. Murphy began his Nucor career in 2015 as Vice President and General
Counsel. In 2020, he assumed additional responsibilities and was named General Counsel and Vice
President of Legal, Environmental and Public Affairs. Prior to joining Nucor, Mr. Murphy was a Partner
with the law firm of Moore & Van Allen PLLC, where he was the team leader of the Litigation Practice
Group and served for a decade on the firm’s Executive Committee.

Daniel R. Needham (59), Executive Vice President of Commercial, was named EVP in May 2022,
Mr. Needham began his career with Nucor in 2000 as Controller at Nucor Steel Hertford County. He
subsequently served as Controller of Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC and Nucor Steel Utah. In 2011, Mr.
Needham became General Manager of Nucor Steel Connecticut, Inc. He later served as General
Manager of Nucor Steel Utah and was elected Vice President in 2016. In 2019, Mr. Needham was
promoted to Vice President and General Manager of Nucor Steel Indiana. He served as the Executive
Vice President of Bar, Engineered Bar and Rebar Fabrication Products from February 2021 to May 2022.
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K. Rex Query (59), Executive Vice President of Strategy, was named EVP in January 2021. Mr.
Query joined Nucor in 1990 as a financial analyst in the Corporate Office and subsequently served as
Controller at Vulcraft South Carolina, Nucor Steel Berkeley and Nucor Steel Hertford. After serving as
General Manager and Corporate Controller, Mr. Query was elected to Vice President in 2002 and served
as General Manager at Nucor Steel Auburn, Inc., Nucor Steel Decatur, LLC, Nucor Steel South Carolina
and NCF as well as President of Nucor Europe. Most recently, Mr. Query served as President of Nucor’s
Vulcraft/Verco group. Mr. Query is married to the sister of Mr. Topalian’s wife.

Randy J. Spicer (47), was named Executive Vice President of Bar and Rebar Fabrication Products,
in May 2024. Mr. Spicer began his Nucor career in 2004 as Accounting Supervisor at Nucor Steel
Indiana. In 2006, he joined the start-up team at Nucor Steel Memphis, Inc. as Controller and
subsequently served as Controller and Hot Mill Manager at Nucor Steel Gallatin LLC. He was promoted
to General Manager of Nucor Tubular Products North in 2020 and elected to Vice President in 2022. He

most recently served as President of Nucor Tubular Products.

David A. Sumoski (58), was named Chief Operating Officer, in January 2021. He previously served
as Executive Vice President from 2014 to 2020, most recently as EVP of Merchant and Rebar Products.
He also served as General Manager of Nucor Steel Memphis, Inc. from 2012 to 2014 and as General
Manager of Nucor Steel Marion, Inc. from 2008 to 2012. Mr. Sumoski was named Vice President in 2010.
He began his career with Nucor as an electrical supervisor at Nucor Steel-Berkeley in 1995, later serving
as Maintenance Manager.

Leon J. Topalian (56), has served as President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2020 and
as Chair of the Board of Directors since September 2022. He previously served as President and Chief
Operating Officer from September 2019 to December 2019, as Executive Vice President of Beam and
Plate Products from 2017 to 2019 and as Vice President of Nucor from 2013 to 2017. He began his Nucor
career at Nucor Steel-Berkeley in 1996, serving as a project engineer and then as cold mill production
supervisor. Mr. Topalian was promoted to Operations Manager for Nucor’s former joint venture in
Australia and later served as Melting and Casting Manager at Nucor Steel-South Carolina. He then
served as General Manager of Nucor Steel Kankakee, Inc. from 2011 to 2014 and as General Manager of
Nucor-Yamato from 2014 to 2017. Mr. Topalian is married to the sister of Mr. Query’s wife.

D. Chad Utermark (56), Executive Vice President of New Markets and Innovation, was named EVP
in 2014. He previously served as General Manager of Nucor-Yamato from 2011 to 2014 and as General
Manager of Nucor Steel-Texas from 2008 to 2011. He was named Vice President of Nucor in 2009. Mr.
Utermark began his Nucor career as a utility operator at Nucor Steel-Arkansas in 1992, subsequently
serving as shift supervisor and Hot Mill Manager at that division as well as Roll Mill Manager at Nucor
Steel-Texas.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “NUE.”

As of January 31, 2024, there were approximately 11,000 stockholders of record of our common stock.

Our share repurchase program activity for each of the three months and the quarter ended
December 31, 2024 was as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):

Approximate
Total Number Dollar Value

of Shares of Shares
Purchased that May
as Part of Yet Be
Total Publicly Purchased
Number Average Announced Under the
of Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Purchased per Share (1) Programs (2) Programs (2)
September 29, 2024—October 26, 2024 2 $§ 149.81 2 $ 1,106
October 27, 2024—November 23, 2024 — 9 - — $ 1,106
November 24, 2024—December 31, 2024 — $ - — $ 1,106
For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2024 2 2

(1) Includes commissions of $0.11 per share.
(2) On May 11, 2023, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had approved a share repurchase program under which
the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $4.00 billion of the Company’s common stock and terminated all previously

authorized share repurchase programs. The share repurchase authorization is discretionary and has no expiration date.

Nucor has increased its base cash dividend every year since the Company began paying dividends
in 1973. Nucor paid a total dividend of $2.16 per share in 2024 compared with $2.04 per share in 2023. In
December 2024, the Board of Directors increased the base quarterly cash dividend on Nucor's common
stock to $0.55 per share from $0.54 per share. In February 2025, the Board of Directors declared Nucor’s
208t consecutive quarterly cash dividend of $0.55 per share payable on May 12, 2025 to stockholders of
record on March 31, 2025.

See Note 16 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for a discussion regarding
securities authorized for issuance under the Company’s stock-based compensation plans.

The stock performance graph required by Item 201(e) of Regulation S-K is incorporated into this
report by reference from the Company's annual report to stockholders for the year ended December 31,
2024, which will be posted to the Company's website and furnished to the SEC subsequent to the date of
this report. The stock performance graph shall not be deemed to be "filed" for purposes of Section 18 of
the Exchange Act, nor shall it be deemed to be "soliciting material" subject to Regulation 14A or
incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act, except as
shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.

Item 6. [Reserved].
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations of Nucor Corporation should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included
in this report discusses our financial condition and results of operations as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023. Information concerning the year ended December 31, 2023 and a
comparison of the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 may be found under “ltem 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, filed with the SEC on
February 27, 2024.

Overview

While the U.S. economy and consumer confidence remained resilient in 2024, steel market demand
softened, particularly in regard to high interest rate-sensitive construction sectors and due to economic
and political uncertainty in the run-up to the presidential election. As a result, operating rates at our steel
mills for the full year 2024 decreased slightly to 76% as compared to 78% for the full year 2023.

Legislation passed by Congress is providing more than $1.5 trillion to rebuild traditional
infrastructure, build-out clean energy infrastructure and re-shore semiconductor chip manufacturing back
to the United States. Funding from the Infrastructure Investment & Jobs Act (IlJA) is taking longer than
expected to impact the steel market and has been less steel intensive than initially estimated. Since being
signed into law, the CHIPS Act of 2022 has generated announcements for dozens of new semiconductor
ecosystem projects in the U.S. representing more than $400 billion in private investments. Strong Buy
America requirements in the IIJA and the Inflation Reduction Act will promote domestically produced steel
being used to rebuild U.S. infrastructure and build-out new clean energy infrastructure. More than half of
Nucor products are shipped into the construction market, and Nucor’s 100% domestically melted-and-
poured steel and lower carbon footprint is expected to provide an additional advantage as states and
localities look to rebuild infrastructure in a sustainable manner. It is unclear if the change in the
presidential administration will impact any steel intensive projects funded under these federal programs
going forward.

Our Challenges and Risks

Global steel production overcapacity continues to be an ongoing risk to Nucor and the health of the
entire steel industry. The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development ( the “OECD”)
estimated that global crude steel production overcapacity would grow from approximately 632 million net
tons in 2024 to approximately 710 million net tons in 2025.However, additional capacity continues to
come online and China’s steel production, the largest steel producing country, is still near record levels. In
2024, China’s steel production was more than 1 billion tons for the fifth consecutive year. Circumvention
of trade duties also continues to pose a risk, as countries route products through third-party countries to
evade duties. Increasingly, China is seeking to evade trade duties by building new steelmaking capacity
in other countries with a focus on neighboring countries in southeast Asia, as well as Africa.

An uncertainty we continue to face in our business is the price of our principal raw material, ferrous
scrap, which is volatile and often increases or decreases rapidly in response to changes in domestic
demand, unanticipated events that affect the flow of scrap into scrap yards, the availability of scrap
substitutes, currency fluctuations and changes in foreign demand for scrap. In periods of rapidly
increasing raw material prices in the industry, which are often also associated with periods of stronger or
rapidly improving steel market conditions, being able to increase our prices for the products we sell
quickly enough to offset increases in the prices we pay for ferrous scrap is challenging but critical to
maintaining our profitability. We attempt to mitigate the scrap price risk by managing scrap inventory
levels at the steel mills to match the anticipated demand over the next several weeks. Certain scrap
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substitutes, including pig iron, have longer lead times for delivery than scrap, which can make this
inventory management strategy difficult to achieve. Continued successful implementation of our raw
material strategy, including key investments in DRI production, coupled with the scrap brokerage and
processing services performed by our team at DJJ, give us greater control over our metallic inputs and
thus also helps us to mitigate this risk. See "ltem 1A. Risk Factors- Industry Specific Risk Factors" for
further discussion of raw material risks.

During periods of stronger or rapidly improving steel market conditions, we are more likely to be able
to pass through to our customers, relatively quickly, the increased costs of ferrous scrap and scrap
substitutes, protecting our gross margins from significant erosion. During periods of weaker or rapidly
deteriorating steel market conditions, weak steel demand, low industry utilization rates and the impact of
imports create an even more intensified competitive environment and increased pricing pressure. All of
those factors, to some degree, impact pricing, which increases the likelihood that Nucor will experience
lower gross margins.

Although the majority of our steel sales are to spot market customers in North America who place
their orders each month based on their business needs and our pricing competitiveness compared to
both domestic and global producers and trading companies, we also sell contract tons, most notably in
our sheet operations. Approximately 80% of our sheet sales were to contract customers in 2024, with the
balance being sold in the spot market at the prevailing prices at the time of sale. Steel contract sales
outside of our sheet operations are not significant. The amount of tons sold to contract customers at any
given time depends on the overall market conditions at the time, how the end-use customers see the
market moving forward and the strategy that Nucor management believes is appropriate to the upcoming
period.

Nucor management considerations include maintaining an appropriate balance of spot and contract
tons based on market projections and appropriately supporting our diversified customer base. The
percentage of tons that is placed under contract also depends on the overall market dynamics and
customer negotiations. In years of strengthening demand, we typically see an increase in the percentage
of sheet sales sold under contract as our customers have an expectation that transaction prices will
rapidly rise, and available capacity will quickly be sold out. To mitigate this risk, customers prefer to enter
into contracts in order to obtain committed volumes of supply from the mills. The vast majority of our
contracts include a method of adjusting prices on a periodic basis to reflect changes in the market pricing
for steel and/or scrap. Market indices for steel generally trend with scrap pricing changes, but, during
periods of steel market weakness, the more intensified competitive steel market environment can cause
the sales price indices to decrease resulting in reduced gross margins and profitability. Furthermore,
since the selling price adjustments are not immediate, there will always be a timing difference between
changes in the prices we pay for raw materials and the adjustments we make to our contract selling
prices. Contract sales typically have terms ranging from six to 12 months.

Our Strengths and Opportunities

We are North America’s most diversified steel producer. As a result, our short-term performance is
not tied to any one market. We have numerous, large, strategic capital projects at various stages of
progress that we believe will help us further diversify our product offerings and expand the markets that
we serve. We expect these investments to grow our long-term earnings power by increasing our channels
to market, expanding our product portfolio into higher value-added offerings, improving our cost structure
and further building upon our market leadership positions.

We believe that Nucor’s raw material supply chain is another important strength. Our investment in
DRI production facilities and scrap brokerage and processing businesses provides Nucor with significant
flexibility in optimizing our raw materials costs. Additionally, having a portion of our raw materials supply
under our control reduces risk associated with the global sourcing of raw materials.

Our highly variable, low-cost structure, combined with our financial strength and liquidity, have

allowed us to successfully navigate cyclical steel industry market conditions in the past. In such times, our
incentive-based pay system reduces our payroll costs, both hourly and salary, which helps to offset lower
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selling prices. Our pay-for-performance system that is closely tied to our levels of production also allows
us to keep our highly experienced workforce intact and to continue operating our facilities when some of
our competitors with greater fixed costs are forced to shut down some of their facilities. Because we use
EAFs to produce our steel, we can easily vary our production levels to match short-term changes in
demand.

Evaluating Our Operating Performance

We report our results of operations in three segments: steel mills, steel products and raw materials.
Most of the steel we produce in our mills is sold to outside customers (80% in both 2024 and 2023), but a
significant percentage is used internally by many of the facilities in our steel products segment (20% in
both 2024 and 2023).

We begin measuring our performance by comparing our net sales, both in total and by individual
segment, during a reporting period with our net sales in the corresponding period in the prior year. In
doing so, we focus on changes in and the reasons for such changes in the two key variables that have
the greatest influence on our net sales: average sales price per ton during the period and total tons
shipped to outside customers.

We also focus on both dollar and percentage changes in gross margins, which are key drivers of our
profitability, and the reasons for such changes. There are many factors from period to period that can
affect our gross margins. One consistent area of focus for us is changes in “metal margins,” which is the
difference between the selling price of steel and the cost of scrap and scrap substitutes. Increases or
decreases in the cost of scrap and scrap substitutes that are not offset by changes in the selling price of
steel can quickly compress or expand our margins and reduce or increase our profitability.

Changes in marketing, administrative and other expenses, particularly profit sharing and other
variable incentive-based payment costs, can have a material effect on our results of operations for a
reporting period as well. These costs vary significantly from period to period as they are based upon
changes in our pre-tax earnings and other profitability metrics that are a reflection of our pay-for-
performance system that is closely tied to our levels of production.

Evaluating Our Financial Condition

We evaluate our financial condition each reporting period by focusing primarily on the amounts of
and reasons for changes in cash provided by operating activities, our current ratio, the turnover rate of
our accounts receivable and inventories, the amounts of and reasons for changes in cash used in or
provided by investing activities (including projected capital expenditures) and financing activities and our
cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments position at period end. We believe that our
conservative financial practices have served us well in the past and are serving us well today. As a result,
we believe our financial position remains strong.

Comparison of 2024 to 2023

Results of Operations

Nucor reported consolidated net earnings of $2.03 billion, or $8.46 per diluted share, in 2024, which
decreased compared to $4.53 billion, or $18.00 per diluted share, in 2023. Earnings decreased across all
three operating segments in 2024 as compared to 2023. The primary driver for the decrease in earnings
in 2024 as compared to 2023 was the decreased earnings of the steel products segment. The steel
products segment experienced decreased average selling prices and lower volumes in 2024 as
compared to 2023. The decrease in profitability of our joist and deck businesses had the greatest impact
on the decrease in profitability of the steel products segment in 2024 as compared to 2023, as average
selling prices and volumes continued to moderate from the historically high levels reached in 2022.
Despite comparable volumes, earnings in the steel mills segment decreased in 2024 as compared to
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2023 primarily due to lower average selling prices which drove lower metal margins. Also contributing to
the decrease in earnings in the steel mills segment in 2024 as compared to 2023 was the increase in pre-
operating and start-up costs related to several growth investments that are in various stages of
construction or start-up within the segment. Earnings in the raw materials segment decreased in 2024 as
compared to 2023 due to the decreased profitability of DJJ’s scrap processing operations and the impact
of an $83 million impairment charge of a long-term note receivable that management determined was no
longer collectible.

The following discussion will provide greater quantitative and qualitative analysis of Nucor’'s
performance in 2024 as compared to 2023.

Net Sales

Net sales to external customers by segment for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were
as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 % Change
Steel mills $ 18,734 $ 20,093 -7%
Steel products 10,085 12,759 -21%
Raw materials 1,915 1,862 3%
Total net sales to external customers $ 30,734 $ 34,714 -11%

Net sales for 2024 decreased 11% from the prior year. Average sales price per ton decreased 10%
from $1,377 in 2023 to $1,241 in 2024. Total tons shipped to outside customers decreased 2% from
25,205,000 tons in 2023 to 24,767,000 tons in 2024.

In the steel mills segment, sales tons for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 % Change
Outside steel shipments 18,480 18,552 -
Inside steel shipments 4,646 4,721 -2%
Total steel shipments 23,126 23,273 -1%

Net sales for the steel mills segment decreased 7% in 2024 compared to the prior year due to an
7% decrease in the average sales price per ton, from $1,084 in 2023 to $1,013 in 2024. Average selling
prices for our sheet, bar, structural, and plate mills decreased in 2024 as compared to 2023.

Outside sales tonnage for the steel products segment for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 % Change
Joist sales 391 510 -23%
Deck sales 321 401 -20%
Rebar fabrication sales 1,020 1,169 -13%
Tubular products sales 856 949 -10%
Building systems sales 238 248 -4%
Other steel products sales 1,192 1,209 -1%
Total steel products sales 4,018 4,486 -10%
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Net sales for the steel products segment decreased 21% in 2024 from the prior year due to a 12%
decrease in the average sales price per ton, from $2,845 in 2023 to $2,510 in 2024, as well as a 10%
decrease in volumes.

Net sales for the raw materials segment increased 3% in 2024 from the prior year, primarily due to
increased volumes at DJJ’s brokerage operations. In 2024, approximately 93% of outside sales for the
raw materials segment were from the brokerage operations of DJJ, and approximately 4% of outside
sales were from the scrap processing operations of DJJ (92% and 4%, respectively, in 2023).

Gross Margins

In 2024, Nucor recorded gross margins of $4.10 billion (13%), which was a decrease from $7.82
billion (23%) in 2023:

. The primary driver for the decrease in gross margins in 2024 as compared to 2023 was the
decrease in gross margins in the steel products segment. Gross margins decreased across
most businesses within the segment due to lower volumes and decreased average selling
prices. The largest decreases were at our joist and deck businesses, as average selling prices
and volumes continued to moderate from the historically high levels reached in 2022.

. Gross margins in the steel mills segment decreased 2024 compared to 2023 due to decreased
metal margins. The average scrap and scrap substitute cost per gross ton used decreased 6%
from $421 in 2023 to $394 in 2024. Despite the decrease in average scrap and scrap
substitute costs in 2024 compared to 2023, metal margins decreased as the decrease in
average selling prices was greater than the decrease in average scrap and scrap substitute
costs.

Scrap prices are driven by the global supply and demand for scrap and other iron-based raw
materials used to make steel. Scrap prices are stable as we begin 2025.

. Pre-operating and start-up costs of new facilities increased to approximately $594 million in
2024 as compared to approximately $400 million in 2023. Pre-operating and start-up costs in
2024 primarily related to the plate mill in Kentucky, the sheet mill being built in West Virginia,
and the melt shop being built in Arizona. Pre-operating and start-up costs in 2023 primarily
related to the plate mill then being built in Kentucky, the sheet mill being built in West Virginia,
and the micro mill being built in North Carolina. Nucor defines pre-operating and start-up
costs, all of which are expensed, as the losses attributable to facilities or major projects that
are either under construction or in the early stages of operation. Once these facilities or
projects have attained a utilization rate that is consistent with our similar operating facilities,
they are no longer considered by Nucor to be in start-up.

o Gross margins in the raw materials segment decreased significantly in 2024 as compared to
2023 due to the decreased profitability of our scrap processing operations.

Marketing, Administrative and Other Expenses

A major component of marketing, administrative and other expenses is profit sharing and other
incentive compensation costs. These costs, which are based upon and fluctuate with Nucor’s financial
performance, decreased from 2023 to 2024 due to the decreased profitability of the Company. In 2024,
profit sharing costs consisted of $298 million, including the Company’s matching contribution, made to the
Company'’s Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees ($611 million in 2023).
Other employee bonus costs also fluctuate based on Nucor’s achievement of certain financial
performance goals, including achieving record earnings, and comparisons of Nucor’s financial
performance to peers in the steel industry and other companies. Stock-based compensation included in
marketing, administrative and other expenses decreased by 4% to $52 million in 2024 compared with $54
million in 2023 and includes expenses associated with vesting of stock awards granted in prior years.
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Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates was $30 million in 2024 and $13 million in 2023. The
increase in equity method investment earnings from 2023 to 2024 was primarily due to decreased losses
at NJSM. In October 2023, Nucor purchased an additional 1% interest in NJSM, bringing our investment
in NJSM to a 51% controlling interest. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2023, Nucor has accounted for
NJSM on a consolidated basis.

Losses and Impairments of Assets

Included in 2024 net earnings were $137 million of losses and impairments of assets (none in
2023). During the third quarter of 2024, management determined that it was probable that a long-term
note receivable in the raw materials segment would no longer be collectable and recorded an $83 million
impairment charge to fully reserve the note receivable. The other primary component of losses and
impairments of assets in 2024 was a $40 million impairment charge of certain assets, mostly property,

plant, and equipment, net, related to a business in the steel products segment.

Interest Expense (Income)

Net interest expense (income) for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 was as follows (in
millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023
Interest expense $ 228 % 246
Interest income (258) (276)
Interest (income) expense, net $ (30) $ (30)

Interest expense decreased in 2024 compared to 2023 due to an increase in capitalized interest.
Interest income decreased in 2024 compared to 2023 due to lower average investments and a decrease
in average interest rates on investments.

Earnings Before Income Taxes and Noncontrolling Interests

The following table presents earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests by segment
for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in millions). The changes between periods were
driven by the quantitative and qualitative factors previously discussed.

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023
Steel mills $ 2226 $ 3,712
Steel products 1,596 3,444
Raw materials 40 254
Corporate/eliminations (960) (1,137)
Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests $ 2902 $ 6,273

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the income attributable to the noncontrolling partners of Nucor’'s
joint ventures, Nucor-Yamato, CSI and NJSM. Nucor owns a 51% controlling interest in each of Nucor-
Yamato, CSl and NJSM. The decrease in earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests in 2024 as
compared to 2023 was due to the decreased earnings of Nucor-Yamato and CSI. Furthermore, the
decrease in earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests was due to the losses of NJSM, for which
results were consolidated beginning in the fourth quarter of 2023 following Nucor's purchase of an
additional 1% interest in NJSM to bring the total investment to a 51% controlling interest.
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Provision for Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate in 2024 was 20.09% compared with 21.68% in 2023. The 2024
effective tax rate includes an increased impact, when compared to 2023, related to federal tax credits and
the change in relative proportions of net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests to total pre-tax
earnings between the periods.

The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) is currently examining Nucor’'s 2015, 2019, and 2020 federal
income tax returns. Nucor has concluded U.S. federal income tax matters for tax years through 2014, and
for the tax years 2016 and 2018. The tax years 2021 through 2023 remain open to examination by the
IRS. The 2015 through 2021 Canadian income tax returns for Nucor Rebar Fabrication Group Inc.
(formerly known as Harris Steel Group Inc.) and certain related affiliates are currently under examination
by the Canada Revenue Agency. The tax years 2016 through 2023 remain open to examination by other
major taxing jurisdictions to which Nucor is subject (primarily Canada, Trinidad & Tobago, and other state
and local jurisdictions).

Net Earnings and Return on Equity

Nucor reported net earnings of $2.03 billion, or $8.46 per diluted share, in 2024, compared to net
earnings of $4.53 billion, or $18.00 per diluted share, in 2023. Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders as a percentage of net sales were 6.6% and 13.0% in 2024 and 2023, respectively. Return
on average stockholders’ equity was 9.8% and 23.0% in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We believe our financial strength is a key strategic advantage, particularly during recessionary
business cycles. We carry the highest credit ratings of any steel producer headquartered in North
America, with an A- long-term rating from Standard and Poor’s, a Baa1 long-term rating from Moody’s
and an A- long-term rating from Fitch. Our credit ratings are dependent, however, on many factors, both
qualitative and quantitative, and are subject to change at any time. The disclosure of our credit ratings is
made to enhance investors’ understanding of our sources of liquidity and the impact of our credit ratings
on our cost of funds.

Nucor’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash and cash
equivalents position remained strong at $4.14 billion as of December 31, 2024, compared with $7.13
billion as of December 31, 2023. Approximately $970 million and $1.05 billion of the cash and cash
equivalents position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, was held by our majority-owned
joint ventures. Cash flows provided by operating activities provide us with a significant source of liquidity.
When needed, we have external short-term financing sources available, including the issuance of
commercial paper and borrowings under our bank credit facilities.

We also issue long-term debt securities from time-to-time. On March 11, 2022, Nucor completed the
issuance and sale of $550 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.125% Notes due 2032 (the “2032
Notes”) and $550 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.850% Notes due 2052 (the “2052 Notes”
and, together with the 2032 Notes, the “2032/2052 Notes”). The net proceeds from the issuance and sale
of the 2032/2052 Notes were used along with cash on hand to redeem all of the outstanding $600 million
aggregate principal amount of our 4.125% Notes due 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) and $500 million aggregate
principal amount of our 4.000% Notes due 2023 (the “2023 Notes”) pursuant to the terms of the indenture
governing the 2022 Notes and the 2023 Notes.

On April 25, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $500 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the
2023 Notes using a portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes. On
August 15, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $600 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the 2022
Notes using the remaining portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052
Notes.
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On May 23, 2022, Nucor completed the issuance and sale of $500 million aggregate principal
amount of its 3.950% Notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) and $500 million aggregate principal amount of
its 4.300% Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes”).

We expect to continue to have adequate access to the capital markets at a reasonable cost of funds
for liquidity purposes when needed.

Selected Measures of Liquidity and Capital Resources

(Dollars in millions)
December 31,

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,658 §$ 6,383
Short-term investments 581 747
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 4
Working capital 7,498 11,791
Current ratio 2.5 3.6

The current ratio, which is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 2.5 at year-
end 2024 compared with 3.6 at year-end 2023. The current ratio was impacted by lower cash and cash
equivalents and the increase in the current portion of long-term debt at December 31, 2024.

In 2024, total accounts receivable turned approximately every five weeks and inventories turned
approximately every ten weeks. These ratios compare with accounts receivable turnover of approximately
every five weeks and inventory turnover of approximately every 11 weeks for 2023.

Funds provided by operations, cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, restricted cash
and cash equivalents and new borrowings under existing credit facilities are expected to be adequate to
meet future capital expenditures, current debt maturities and working capital requirements for existing
operations for at least the next 24 months. We also believe we have adequate access to capital markets
for liquidity purposes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have a simple capital structure with no off-balance sheet arrangements or relationships with
unconsolidated special purpose entities that we believe could have a material impact on our financial
condition or liquidity.

Capital Allocation Strategy

We believe that our conservative financial practices have served us well in the past and are serving
us well today. Nucor’s financial strength allows for a consistent, balanced approach to capital allocation
throughout the business cycle. Nucor’s highest capital allocation priority is to invest in our business for
profitable growth over the long term. We have historically done this by investing to optimize our existing
operations, initiate greenfield expansions and make acquisitions. Our second priority is to return capital to
our stockholders through cash dividends and share repurchases. We intend to return a minimum of 40%
of our net earnings to our stockholders through dividends and share repurchases, while maintaining a
debt-to-capital ratio that supports a strong investment grade credit rating. Nucor returned approximately
$2.7 billion in capital to its stockholders in the form of base dividends and share repurchases in 2024.
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Our cash flows for each period were as follows:

(Dollars in millions)
December 31,

2024 2023

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3979 $ 7,112
Net cash used in investing activities (3,734) (2,496)
Net cash used in financing activities (3,058) (2,593)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (16) 3
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted

cash and cash equivalents $ (2,829) $ 2,026
Operating Activities

For 2024 compared to 2023, the $3.13 billion decrease in cash provided by operating activities
was primarily driven by a decrease in net earnings and changes in operating assets and liabilities. Net
earnings decreased $2.59 billion over the prior year, which included $137 million of non-cash losses and
impairments of assets in 2024 (none in 2023). The changes in operating assets and liabilities resulted in a
net inflow of $156 million and $858 million in 2024 and 2023, respectively. The changes in working capital
were primarily due to a decrease in accounts receivable and inventories from year-end 2023 to year-end
2024. Accounts receivable at the end of 2024 decreased from the prior year-end resulting in a cash inflow
of $319 million due to a decrease in the sales volumes and price per ton compared to the prior year. From
year-end 2023 to year-end 2024, inventories decreased resulting in an inflow of $518 million due primarily
to an 18% decrease in raw material tons. This compares to inventories at year-end 2023 increasing from
year-end 2022 and resulting in a $75 million cash outflow. Salaries, wages and related accruals
decreased $385 million due to lower current year profit sharing accrual and other benefit related accruals.
Accounts payable decreased resulting in a $321 million cash outflow due to the decreases in inventory
mentioned previously.

Investing Activities

Our business is capital intensive; therefore, cash used in investing activities primarily represents
capital expenditures for the construction of new facilities, the expansion and upgrading of existing
facilities and the acquisition of other companies. The $1.24 billion increase in cash used in investing
activities was primarily due to $758 million used in 2024 to fund acquisitions compared to $71 million
used to fund acquisitions in 2023. $565 million of this was used in the acquisition of Rytec in 2024. Cash
used for capital expenditures increased by $959 million to $3.17 billion in 2024 as compared to $2.21
billion in 2023. The increase in capital expenditures was primarily due to the sheet mill under construction
in West Virginia, the sheet mill expansion in Indiana and the rebar micro mill under construction in North
Carolina. Capital expenditures for 2025 are estimated to be approximately $3.00 billion. The projects that
we anticipate will have the largest capital expenditures in 2025 are the sheet mill under construction in
West Virginia, the construction of two manufacturing locations to expand NTS, and the galvanizing line at
our sheet mill in South Carolina.

Financing Activities

The primary uses of cash were: (i) stock repurchases of $2.22 billion in 2024 as compared to $1.55
billion in 2023, an increase of $663 million; (ii) cash dividends to stockholders of $522 million in 2024 as
compared to $515 million in 2023; and (iii) distributions to noncontrolling interests of $352 million in 2024
as compared to $435 million in 2023, a decrease of $83 million. In 2022, Nucor issued $500 million
aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Notes, $500 million aggregate principal amount of the 2027
Notes, $550 million aggregate principal amount of the 2032 Notes and $550 million aggregate principal
amount of the 2052 Notes. On April 25, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $500 million aggregate principal
amount outstanding of the 2023 Notes. On August 15, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $600 million aggregate
principal amount outstanding of the 2022 Notes.
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Our $1.75 billion revolving credit facility is undrawn and has a maturity date of November 5, 2026.
The revolving credit facility includes only one financial covenant, which is a limit of 60% on the ratio of
funded debt to total capital. In addition, the undrawn revolving credit facility contains customary non-
financial covenants, including a limit on Nucor’s ability to pledge the Company’s assets and a limit on
consolidations, mergers and sales of assets. As of December 31, 2024, Nucor’s funded debt to total
capital ratio was 24.5%, and Nucor was in compliance with all covenants under the credit facility.

Market Risk

Nucor’s largest exposure to market risk is in our steel mills and steel products segments. Our
utilization rates for the steel mills and steel products facilities for the fourth quarter of 2024 were 74% and
54%, respectively. A significant portion of our steel mills and steel products segments’ sales are into the
commercial, industrial and municipal construction markets. Our largest single customer in 2024
represented approximately 5% of sales and consistently pays within terms. In the raw materials segment,
we are exposed to price fluctuations related to the purchase of scrap steel, pig iron and iron ore. Our
exposure to market risk is mitigated by the fact that our steel mills use a significant portion of the products
of this segment and the prices we receive for our steel and steel products tend to be correlated with the
prices we pay for these materials.

Nucor manages interest rate risk by using a combination of variable-rate and fixed-rate debt. At
December 31, 2024, approximately 21% of Nucor’s long-term debt was comprised of instruments with
variable interest rates, primarily industrial development revenue bonds ("IDRBs") that are adjusted
weekly. The remaining 79% of Nucor’s long-term debt was at fixed rates. Future changes in interest rates
are not expected to significantly impact earnings. From time to time, Nucor makes use of interest rate
swaps to manage interest rate risk. As of December 31, 2024, there were no such contracts outstanding.
Nucor’s investment practice is to invest in securities that are highly liquid with short maturities. As a result,
we do not expect changes in interest rates to have a significant impact on the value of our investment
securities recorded as short-term investments.

Nucor also uses derivative financial instruments from time to time to partially manage its exposure
to price risk related to purchases of natural gas used in the production process, as well as steel, scrap,
copper and aluminum purchased for resale to its customers. In addition, Nucor uses forward foreign
exchange contracts from time to time to hedge cash flows associated with certain assets and liabilities,
firm commitments and anticipated transactions. Nucor generally does not enter into derivative instruments
for any purpose other than hedging the cash flows associated with specific volumes of commodities that
will be purchased, processed or sold in future periods or hedging the exposures related to changes in the
fair value of outstanding fixed-rate debt instruments and foreign currency transactions. Nucor recognizes
all derivative instruments in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through its operations in Canada, Europe
and Mexico. We periodically use derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of currency fluctuations.

Dividends

Nucor has increased its base cash dividend every year since it began paying dividends in 1973.
Nucor paid aggregate dividends of $2.16 per share in 2024, compared with aggregate dividends of $2.04
per share in 2023. In December 2024, the Board of Directors increased the regular quarterly cash
dividend on Nucor’s common stock to $0.55 per share. Nucor returned approximately $2.73 billion in
capital to its stockholders in the form of base dividends and share repurchases in 2024. In February 2025,
the Board of Directors declared Nucor's 208" consecutive quarterly cash dividend of $0.55 per share
payable on May 12, 2025 to stockholders of record as of March 31, 2025.
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Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations and other commercial commitments as of
December 31, 2024 for the periods presented (in millions):

Payments Due By Period

2030 and

Contractual Obligations Total 2025 2026-2027 2028-2029 thereafter
Long-term debt $ 6,725 $ 1,025 $ 597 $ 619 $ 4,484
Estimated interest on
long-term

debt (1) 3,324 238 432 361 2,293
Finance leases 263 27 51 98 87
Operating leases 162 35 52 31 44
Raw material purchase

commitments (2) 2,972 1,313 942 435 282
Utility purchase
commitments (2) 1,164 364 331 221 248
Other unconditional
purchase

obligations (3) 1,876 1,406 444 10 16
Other long-term
obligations (4) 762 499 67 7 189
Total contractual obligations § 17,248 $ 4907 $ 2916 $ 1,782 $ 7,643

(1) Interest is estimated using applicable rates at December 31, 2024 for Nucor’s outstanding fixed-rate and
variable-rate debt.

(2)  Nucor enters into contracts for the purchase of scrap and scrap substitutes, iron ore, electricity, natural
gas, and other raw materials and related services. These contracts include multi-year commitments and
minimum annual purchase requirements and are valued at prices in effect on December 31, 2024, or
according to the contract language. These contracts are part of normal operations and are reflected in
historical operating cash flow trends. We do not believe such commitments will adversely affect our
liquidity position.

(3) Purchase obligations include commitments for capital expenditures on operating machinery and
equipment.

(4) Other long-term obligations include amounts associated with Nucor’s early-retiree medical benefits,
management compensation and guarantees.

Note: In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $212 million of unrecognized tax benefits
have been recorded as liabilities, and we are uncertain as to if or when such amounts may be settled.
Related to these unrecognized tax benefits, we have also recorded a liability for potential penalties and
interest of $50 million at December 31, 2024.

Outlook

We expect earnings in the steel mills and steel products segments to be similar in the first quarter of
2025 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2024. Earnings in the raw materials segment are expected to
decrease in the first quarter of 2025 relative to the fourth quarter of 2024. We expect higher corporate,
administrative and tax impacts in the first quarter of 2025 than realized in the fourth quarter of 2024 which
may result in lower net earnings overall.

Capital deployment is expected to decrease in 2025 with planned capital expenditures of
approximately $3.0 billion, continued evaluation of acquisitions, and share repurchases expected to
moderate. As we have in the past, we intend to allocate capital to investments that advance our strategy
to grow the core and expand beyond, with the goal of keeping Nucor in a position of strength well into the
future.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at year end and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the year. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to the valuation allowances for receivables, the carrying value of non-current
assets and reserves for environmental obligations and income taxes. Our estimates are based on
historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Accordingly, actual costs could
differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We believe the following
critical accounting policies affect our significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company records any amount
required to reduce the carrying value of inventory to net realizable value as a charge to cost of products
sold. Scrap and scrap substitute costs are a very significant component of the raw material, semi-finished
and finished product inventory balances. The vast majority of the Company’s inventory is recorded on the
first-in, first-out method. Production costs are applied to semi-finished and finished product inventory from
the approximate period in which they are produced.

Long-Lived Asset Impairments

We evaluate our property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets for potential
impairment on an individual asset basis or at the lowest level asset grouping for which cash flows can be
independently identified. Asset impairments are assessed whenever circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts of those productive assets could exceed their projected undiscounted cash flows. In
developing estimated values for assets that we currently use in our operations, we utilize judgments and
assumptions of future undiscounted cash flows that the assets will produce. When it is determined that an
impairment exists, the related assets are written down to estimated fair market value. Certain long-lived
asset groupings were tested for impairment during the fourth quarter of 2024. Undiscounted cash flows
for each asset grouping were estimated using management’s long-range estimates of market conditions
associated with each asset grouping over the estimated useful life of the principal asset within the group.
Our undiscounted cash flow analysis indicated that the tested long-lived asset groupings were
recoverable as of December 31, 2024. Management determined that no long-lived asset impairment
testing was required in 2023.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and whenever events or circumstances change that
would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. We perform our annual
impairment analysis as of the first day of the fourth quarter each year. The evaluation of impairment
involves comparing the current estimated fair value of each reporting unit to the recorded value, including
goodwill.

When appropriate, Nucor performs a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely
than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. For certain reporting units, it
is necessary to perform a quantitative analysis. In these instances, a discounted cash flow model is used
to determine the current estimated fair value of these reporting units. Significant assumptions used to
determine the fair value of each reporting unit as part of our annual testing (and any required interim
testing) include: (i) expected cash flow for the five-year period following the testing date (including market
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share, sales volumes and prices, raw materials and other costs to produce and estimated capital needs);
(i) an estimated terminal value using a terminal year growth rate determined based on the growth
prospects of the reporting unit; (iii) a discount rate based on management’s best estimate of the after-tax
weighted-average cost of capital; and (iv) a probability-weighted scenario approach by which varying
cash flows are assigned to certain scenarios based on the likelihood of occurrence. Management
considers historical and anticipated future results, general economic and market conditions, the impact of
planned business and operational strategies and all available information at the time the fair values of its
reporting units are estimated. Those estimates and judgments may or may not ultimately prove
appropriate.

Our fourth quarter 2024 annual goodwill impairment analysis did not result in an impairment charge.
Management does not believe that future impairment of these reporting units is probable. However, the
performance of certain businesses that comprise our reporting units requires continued improvement. An
increase of approximately 50 basis points in the discount rate, a critical assumption in which a minor
change can have a significant impact on the estimated fair value, would not result in an impairment
charge. See Note 8 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for further discussion of the
results of the Company’s 2024 annual goodwill impairment analysis.

Nucor will continue to monitor operating results within all reporting units throughout 2025 in an effort
to determine if events and circumstances require further interim impairment testing. Otherwise, all
reporting units will again be subject to the required annual qualitative and/or quantitative impairment test
during our fourth quarter of 2025. Changes in the judgments and estimates underlying our analysis of
goodwill for possible impairment, including expected future operating cash flows and discount rate, could
decrease the estimated fair value of our reporting units in the future and could result in an impairment of
goodwill.

Equity Method Investments

Investments in joint ventures in which Nucor shares control over the financial and operating
decisions but in which Nucor is not the primary beneficiary are accounted for under the equity method.
Each of the Company’s equity method investments is subject to a review for impairment if, and when,
circumstances indicate that a decline in value below its carrying amount may have occurred. Examples of
such circumstances include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in the earnings performance
or business prospects of the investee; missed financial projections; a significant adverse change in the
regulatory, tax, economic or technological environment of the investee; a significant adverse change in
the general market condition of either the geographic area or the industry in which the investee operates;
and recurring negative cash flows from operations. When management considers the decline to be other
than temporary, the Company would write down the related investment to its estimated fair market value.
An other-than-temporary decline in carrying value is determined to have occurred when, in management’s
judgment, a decline in fair value below carrying value is of such length of time and/or severity that it is
considered long-term.

In the event that an impairment review is necessary, we calculate the estimated fair value of our
equity method investments using a probability-weighted multiple-scenario income approach.
Management’s analysis includes three discounted cash flow scenarios (best case, base case and
recessionary case), which contain forecasted near-term cash flows under each scenario. Generally, (i) the
best case scenario contains estimates of future results ranging from slightly higher than recent operating
performance to levels that are consistent with historical operating and financial performance; (ii) the base
case scenario contains estimates of future results ranging from generally in line with recent operating
performance to levels that are more conservative than historical operating and financial performance; and
(iii) the recessionary case scenario contains estimates of future results which include limited growth
resulting only from operational cost improvements and limited benefits of new higher-value product
offerings. Management determines the probability that each cash flow scenario will come to fruition based
on the specific facts and circumstances of each of the preceding scenarios, with the base case typically
receiving the majority of the weighting.
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Key assumptions used to determine the fair value of our equity method investments include: (i)
expected cash flow for the five-year period following the testing date (including market share, sales
volumes and prices, raw materials and other costs to produce and estimated capital needs); (ii) an
estimated terminal value using a terminal year growth rate determined based on the growth prospects of
the investment; (iii) a discount rate based on management’s best estimate of the after-tax weighted-
average cost of capital; and (iv) a probability-weighted scenario approach by which varying cash flows are
assigned to certain scenarios based on the likelihood of occurrence. Management considers historical
and anticipated future results, general economic and market conditions, the impact of planned business
and operational strategies and all available information at the time the fair values of its investments are
estimated. Those estimates and judgments may or may not ultimately prove appropriate.

Nucor reviews its equity method investments for impairment if and when circumstances indicate that
a decline in fair value below their carrying amounts may have occurred. There were no triggering events
that caused management to pursue additional testing of our equity method investments in 2024.

Income Taxes

We utilize the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred
taxes are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis
of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect during the years in which the basis
differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those
positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Potential accrued interest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits within operations are recognized as a component of interest expense and other
expenses.

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements made in this report, or in other public filings, press releases, or other written or
oral communications made by Nucor, which are not historical facts are forward-looking statements subject
to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-
looking statements involve risks and uncertainties which we expect will or may occur in the future and
may impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. The words “anticipate,” “believe,”
“expect,” “intend,” “project,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could” and similar expressions are intended to identify
those forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements reflect the Company’s best
judgment based on current information, and, although we base these statements on circumstances that
we believe to be reasonable when made, there can be no assurance that future events will not affect the
accuracy of such forward-looking information. As such, the forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance, and actual results may vary materially from the projected results and
expectations discussed in this report. Factors that might cause the Company’s actual results to differ
materially from those anticipated in forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: (1)
competitive pressure on sales and pricing, including pressure from imports and substitute materials; (2)
U.S. and foreign trade policies affecting steel imports or exports; (3) the sensitivity of the results of our
operations to general market conditions, and in particular, prevailing market steel prices and changes in
the supply and cost of raw materials, including pig iron, iron ore and scrap steel; (4) the availability and
cost of electricity and natural gas which could negatively affect our cost of steel production or result in a
delay or cancellation of existing or future drilling within our natural gas drilling programs; (5) critical
equipment failures and business interruptions; (6) market demand for steel products, which, in the case of
many of our products, is driven by the level of nonresidential construction activity in the United States; (7)
impairment in the recorded value of inventory, equity investments, fixed assets, goodwill or other long-
lived assets; (8) uncertainties and volatility surrounding the global economy, including excess world
capacity for steel production, inflation and interest rate changes; (9) fluctuations in currency conversion
rates; (10) significant changes in laws or government regulations affecting environmental compliance,
including legislation and regulations that result in greater regulation of greenhouse gas emissions that
could increase our energy costs, capital expenditures and operating costs or cause one or more of our
permits to be revoked or make it more difficult to obtain permit modifications; (11) the cyclical nature of
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the steel industry; (12) capital investments and their impact on our performance; (13) our safety
performance; (14) our ability to integrate businesses we acquire; (15) the impact of any pandemic or
public health situation; and (16) the risks discussed in “ltem 1A. Risk Factors” of this report.

Caution should be taken not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements included in
this report. We assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements except as may be
required by law. In evaluating forward-looking statements, these risks and uncertainties should be
considered, together with the other risks described from time to time in our reports and other filings with
the SEC.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the ordinary course of business, Nucor is exposed to a variety of market risks. We continually
monitor these risks and develop strategies to manage them.

Interest Rate Risk — Nucor manages interest rate risk by using a combination of variable-rate and
fixed-rate debt. At December 31, 2024, approximately 21% of Nucor’s long-term debt was comprised of
instruments with variable interest rates, primarily IDRBs that are adjusted weekly. The remaining 79% of
Nucor’s long-term debt was at fixed rates. Future changes in interest rates are not expected to
significantly impact earnings. Nucor also occasionally makes use of interest rate swaps to manage net
exposure to interest rate changes. As of December 31, 2024, there were no such contracts outstanding.
Nucor’s investment practice is to invest in securities that are highly liquid with short maturities. As a result,
we do not expect changes in interest rates to have a significant impact on the value of our investment
securities recorded as short-term investments.

Commodity Price Risk — In the ordinary course of business, Nucor is exposed to market risk for
price fluctuations of raw materials and energy, principally scrap, steel, other ferrous and nonferrous
metals, alloys and natural gas. We attempt to negotiate the best prices for our raw material and energy
requirements and to obtain prices for our steel products that match market price movements in response
to supply and demand. In periods of strong or stable demand for our products, we are more likely to be
able to effectively reduce the normal time lag in passing through higher raw material costs so that we can
maintain our gross margins. When demand for our products is weaker, this becomes more challenging.
Our DRI facilities in Trinidad and Louisiana provide us with flexibility in managing our input costs. DRI is
particularly important for operational flexibility when demand for prime scrap increases due to increased
domestic steel production.

Natural gas produced by Nucor’s production operations is being sold to third parties to partially
offset our exposure to changes in the price of natural gas consumed by our Louisiana DRI facility and our
steel mills in the United States.

Nucor also periodically uses derivative financial instruments to hedge a portion of our exposure to
price risk related to natural gas purchases used in the production process and to hedge a portion of our
steel, scrap, aluminum and copper purchases and sales. Gains and losses from derivatives designated
as hedges are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes on the
consolidated balance sheets and recognized in net earnings in the same period as the underlying
physical transaction. At December 31, 2024, accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes
included $1 million in unrealized net-of-tax gains for the fair value of these derivative instruments.
Changes in the fair values of derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized in net earnings each
period. The following table presents the negative effect on pre-tax earnings of a hypothetical change in
the fair value of the derivative instruments outstanding at December 31, 2024, due to an assumed 10%
and 25% change in the market price of each of the indicated commaodities (in millions):

Commodity

Derivative 10% Change 25% Change
Natural gas $ 1 $ 28
Other commodities 9 23

Any resulting changes in fair value would be recorded as adjustments to accumulated other
comprehensive loss, net of income taxes or recognized in net earnings, as appropriate. These
hypothetical losses would be partially offset by the benefit of lower prices paid or higher prices received
for the physical commaodities.

Foreign Currency Risk — Nucor is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through its operations in
Canada, Europe and Mexico. We periodically use derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of currency
fluctuations. Open foreign currency derivative contracts at December 31, 2024 and 2023 were
insignificant.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Nucor’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2024. In making this assessment, management used criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013).

Based on its assessment, management concluded that Nucor’s internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2024. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, has audited the effectiveness of Nucor’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2024 as stated in their report which is included herein.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Nucor Corporation
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nucor Corporation and its
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated
statements of earnings, of comprehensive income, of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, including the related notes (collectively referred
to as the “consolidated financial statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Infernal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.
We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the
consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit
committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial
statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a
separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Goodawill Impairment Assessment — Certain Reporting Unit in the Steel Products Segment

As described in Notes 2 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company’s consolidated
goodwill balance was $4,288 million as of December 31, 2024, and the goodwill associated with the Steel
Products segment was $2,816 million, of which a portion relates to a certain reporting unit. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment, on the first day of the fourth quarter, and whenever events or circumstances
change that would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. The evaluation of
impairment involves comparing the current estimated fair value of each reporting unit to the recorded value,
including goodwill. Based on the results of the qualitative assessment, it may be necessary to perform a
quantitative analysis. In these instances, a discounted cash flow model is used to determine the current
estimated fair value of these reporting units. As disclosed by management, significant assumptions used to
determine the fair value of a reporting unit include (i) expected cash flow for the five-year period following
the testing date (including market share, sales volumes and prices, raw material costs and other costs to
produce and estimated capital needs); (ii) an estimated terminal value using a terminal year growth rate
determined based on the growth prospects of the reporting unit; (iii) a discount rate based on
management’s best estimate of the after-tax weighted-average cost of capital; and (iv) a probability-
weighted scenario approach by which varying cash flows are assigned to certain scenarios based on the
likelihood of occurrence.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the goodwill
impairment assessment for a certain reporting unit in the Steel Products segment is a critical audit matter
are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the fair value estimate of a certain
reporting unit in the Steel Products segment and (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and
effort in performing procedures and evaluating management’s significant assumptions related to sales
volumes and prices.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with
forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the
effectiveness of controls relating to management’s goodwill impairment assessments, including controls
over the valuation of a certain reporting unit in the Steel Products segment. These procedures also
included, among others, (i) testing management’s process for developing the fair value estimate of a certain
reporting unit in the Steel Products segment; (ii) evaluating the appropriateness of the discounted cash flow
model; (iii) testing the completeness and accuracy of underlying data used in the discounted cash flow
model; and (iv) evaluating the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used by management related
to sales volumes and prices. Evaluating management’s assumptions related to sales prices and volumes
involved evaluating whether the assumptions used by management were reasonable considering (i) the
current and past performance of the reporting unit; (ii) the consistency with external market and industry
data; and (iii) whether the assumptions were consistent with evidence obtained in other areas of the audit.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Charlotte, North Carolina
February 27, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1989.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions)
December 31,
2024 2023
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,558 $ 6,383
Short-term investments 581 747
Accounts receivable, net 2,675 2,953
Inventories, net 5,106 5,578
Other current assets 555 725
Total current assets 12,475 16,386
Property, plant and equipment, net 13,243 11,050
Restricted cash and cash equivalents — 4
Goodwill 4,288 3,969
Other intangible assets, net 3,134 3,108
Other assets 800 823
Total assets $ 33940 § 35,340
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 225 § 119
Current portion of long-term debt and finance lease obligations 1,042 74
Accounts payable 1,832 2,020
Salaries, wages and related accruals 903 1,326
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 975 1,056
Total current liabilities 4,977 4,595
Long-term debt and finance lease obligations due after one year 5,683 6,649
Deferred credits and other liabilities 1,863 1,973
Total liabilities 12,523 13,217
Commitments and contingencies
Equity
Nucor stockholders’ equity:
Common stock (800.0 shares authorized; 380.2 and 380.2 shares
issued, respectively) 152 152
Additional paid-in capital 2,223 2,176
Retained earnings 30,271 28,762
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes (208) (162)
Treasury stock (147.4 and 135.3 shares, respectively) (12,144) (9,988)
Total Nucor stockholders’ equity 20,294 20,940
Noncontrolling interests 1,123 1,183
Total equity 21,417 22,123
Total liabilities and equity $ 33,940 $ 35,340

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(In millions, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Net sales $ 30,734 $ 34714 $§ 41,512
Costs, expenses and other:
Cost of products sold 26,632 26,899 29,009
Marketing, administrative and other expenses 1,123 1,585 1,997
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates (30) (13) (11)
Losses and impairments of assets 137 — 102
Interest (income) expense, net (30) (30) 170
27,832 28,441 31,267
Earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests 2,902 6,273 10,245
Provision for income taxes 583 1,360 2,166
Net earnings before noncontrolling interests 2,319 4,913 8,079
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling
interests 292 388 472
Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders $ 2,027 $ 4525 $ 7,607
Net earnings per share:
Basic $ 8.47 $ 18.05 $ 28.88
Diluted $ 846 $ 18.00 $ 28.79

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(In millions)
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Net earnings before noncontrolling interests $ 2319 § 4913 § 8,079

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized (loss) gain on hedging derivatives,
net of income taxes of ($3), ($17) and $24
for 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively (6) (52) 77
Reclassification adjustment for gain (loss) on
settlement of hedging derivatives included in net
earnings, net of income taxes of $7 $4, and ($16)

for 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively 21 12 (52)
Foreign currency translation (loss) gain, net of income
taxes of $0 for 2024, 2023 and 2022 (61) 21 (55)

Adjustment to early retiree medical plan, net of income

taxes of $0, ($2) and $2, for 2024, 2023 and

2022, respectively — (5) 6
Reclassification adjustment for (gain) loss on early

retiree medical plan included in net earnings, net of

income taxes of $0 for 2024,

2023 and 2022, respectively — (1) 2
(46) (25) (22)
Comprehensive income 2,273 4,888 8,057
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling
interests 292 388 472
Comprehensive income attributable to Nucor
stockholders $ 1,981 § 4500 $ 7,585

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)

Operating activities:
Net earnings before noncontrolling interests
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Amortization
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Distributions from affiliates
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates
Losses and impairments of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities (exclusive of acquisitions and
dispositions):
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Accounts payable
Federal income taxes
Salaries, wages and related accruals
Other operating activities
Cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Investment in and advances to affiliates
Sale of business
Disposition of plant and equipment
Acquisitions (net of cash acquired)
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from the sale of investments
Other investing activities
Cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Net change in short-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt, net of discount
Repayment of long-term debt
Bond issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Payment of tax withholdings on certain stock-based compensation
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
Cash dividends
Acquisition of treasury stock
Proceeds from government incentives
Other financing activities
Cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash
equivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash
equivalents - end of year
Non-cash investing activity:
Change in accrued plant and equipment purchases

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
$ 2319 $ 4913 $ 8,079
1,094 931 827
262 238 235
132 130 137
(116) 21 (47)
25 34 57
(30) (13) (11)
137 = 102
319 664 501
518 (75) 962
(321) 361 (496)
97 188 (337)
(385) (291) 155
(72) 11 (92)
3,979 7,112 10,072
(3,173) (2,214) (1,948)
_ (35) _
1 = 100
17 15 32
(758) (71) (3,553)
(1,296) (1,472) (914)
1,487 1,317 590
(12) (36) (10)
(3,734) (2,496) (5,703)
105 (25) (59)
— — 2,092
(10) (10) (1,111)
= — (13)
4 12 23
(53) (49) (64)
(352) (435) (332)
(522) (515) (534)
(2,217) (1,554) (2,763)
— — 275
(13) (7) (25)
(3,058) (2,593) (2,511)
(16) 3 (6)
(2,829) 2,026 1,852
6,387 4,361 2,509
$ 3,558 $ 6,387 $ 4,361
$ 115 $ 1 $ 5




NUCOR CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022

1. Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

Nature of Operations

Nucor is principally a manufacturer of steel and steel products, as well as a scrap broker and
processor, with operating facilities and customers primarily located in North America.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include Nucor and its controlled subsidiaries, including Nucor-
Yamato Steel Company (Limited Partnership) (“Nucor-Yamato”), of which Nucor owns 51%; California
Steel Industries, Inc. (“CSI”), of which Nucor owns 51%; and Nucor-JFE Steel Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.
("NJSM"), of which Nucor owns 51%. All intercompany transactions are eliminated.

Distributions are made to noncontrolling interest partners in Nucor-Yamato in accordance with the
limited partnership agreement by mutual agreement of the general partners. At a minimum, sufficient
cash is distributed so that each partner may pay its U.S. federal and state income taxes.

Distributions are made to noncontrolling interest partners in CSl in accordance with the stockholder
agreement.

Distributions are made to the noncontrolling interest partner in NJSM in accordance with the joint
venture agreement.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value, and
have original maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents are
maintained primarily with a few high-credit quality financial institutions.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments are recorded at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on investments
classified as available-for-sale are recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) if material. Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the
time of purchase and re-evaluates such determination at each balance sheet date.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The Company records any amount
required to reduce the carrying value of inventory to net realizable value as a charge to cost of products
sold. Scrap and scrap substitute costs are a very significant component of the raw material, semi-finished
and finished product inventory balances. The vast majority of the Company’s inventory is recorded on the
first-in, first-out method. Production costs are applied to semi-finished and finished product inventory from
the approximate period in which they are produced.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, except for property, plant and equipment acquired
through acquisitions which is recorded at acquisition date fair value. With the exception of our natural gas
wells, depreciation primarily is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Depletion of all capitalized costs associated with our natural gas producing properties is expensed
on a unit-of-production basis by individual field as the gas from the proved developed reserves is
produced. The costs of acquiring unproved natural gas leasehold acreage are capitalized. When proved
reserves are found on unproved properties, the associated leasehold cost is transferred to proved
properties. Unproved leases are reviewed periodically for any impairment triggering event, and a
valuation allowance is provided for any estimated decline in value. The costs of planned major
maintenance activities are capitalized as part of other current assets and amortized over the period until
the next scheduled major maintenance activity. All other repairs and maintenance activities are expensed
when incurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill is the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill is
not amortized but is tested annually for impairment and whenever events or circumstances change that
would make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. We perform our annual
impairment analysis as of the first day of the fourth quarter each year. The evaluation of impairment
involves comparing the current estimated fair value of each reporting unit, which is a level below the
operating segment, to the recorded value, including goodwill. When appropriate, Nucor performs a
qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount. Based on the results of the qualitative assessment, it may be necessary
to perform a quantitative analysis. In these instances, a discounted cash flow model is used to determine
the current estimated fair value of these reporting units. A number of significant assumptions and
estimates are involved in the application of the discounted cash flow model to forecast operating cash
flows, which could include market growth and market share, sales volumes and prices, raw materials and
other costs to produce, discount rate and estimated capital needs. Management considers historical
experience and all available information at the time the fair values of its reporting units are estimated.
Assumptions in estimating future cash flows are subject to a high degree of judgment and complexity.
Changes in assumptions and estimates may affect the fair value of goodwill and could result in
impairment charges in future periods.

Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line or
accelerated basis.

Long-Lived Asset Impairments

We evaluate our property, plant and equipment and finite-lived intangible assets for potential
impairment on an individual asset basis or at the lowest level asset grouping for which independent cash
flows can be separately identified. Asset impairments are assessed whenever circumstances indicate that
the carrying amounts of those productive assets could exceed their projected undiscounted cash flows.
When it is determined that impairment exists, the related assets are written down to their estimated fair
market value.
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Equity Method Investments

Investments in joint ventures in which Nucor shares control over the financial and operating
decisions but in which Nucor is not the primary beneficiary are accounted for under the equity method.
Each of the Company’s equity method investments is subject to a review for impairment if, and when,
circumstances indicate that a decline in fair value below its carrying amount may have occurred.
Examples of such circumstances include, but are not limited to, a significant deterioration in the earnings
performance or business prospects of the investee; missed financial projections; a significant adverse
change in the regulatory, tax, economic or technological environment of the investee; a significant
adverse change in the general market condition of either the geographic area or the industry in which the
investee operates; and recurring negative cash flows from operations. If management considers the
decline to be other than temporary, the Company would write down the related investment to its
estimated fair market value.

Revenue Recognition

Nucor recognizes revenue when obligations under the terms of contracts with our customers are
satisfied and collection is reasonably assured; generally, obligations under the terms of contracts are
satisfied upon shipment or when control is transferred. Revenue is measured as the amount of
consideration expected to be received in exchange for transferring the goods. In addition, revenue is
deferred when cash payments are received or due in advance of performance. See Note 23 for further
information.

Income Taxes

Nucor utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method,
deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and
tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect during the years in which the
basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some of
the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Nucor recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of
being sustained. Potential accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized as a component of interest expense and other expenses.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes the cost of stock-based compensation as an expense using fair value
measurement methods. The assumptions used to calculate the fair value of stock-based compensation
granted are evaluated and revised for new grants, as necessary, to reflect market conditions and
experience.

Foreign Currency Translation

For Nucor’s operations where the functional currency is other than the U.S. dollar, assets and
liabilities have been translated at year-end exchange rates, and income and expenses have been
translated using average exchange rates for the respective periods. Adjustments resulting from the
process of translating an entity’s financial statements into the U.S. dollar have been recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and are included in net earnings only upon sale or
liquidation of the underlying investments. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in
net earnings in the period they occur.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2023, new accounting guidance was issued related to income tax disclosures. The
new guidance requires disaggregated information about a reporting entity’s effective tax rate
reconciliation as well as additional information on income taxes paid. The new guidance is effective on a
prospective basis for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is also permitted
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for annual financial statements that have not yet been issued or made available for issuance. This new
guidance will likely result in additional required disclosures when adopted. The Company is evaluating the
impact that the adoption of this new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2024, new accounting guidance was issued that requires the disaggregated disclosure
of specific expense categories, including purchases of inventory, employee compensation, depreciation,
and amortization, within relevant income statement captions. The new accounting guidance also requires
disclosure of the total amount of selling expenses along with the definition of selling expenses. The new
accounting guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim
periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2027. Adoption of this new accounting guidance
can either be applied prospectively to consolidated financial statements issued for reporting periods after
the effective date or retrospectively to any or all prior periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. Early adoption is also permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact that the adoption of
this new guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2023, new accounting guidance was issued that updates reportable segment
disclosure requirements by requiring disclosures of significant reportable segment expenses that are
regularly provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and included within each reported
measure of a segment's profit or loss. This new guidance also requires disclosure of the title and position
of the individual identified as the CODM and an explanation of how the CODM uses the reported
measures of a segment’s profit or loss in assessing segment performance and deciding how to allocate
resources. The new guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2023, and
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. We adopted this guidance
retrospectively on December 31, 2024. As a result, we have enhanced our segment disclosures to
include the presentation of cost of sales by segment and the disclosure of our CODMs. The adoption of
this accounting guidance affects only our disclosures, with no impacts to our financial condition and
results of operations.

3. Short-term Investments

Nucor held $581 million of short-term investments as of December 31, 2024 ($747 million as of
December 31, 2023). The investments held as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consisted
mainly of certificates of deposit (“CD’s”), commercial paper, corporate bonds and U.S. government
securities, which were classified as available-for-sale. Interest income on the CD’s and corporate bonds
was recorded as earned.

Realized and unrealized gains or losses have been deemed immaterial for disclosure by Nucor
management.
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4. Accounts Receivable

An allowance for credit losses is maintained for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. Accounts receivable are stated net of the allowance for credit
losses of $115 million at December 31, 2024 ($127 million at December 31, 2023 and $200 million at
December 31, 2022).

5. Inventories

Inventories consisted of approximately 34% raw materials and supplies and 66% finished and semi-
finished products at December 31, 2024 (37% and 63%, respectively at December 31, 2023). Nucor’s
manufacturing process consists of a continuous, vertically integrated process from which products are
sold to customers at various stages throughout the process. Since most steel products can be classified
as either finished or semi-finished products, these two categories of inventory are combined.

6. Leases

We lease certain equipment, office space and land. Leases with an initial term of 12 months or less
are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet.

Most leases include one or more options to renew, with renewal terms that can extend the lease
term from one to five years or sometimes more. The exercise of lease renewal options is at our sole
discretion and we consider these options in determining the lease term used to establish our right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities. Certain leases also include options to purchase the leased property. The
depreciable life of assets and leasehold improvements is limited by the expected lease term, unless there
is a transfer of title or a purchase option reasonably certain of exercise.

We determine that a contract contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. In evaluating whether we have the
right to control the use of an identified asset, we assess whether or not we have the right to control the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefit from the use of the
identified asset.

As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate, we use our incremental borrowing rate based
on the information available at the commencement date in determining the present value of lease
payments.

Certain of our lease agreements include payments that adjust periodically for consumption of goods
provided by the right-of-use asset in excess of contractually determined minimum amounts and for
inflation. These variable lease payments are not significant. Our lease agreements do not contain any
material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.
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Supplemental statement of earnings information related to our leases is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

Statement of Earnings Classification 2024 2023 2022
Operating lease cost Cost of products sold $ 18 $ 27 % 24
Operating lease cost Marketing, administrative and

other expenses 11 3 3

Total operating
lease cost $ 29 $ 30 $ 27
Finance lease cost:
Amortization of leased  Cost of products sold

assets $ 30 $ 19 $ 19
Interest on lease Interest expense, net
liabilities 3 12 12
Total finance lease
cost $ 33 § 31 $ 31
Total lease cost $ 62 $ 61 $ 58
Supplemental cash flow information related to our leases is as follows (in millions):
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of lease
liabilities:
Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 30 $ 30 $ 27
Operating cash flows from finance leases $ 11 $ 12 12
Financing cash flows from finance leases $ 14 $ 17 $ 16

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Additions to right-of-use assets obtained from
Operating lease liabilities $ 36 $ 27 $ 34
Finance lease liabilities $ 15 § 16 $ 27

Supplemental balance sheet information related to our leases is as follows (in millions):

December 31,

Balance Sheet Classification 2024 2023
Assets:
Operating lease Other assets $ 107 $ 103
Finance lease Property, plant and equipment, net 163 167
Total leased $ 270 § 270
Liabilities:
Current operating Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities $ 24 $ 25
Current finance Current portion of long-term debt and
finance lease obligations 17 14
Non-current operating Deferred credits and other liabilities 93 82
Non-current finance Long-term debt and finance lease
obligations due after one year 174 175
Total leased $ 308 $ 296
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Weighted-average remaining lease term and discount rate for our leases are as follows:

December 31, 2024

Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 7.8 years
Weighted-average remaining lease term - finance leases 13.1 years
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 4.5%
Weighted-average discount rate - finance leases 10.4%

The reason for the substantial weighted-average discount rate — finance leases, of 10.4%, is due to
Nucor’s past accounting for the respective finance leases under the former accounting guidance for
capital leases. Pursuant to the former lease accounting guidance, the recognition of a capital lease asset
and associated capital lease liability could not exceed the fair market value of the leased asset at the
lease commencement. Accordingly, the incremental borrowing rate was adjusted upward so that the
present value of the minimum lease payments would equal the fair value of the asset.

Maturities of lease liabilities by year for our leases were as follows as of December 31, 2024 (in
millions):

Operating Leases Finance Leases

Maturities of lease liabilities, year ending December 31,

2025 $ 29 $ 25
2026 25 24
2027 19 23
2028 16 22
2029 12 21
Thereafter 41 145
Total lease payments $ 142 $ 260
Less imputed interest (25) (69)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 117  $ 191

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is carried at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Net
property, plant and equipment by major asset class consisted of the following (in millions):

December 31,

2024 2023

Land and improvements, net $ 1,257 $ 1,183
Buildings and improvements 2,764 2,551
Machinery and equipment 17,431 16,328
Proved oil and gas properties 559 559
Leasehold interest in unproved oil and gas properties 96 96
Construction in process and equipment deposits 3,758 2,122
25,865 22,839

Less accumulated depreciation (12,622) (11,789)
$ 13,243 $ 11,050

The estimated useful lives primarily range from five to 25 years for land improvements, four to 40
years for buildings and improvements and two to 15 years for machinery and equipment. The useful life
for proved oil and gas properties is based on the unit-of-production method and varies by well.

Included within property, plant and equipment, net, of the steel mills segment at December 31, 2024
is $235 million of assets, net of accumulated depreciation, related to our consolidated joint venture NJSM.
During the fourth quarter 2024, the Company determined that a triggering event occurred after review of
NJSM'’s most recent annual forecast. The Company performed an impairment assessment to determine if
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the carrying amount of NJSM exceeded its projected undiscounted cash flows. Upon completion of the
assessment, the Company determined that the carrying amount did not exceed its projected
undiscounted cash flows and no impairment charge was required. Nucor will continue to monitor NJSM’s
financial performance. If NJSM’s financial performance underperforms its forecasts, management may
determine that a triggering event has occurred and additional testing may be required.

Raw Materials Segment Asset Impairments

In the fourth quarter of 2022, Nucor decided that it is unlikely to develop the remaining portions of its
unproved oil and natural gas properties. As a result of this decision, Nucor recorded a $96.0 million
impairment charge for the entire balance of those assets, which are included in the raw materials
segment. The impairment charge is included in losses and impairments of assets in the consolidated
statement of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2022. We retain ownership of our leasehold
interest in unproved oil and natural gas properties. The carrying value of the leasehold interest in
unproved oil and gas properties was zero at December 31, 2022.

Financial Assistance Related to Sheet Mill in West Virginia

Nucor received $275 million of financial assistance in 2022 from the West Virginia Department of
Economic Development in connection with Nucor’s planned construction of Nucor Steel West Virginia
(NSWV), a sheet mill in Mason County, West Virginia. Nucor will earn the financial assistance if, by the
Completion Date (defined in the agreement as on or before December 31, 2026), Nucor meets certain
capital investment, full-time jobs creation and total annual payroll criteria. Nucor believes that it is
probable we will meet these conditions. Nucor spent $180 million in 2022 and $95 million in 2023 in
qualifying expenditures for the construction of NSWV, and that amount is included as a contra-asset in
construction in process and equipment deposits that are a part of property, plant and equipment, net on
the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. When the NSWV assets
are placed into service, the effect of depreciating the assets constructed with the financial assistance will
decrease depreciation expense in the consolidated statement of earnings.

8. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The change in the net carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 by segment is as follows:

(in millions)

Steel Steel Raw

Mills Products Materials Total
Balance, December 31, 2022 $ 675 $ 2510 $ 735 $ 3,920
Acquisitions — (2) 45 43
Translation — 6 — 6
Balance, December 31, 2023 675 2,514 780 3,969
Acquisitions — 318 17 335
Translation — (16) — (16)
Balance, December 31, 2024 $ 675 $ 2816 $ 797 $ 4,288

The majority of goodwill is not tax deductible.
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Intangible assets with estimated useful lives of five to 25 years are amortized on a straight-line or
accelerated basis and are comprised of the following:

(in millions)
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Customer relationships $ 4,444 $ 1512 $ 4,190 $ 1,296
Trademarks and trade names 387 192 372 168
Other 129 122 110 100
$ 4960 $ 1,826 $ 4672 $ 1,564

Intangible asset amortization expense was $262 million in 2024 ($238 million in 2023 and $235
million in 2022). Annual amortization expense is estimated to be $253 million in 2025, $248 million in
2026, $245 million in 2027, $242 million in 2028 and $208 million in 2029.

The Company completed its annual goodwill impairment testing as of the first day of the fourth
quarter for each of 2024, 2023 and 2022 and concluded that as of each such date there was no
impairment of goodwill for any of its reporting units.

There are no material historical accumulated impairment charges, by segment or in the aggregate,
related to goodwill.

9. Equity Investments

The carrying value of our equity investments in domestic and foreign companies was $483 million at
December 31, 2024 ($480 million at December 31, 2023), and is recorded in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets.

NuMit

Nucor owns a 50% economic and voting interest in NuMit LLC (“NuMit”). NuMit owns 100% of the
equity interest in Steel Technologies LLC, an operator of 32 sheet processing facilities located throughout
the United States, Canada and Mexico. Nucor accounts for its investment in NuMit (on a one-month lag
basis) under the equity method, as control and risk of loss are shared equally between the members of
NuMit. Nucor’s investment in NuMit was $438 million at December 31, 2024 ($432 million at
December 31, 2023). Nucor received distributions of $25 million, $33 million, and $56 million from NuMit
during 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

All Equity Investments

Nucor reviews its equity investments for impairment if and when circumstances indicate that a
decline in fair value below their carrying amounts may have occurred. There were no triggering events
that caused management to pursue additional testing of our equity method investments in 2024.
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10. Current Liabilities

Book overdrafts, included in accounts payable in the consolidated balance sheets, were $146
million at December 31, 2024 ($159 million at December 31, 2023). Dividends payable, included in
accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, were $129 million at
December 31, 2024 ($134 million at December 31, 2023).

11. Debt and Other Financing Arrangements

December 31,

(in millions) 2024 2023
Industrial revenue bonds due from 2025 to 2061 () $ 1,350 $ 1,350
NJSM notes due from 2025 to 2029 @ 80 80
Notes, 2.000%, due 2025 500 500
Notes, 3.950%, due 2025 500 500
Notes, 4.300%, due 2027 500 500
Term notes, 2.950%, due 2027 ©® 48 58
Notes, 3.950%, due 2028 500 500
Notes, 2.700%, due 2030 500 500
Notes, 3.125%, due 2032 550 550
Notes, 6.400%, due 2037 543 543
Notes, 5.200%, due 2043 338 338
Notes, 4.400%, due 2048 329 329
Notes, 3.850%, due 2052 550 550
Notes, 2.979%, due 2055 439 439
Finance lease obligations 191 189
Total long-term debt and finance lease obligations 6,918 6,926
Less premium on debt exchange 165 171
Less debt issuance costs 28 32
Total amounts outstanding 6,725 6,723
Less current maturities of long-term debt @ (3) 1,025 60
Less current portion of finance lease obligations 17 14

Total long-term debt and finance lease obligations due after

one year $ 5683 $ 6,649

(1) The industrial revenue bonds had variable rates ranging from 3.92% to 4.70% at December 31, 2024 and 4.20%
to 5.10% at December 31, 2023.

(2) The NJSM notes relate to borrowings of NJSM under its General Financing Agreement and Promissory Note (the
“NJSM Facility”). The maximum amount NJSM could borrow under the NJSM Facility was $80 million at
December 31, 2024. The NJSM Facility is uncommitted. Borrowings under the NJSM Facility had variable rates
ranging from 5.46% to 6.88% at December 31, 2024.

(3) The term notes were assumed in conjunction with the acquisition of 51% ownership of CSI on February 1, 2022.
The original principal amount of the notes was $101 million, with a fixed rate of 2.95% until September 30, 2026
when they will convert to a floating rate. Payments of $3 million are due quarterly along with accrued interest.
The term notes mature on March 31, 2027. (See Note 24.)

Annual aggregate long-term debt maturities are: $1.03 billion in 2025, $65 million in 2026, $532
million in 2027, $553 million in 2028, $66 million in 2029 and $4.48 billion thereafter

Nucor's $1.75 billion revolving credit facility remains undrawn and has a maturity date of November
5, 2026. The unsecured revolving credit facility provides up to $1.75 billion in revolving loans and allows
up to $500 million in additional commitments at Nucor’s election in accordance with the terms set forth in
the credit agreement. Up to $100 million of the credit facility is available for the issuance of letters of
credit and up to $500 million is available for the issuance of revolving loans for Nucor subsidiaries in
accordance with the terms set forth in the credit agreement. The credit facility provides for a pricing grid
based upon the credit rating of Nucor’s senior unsecured long-term debt and, alternatively, interest rates
quoted by lenders in connection with competitive bidding. The credit facility includes customary financial
and other covenants, including a limit on the ratio of funded debt to total capital of 60%, a limit on Nucor’s
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ability to pledge the Company’s assets and a limit on consolidations, mergers and sales of assets. As of
December 31, 2024, Nucor’s funded debt to total capital ratio was 25%, and Nucor was in compliance
with all covenants under the credit facility. No borrowings were outstanding under the credit facility as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

On March 11, 2022, Nucor completed the issuance and sale of $550 million aggregate principal
amount of its 3.125% Notes due 2032 (the “2032 Notes”) and $550 million aggregate principal amount of
its 3.850% Notes due 2052 (the “2052 Notes” and, together with the 2032 Notes, the “2032/2052 Notes”).
The net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes were used along with cash on hand
to redeem all of the outstanding $600 million aggregate principal amount of our 4.125% Notes due 2022
(the “2022 Notes”) and $500 million aggregate principal amount of our 4.000% Notes due 2023 (the “2023
Notes”) pursuant to the terms of the indenture governing the 2022 Notes and the 2023 Notes. The net
proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes were $1.09 billion, after expenses and the
underwriting discount. Costs of $15 million associated with the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes
have been capitalized and will be amortized over the life of the 2032/2052 Notes.

On April 25, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $500 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the
2023 Notes using a portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052 Notes. On
August 15, 2022, Nucor redeemed all $600 million aggregate principal amount outstanding of the 2022
Notes using the remaining portion of the net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2032/2052
Notes.

On May 23, 2022, Nucor completed the issuance and sale of $500 million aggregate principal
amount of its 3.950% Notes due 2025 (the “2025 Notes”) and $500 million aggregate principal amount of
its 4.300% Notes due 2027 (the “2027 Notes” and, together with the 2025 Notes, the “2025/2027 Notes”).
The net proceeds from the issuance and sale of the 2025/2027 Notes were used for general corporate
purposes and to pay a portion of the purchase price for the acquisition of C.H.l. The net proceeds from
the issuance and sale of the 2025/2027 Notes were $992 million, after expenses and the underwriting
discount. Costs of $6 million associated with the issuance and sale of the 2025/2027 Notes have been
capitalized and will be amortized over the life of the 2025/2027 Notes.

Harris Steel has credit facilities totaling approximately $18 million, with no outstanding borrowings at
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

The business of Nucor Trading S.A. is financed by uncommitted trade credit arrangements with a
number of European banking institutions. As of December 31, 2024, Nucor Trading S.A. had outstanding
borrowings of $45 million ($24 million as of December 31, 2023). NJSM maintains an uncommitted trade
credit agreement with three banking institutions. As of December 31, 2024, NJSM had outstanding
borrowings of $180 million ($95 million as of December 31, 2023) under the trade credit agreement.
Nucor Trading S.A. and NJSM's credit arrangements are presented in short-term debt in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Letters of credit totaling $59 million were outstanding as of December 31, 2024 ($58 million as of
December 31, 2023), related to certain obligations, including workers’ compensation, utilities deposits and
credit arrangements by Nucor Trading S.A. for commitments to purchase inventories.

12. Capital Stock

The par value of Nucor's common stock is $0.40 per share and there are 800 million shares
authorized. In addition, 250,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $4.00 per share, are authorized, with
preferences, rights and restrictions as may be fixed by the Board of Directors. There are no shares of
preferred stock issued or outstanding.

Dividends declared per share were $2.170 in 2024 ($2.070 in 2023 and $2.010 per share in 2022).
The Company repurchased approximately $2.22 billion of its common stock in 2024 (approximately

$1.55 billion in 2023 and $2.76 billion in 2022).
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On May 11, 2023, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had approved a share
repurchase program under which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $4.00 billion of the
Company’s common stock and terminated all previously authorized share repurchase programs. Share
repurchases are made from time to time in the open market at prevailing market prices or through private
transactions or block trades. The timing and amount of repurchases will depend on market conditions,
share price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The share repurchase authorization is
discretionary and has no expiration date. At December 31, 2024, the Company had approximately $1.11
billion available for share repurchases under the program authorized by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

13. Derivative Financial Instruments

The following tables summarize information regarding Nucor’s derivative financial instruments

(in millions):

Fair Value at
December 31,

Fair Value of Derivative Financial
Instruments Consolidated Balance Sheet Location 2024 2023

Asset derivatives designated
as hedging instruments:
Commodity contracts Other current assets $ 4 $ —
Commodity contracts Other assets 2 —
Total asset derivatives
designated as hedging
instruments 6 —
Asset derivatives not
designated as hedging

instruments:
Foreign exchange contracts Other current assets 1 —
Total asset derivatives $ 7 % —

Liability derivatives designated
as hedging instruments:
Commodity contracts Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 4) $ (15)
Commodity contracts Deferred credits and other liabilities — (4
Total liability derivatives
designated as hedging
instruments 4) (19)
Liability derivatives not designated
as hedging instruments:
Commodity contracts Accrued expenses and other current liabilities — (4)
Total liability derivatives $ 4) $ (23)

The Effect of Derivative Financial Instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments for the Year Ended December 31, (in millions)

Amount of Gain or
(Loss), Net of Tax,

Amount of Gain or (Loss), Reclassified from Amount of Gain or (Loss),
Statement of Net of Tax, Recognized Accumulated OCI into Net of Tax, Recognized
Derivatives in Cash Flow Earnings in OCI on Derivatives Earnings on Derivatives in Earnings on Derivatives
Hedging Relationships Location (Effective Portion) (Effective Portion) (Ineffective Portion)
2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
Commodity contracts Cogiel il
sold $ 6) $ (52) $ 7 % 21) $ (12) $ 52 § — 3 — $ —

At December 31, 2024, natural gas swaps covering approximately 33 million MMBTUs (extending
through December 2026) were outstanding.
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14. Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes information regarding Nucor’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value. Nucor does not have any non-financial assets or liabilities that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis.

(in millions)
Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Carrying Markets for Other Significant
Amount in Identical Observable Unobservable
Consolidated Assets Inputs Inputs

Description Balance Sheets (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
As of December 31, 2024
Assets:

Cash equivalents $ 2821 $ 2821 $ — 9 —

Short-term investments 581 581

Derivative contracts 7 — 7 —

Restricted cash and cash

equivalents — — — —

Other assets 96 27 — 69
Total assets $ 3,505 $ 3,429 $ 7 $ 69
Liabilities:

Derivative contracts $ 4) $ — 3 4) $ —
As of December 31, 2023
Assets:

Cash equivalents $ 5725 $ 5,725 $ — 9 —

Short-term investments 747 747 — —

Derivative contracts - — — —

Restricted cash and cash

equivalents 3 3 — —

Other assets 48 4 — 44
Total assets $ 6,523 $ 6,479 $ —  $ 44
Liabilities:

Derivative contracts $ (23) § — (23) $ —

Fair value measurements for Nucor’s cash equivalents, short-term investments and restricted cash
and cash equivalents and an investment in a publicly traded nuclear power equipment manufacturer are
classified under Level 1 because such measurements are based on quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets. Fair value measurements for Nucor’s derivatives, which are typically
commodity or foreign exchange contracts, are classified under Level 2 because such measurements are
based on published market prices for similar assets or are estimated based on observable inputs such as
interest rates, yield curves, credit risks, spot and future commaodity prices, and spot and future exchange
rates. Fair value measurements of Nucor's investments in privately held companies, most of which is in a
nuclear fusion technology company, are classified under Level 3 because such measurements are based
on unobservable inputs that indicate a change in fair value, including the transaction price in the event of
a change in ownership of the investee (e.g. the sale of other investors' interest in the company) or the
transaction price in the event of additional equity issuances of the investee. There were no transfers
between levels in the fair value hierarchy for the periods presented.

The fair value of short-term and long-term debt, including current maturities, was approximately
$6.19 billion at December 31, 2024 (approximately $6.22 billion at December 31, 2023). The debt fair
value estimates are classified under Level 2 because such estimates are based on readily available
market prices of our debt at December 31, 2024 and 2023, or similar debt with the same maturities,
ratings and interest rates.
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15. Contingencies

We are from time to time a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in
the ordinary course of business. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we record
reserves when it is probable a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated. We do not believe that any of these proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, would be
expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
Nucor maintains liability insurance with self-insurance limits for certain risks.

16. Stock-Based Compensation
Overview

The Company maintains the Nucor Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the
“Omnibus Plan”) under which the Company may award stock-based compensation to key employees,
officers and non-employee directors. The Company’s stockholders approved an amendment and
restatement of the Omnibus Plan on May 14, 2020. The Company also amended the Omnibus Plan on
September 14, 2023. The Omnibus Plan, as amended and restated, permits the award of stock options,
restricted stock units, restricted shares and other stock-based awards for up to 19 million shares of the
Company’s common stock. As of December 31, 2024, 3 million shares remained available for award
under the Omnibus Plan.

The Company also maintains a number of inactive plans under which stock-based awards remain
outstanding but no further awards may be made. As of December 31, 2024, 0.1 million shares were
reserved for issuance upon the future settlement of outstanding awards under such inactive plans.

Stock Options

Stock options may be granted to Nucor’s key employees, officers and non-employee directors with
exercise prices at 100% of the market value on the date of the grant. The stock options granted are
generally exercisable at the end of three years and have a term of 10 years.

A summary of activity under Nucor’s stock option plans is as follows (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Number of shares under stock options:
Outstanding at beginning of year 718 $ 78.33 837 $ 66.76 1,186 $ 55.58
Granted 73 $168.85 91 $133.03 98 $130.71
Exercised (64) $ 55.84 (210) $ 55.85 (447) $ 51.14
Canceled (3) $168.85 — 3 — — —
Outstanding at end of year 724 $ 89.06 718 $ 78.33 837 $ 66.76
Stock options exercisable at end of year 490 $ 63.65 433 $ 48.33 313 $§ 59.60

The total intrinsic value of stock options (the amount by which the stock price exceeded the exercise
price of the stock option on the date of exercise) that were exercised during 2024 was $9 million ($25
million in 2023 and $32 million in 2022).
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2024
(shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average  Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$40.00 - $70.00 355 b5.2years $§ 44.06 355 $ 44.06
$70.01 - $100.00 — O0.0years $ — — —
$100.01 - $130.00 116 6.4 years $ 110.74 116 $ 110.74
$130.01 - $160.00 183 7.9vyears $ 131.86 16 $ 131.44
$160.01 - $168.85 70 9.4 vyears $ 168.85 4 $ 168.85
$40.00 - $168.85 724 6.5years $ 89.06 491 $ 63.65

As of December 31, 2024, the total aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and stock
options exercisable was $26 million and $26 million, respectively.

The grant date fair value of stock options granted was $67.83 per share in 2024 ($49.62 per share
in 2023 and $45.27 per share in 2022). The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes options
pricing model with the following assumptions:

2024 2023 2022
Exercise price $ 168.85 $ 133.03 $ 130.71
Expected dividend yield 1.28% 1.53% 1.53%
Expected stock price volatility 37.69% 37.55% 35.77%
Risk-free interest rate 4.52% 3.66 % 2.98 %
Expected life (years) 6.5 6.5 6.5

Stock options granted to employees who are eligible for retirement on the date of the grant are
expensed immediately since these awards vest upon retirement from the Company. Retirement, for
purposes of vesting in these stock options, means termination of employment after satisfying age and
years of service requirements. Similarly, stock options granted to employees who will become retirement-
eligible prior to the end of the vesting term are expensed over the period through which the employee will
become retirement-eligible. Compensation expense for stock options granted to employees who will not
become retirement-eligible prior to the end of the vesting term is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Compensation expense for stock options was $5 million in 2024 ($5 million in 2023
and $5 million in 2022). As of December 31, 2024, unrecognized compensation expense related to stock
options was $2 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years.

Restricted Stock Units

Nucor annually grants restricted stock units (“RSUs”) to key employees, officers and non-employee
directors. The RSUs granted to key employees and officers vest and are converted to common stock in
three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date, provided that a portion
of the RSUs awarded to an officer prior to 2018 vest only upon the officer’s retirement. Retirement, for
purposes of vesting in these RSUs only, means termination of employment with approval of the
Compensation and Executive Development Committee of the Board of Directors after satisfying age and
years of service requirements. RSUs granted to a non-employee director are fully vested on the grant
date and are payable to the non-employee director in the form of common stock after the termination of
the director’s service on the Board of Directors.

RSUs granted to employees who are eligible for retirement on the date of the grant are expensed
immediately, and RSUs granted to employees who will become retirement-eligible prior to the end of the
vesting term are expensed over the period through which the employee will become retirement-eligible
since these awards vest upon retirement from the Company. Compensation expense for RSUs granted to
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employees who will not become retirement-eligible prior to the end of the vesting term is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Cash dividend equivalents are paid to holders of RSUs each quarter. Dividend equivalents paid on
RSUs expected to vest are recognized as a reduction in retained earnings.

The fair value of an RSU is determined based on the closing price of Nucor’'s common stock on the
date of the grant.

A summary of Nucor’'s RSU activity is as follows (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

Restricted stock units:

Unvested at beginning of year 947 $ 124.89 1,003 $ 98.66 1,167 $ 60.45
Granted 749 $ 168.85 831 $ 133.03 774 $ 130.71
Vested (651) $ 143.20 (873) $ 102.79 (916) $ 77.21
Canceled (24) $ 149.59 (14) $ 106.76 (22) $ 93.73
Unvested at end of year 1,021 $ 144.89 947 $ 124.89 1,003 $ 98.66

Compensation expense for RSUs was $106 million in 2024 ($88 million in 2023 and $80 million in
2022). The total fair value of shares vested during 2024 was $110 million ($121 million in 2023 and $120
million in 2022). As of December 31, 2024, unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
RSUs was $101 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.1 years.

Restricted Stock Awards

Prior to their expiration effective December 31, 2017, the Nucor Corporation Senior Officers Long-
Term Incentive Plan and the Nucor Corporation Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan authorized the
award of shares of common stock to officers subject to certain conditions and restrictions. Effective
January 1, 2018, the Company adopted supplements to the Omnibus Plan with terms that permit the
award of shares of common stock to officers subject to the conditions and restrictions described below,
which are substantially similar to those of the expired Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan and
Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan. The expired Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan, together
with the applicable supplement, is referred to below as the “LTIP,” and the expired Senior Officers Annual
Incentive Plan, together with the applicable supplement, is referred to below as the “AlP.”

The LTIP provides for the award of shares of restricted common stock at the end of each LTIP
performance measurement period at no cost to officers if certain financial performance goals are met
during the period. One-third of the LTIP restricted stock award vests upon each of the first three
anniversaries of the award date or, if earlier, upon the officer’s attainment of age 55 while employed by
Nucor. Although participants are entitled to cash dividends and may vote such awarded shares, the sale
or transfer of such shares is limited during the restricted period.

The AIP provides for the payment of annual cash incentive awards. An AIP participant may elect,
however, to defer payment of up to one-half of an AIP award. In such event, the deferred AIP award is
converted into common stock units and credited with a deferral incentive, in the form of additional
common stock units, equal to 25% of the number of common stock units attributable to the deferred AIP
award. Common stock units attributable to deferred AIP awards are fully vested. Common stock units
credited as a deferral incentive vest upon the AIP participant’s attainment of age 55 while employed by
Nucor. Vested common stock units are paid to AIP participants in the form of shares of common stock
following their termination of employment with Nucor.
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A summary of Nucor’s restricted stock activity under the AIP and the LTIP is as follows (shares in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Restricted stock units and restricted
stock awards:

Unvested at beginning of year 210 $ 145.55 209 $ 108.55 107 $ 57.17
Granted 421 $ 187.54 414 $ 171.38 465 $ 128.62
Vested (383) $ 175.06 (406) $ 152.68 (356) $ 119.29
Canceled — 5 — (7) $ 154.05 (7) $ 113.86
Unvested at end of year 248 $ 169.36 210 $ 145.55 209 $ 108.55

Compensation expense for common stock and common stock units awarded under the AIP and the
LTIP is recorded over the performance measurement and vesting periods based on the anticipated
number and market value of shares of common stock and common stock units to be awarded.
Compensation expense for anticipated awards based upon Nucor’s financial performance, exclusive of
amounts payable in cash, was $21 million in 2024 ($38 million in 2023 and $51 million in 2022). The total
fair value of shares vested during 2024 was $71 million ($69 million in 2023 and $46 million in 2022). As
of December 31, 2024, unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested restricted stock awards
was $10 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.7 years.

17. Employee Benefit Plans

Nucor makes contributions to a Profit Sharing and Retirement Savings Plan for qualified employees
based on the profitability of the Company. Nucor’s expense for these benefits totaled $298 million in 2024
($611 million in 2023 and $994 million in 2022). The related liability for these benefits is included in
salaries, wages and related accruals in the consolidated balance sheets.

Nucor also has a medical plan covering certain eligible early retirees. The unfunded obligation,
included in deferred credits and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, totaled $35 million at
December 31, 2024 ($33 million at December 31, 2023). The expense associated with this early retiree
medical plan totaled $3 million in 2024 ($0.3 million in 2023 and $2 million in 2022). The discount rate
used by Nucor in determining its benefit obligation was 5.7% in 2024 (5.0% in 2023 and 5.2% in 2022).
The health care cost increase trend rate used was 6.3% in 2024 (6.8% in 2023 and 6.3% in 2022). The
health care cost increase trend rate is projected to decline gradually to 4.0% by 2050.

18. Interest (Income) Expense

The components of net interest (income) expense are as follows (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Interest expense $ 228 $ 246 $ 219
Interest income (258) (276) (49)
Interest (income) expense, net $ (30) $ (30) $ 170

Interest paid was $256 million in 2024 ($257 million in 2023 and $230 million in 2022).
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19. Income Taxes

Components of earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests are as follows (in
millions):

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

United States $ 2,884 $ 6,204 $ 10,213
Foreign 18 69 32
$ 2,902 $ 6,273 § 10,245

The provision for income taxes consists of the following (in millions):

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Current:
Federal $ 587 $ 1,128 $ 1,896
State 77 194 304
Foreign 35 17 13
Total current 699 1,339 2,213
Deferred:
Federal (108) 20 77
State (7) (19) (120)
Foreign (1) 20 (4)
Total deferred (116) 21 (47)
Total provision for income taxes $ 583 $ 1,360 $ 2,166

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax rate (21%) to the total provision is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Taxes computed at statutory rate 21.00% 21.00% 21.00%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 1.79% 2.14% 1.41%
Federal research credit -1.55% -0.51% -0.10%
Equity in losses of foreign joint venture 0.00 % 0.17% 0.11%
Foreign rate differential -0.10% 0.10% 0.00%
Foreign valuation allowance 1.13% 0.08 % 0.00%
Noncontrolling interests -2.33% -1.27% -0.85%
Other, net 0.15% -0.03% -0.44 %
Provision for income taxes 20.09% 21.68 % 21.13%

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the effective tax rate on continuing operations was 20.09%
compared to 21.68% for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities resulted from the following (in millions):

December 31,

2024 2023
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued liabilities and reserves $ 248 % 253
Allowance for doubtful accounts 40 39
Inventory 87 141
Research and development expenditures 207 134
Post-retirement benefits 9 8
Hedges — 5
Net operating loss carryforward 113 94
Tax credit carryforwards 127 216
Other deferred tax assets 14 12
Valuation allowance (152) (210)
Total deferred tax assets 693 692
Deferred tax liabilities:
Holdbacks and amounts not due under contracts (12) (16)
Hedges (1) —
Intangibles (690) (706)
Property, plant and equipment (1,085) (1,170)
Other deferred tax liabilities (53) (48)
Book/Tax differences on debt modifications (44) (44)
Total deferred tax liabilities (1,885) (1,984)
Total net deferred tax liabilities $ (1,192) $ (1,292)

Non-current deferred tax assets included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets were
$44 million at December 31, 2024 ($41 million at December 31, 2023). Non-current deferred tax liabilities
included in deferred credits and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets were $1.24 billion at
December 31, 2024 ( $1.33 billion at December 31, 2023). Current federal and state income taxes
receivable included in other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets were $218 million at
December 31, 2024 ($346 million at December 31, 2023). Nucor paid $508 million in net federal, state
and foreign income taxes in 2024 ($1.06 billion and $2.63 billion in 2023 and 2022, respectively).

Nucor has not recognized deferred tax liabilities on its investment in foreign subsidiaries with
undistributed earnings that satisfy the permanent reinvestment requirements (the deferred tax liabilities
on the investments not permanently reinvested are immaterial). While Nucor considers future earnings to
be permanently reinvested, it is expected that potential future distributions will likely be nontaxable. If this
assertion of permanent reinvestment were to change, there may be deferred tax liabilities related to the
withholding tax impacts on the actual distribution of certain cumulative undistributed foreign earnings, but
the Company believes this amount to be immaterial.

State NOL carryforwards were $200 million at December 31, 2024 ($185 million at December 31,
2023). If unused, they will expire between 2025 and 2044. Foreign NOL carryforwards were $355 million
at December 31, 2024 ($326 million at December 31, 2023). If unused, the foreign NOL carryforwards will
expire between 2026 and 2034.
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At December 31, 2024, Nucor had approximately $212 million of unrecognized tax benefits, of which
$209 million would affect Nucor's effective tax rate, if recognized. At December 31, 2023, Nucor had
approximately $188 million of unrecognized tax benefits, of which $188 million would affect Nucor's
effective tax rate, if recognized.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits recorded in
deferred credits and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets is as follows (in millions):

December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Balance at beginning of year $ 188 $ 142 § 95
Additions based on tax positions related to current year 31 44 55
Reductions based on tax positions related to
current year — — —
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years 7 10 13
Reductions based on tax positions related to
prior years (8) (1) (9)
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities — — —
Reductions due to statute of limitations lapse (6) (7) (12)
Balance at end of year $ 212 $ 188 §$ 142

We estimate that in the next 12 months, our gross uncertain tax positions, exclusive of interest,
could decrease by as much as $32 million, as a result of the expiration of the applicable statute of
limitations.

During 2024, Nucor recognized $12 million of expense in interest and penalties ($10 million of
expense in 2023 and $9 million of expense in 2022). The interest and penalties are included in interest
expense, net and marketing, administrative and other expenses, respectively, in the consolidated
statements of earnings. As of December 31, 2024, Nucor had approximately $50 million of accrued
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions (approximately $37 million at December 31,
2023). The accrued interest and penalties are included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
and deferred credits and other liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets.

The IRS is currently examining Nucor’s 2015, 2019, and 2020 federal income tax returns. Nucor has
concluded U.S. federal income tax matters for tax years through 2014, and for the tax years 2016 through
2018. The tax years 2021 through 2023 remain open to examination by the IRS. The 2015 through 2021
Canadian income tax returns for Nucor Rebar Fabrication Group Inc. (formerly known as Harris Steel
Group Inc.) and certain related affiliates are currently under examination by the Canada Revenue
Agency. The tax years 2016 through 2023 remain open to examination by other major taxing jurisdictions
to which Nucor is subject (primarily Canada, Trinidad & Tobago, and other state and local jurisdictions).
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20. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following tables reflect the changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by
component (in millions):

Gains and Foreign Adjustment
(Losses) on Currency to Early
Hedging Gains Retiree
Derivatives (Losses) Medical Plan Total
December 31, 2023 $ (14) $ (159) $ 1 $ (162)
Other comprehensive income
(loss) before reclassifications (6) (61) — (67)
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income
(loss) into earnings () 21 — — 21
Net current-period other
comprehensive income (loss) 15 (61) — (46)
December 31, 2024 $ 1% (220) $ 11 $ (208)

(1) Includes $21 and $(0) net-of-tax impact of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) reclassifications into
cost of products sold for net losses on commaodity contracts and adjustment to early retiree medical plan,
respectively. The tax impacts of these reclassifications were $7 and $(0), respectively.

Gains and Foreign Adjustment
(Losses) on Currency to Early
Hedging Gains Retiree
Derivatives (Losses) Medical Plan Total
December 31, 2022 $ 26 $ (180) $ 17 % (137)
Other comprehensive income
(loss) before reclassifications (52) 21 (5) (36)
Amounts reclassified from
accumulated other
comprehensive income
(loss) into earnings @) 12 — (1) 11
Net current-period other
comprehensive income (loss) (40) 21 (6) (25)
December 31, 2023 $ (14) $ (159) $ 11 $ (162)

(2) Includes $12 and $(1) net-of-tax impact of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) reclassifications into
cost of products sold for net losses on commodity contracts and adjustment to early retiree medical plan,
respectively. The tax impacts of these reclassifications were $4 and $(0.30), respectively.
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21. Earnings Per Share

The computations of basic and diluted net earnings per share are as follows (in millions, except per
share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Basic net earnings per share:
Basic net earnings $ 2027 $ 4525 % 7,607
Earnings allocated to participating securities (9) (17) (31)
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 2,018 $ 4508 $ 7,576
Basic average shares outstanding 238.3 249.8 262.3
Basic net earnings per share $ 847 § 18.05 § 28.88
Diluted net earnings per share:
Diluted net earnings $ 2,027 % 4525 $ 7,607
Earnings allocated to participating securities (9) (17) (30)
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 2018 $ 4508 $ 7,577
Diluted average shares outstanding:
Basic average shares outstanding 238.3 249.8 262.3
Dilutive effect of stock options and other 0.2 0.6 0.9
238.5 250.4 263.2
Diluted net earnings per share $ 846 $ 18.00 $ 28.79

The following stock options were excluded from the computation of diluted net earnings per share
because their effect would have been anti-dilutive (shares in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
Anti-dilutive stock options:
Weighted-average shares 35 - 25
Weighted-average exercise price $ 16885 $ — $ 130.71

22. Segments

Nucor reports its results in the following segments: steel mills, steel products and raw materials. The
steel mills segment includes carbon and alloy steel in sheet, bars, structural and plate; steel trading
businesses; rebar distribution businesses; and Nucor’s equity method investments in NuMit and NJSM
(the latter of which Nucor acquired an additional 1% interest in the fourth quarter of 2023, bringing our
total equity ownership to a 51% controlling interest). The steel products segment includes steel joists and
joist girders, steel deck, fabricated concrete reinforcing steel, cold finished steel, precision castings, steel
fasteners, metal building systems, insulated metal panels, steel grating, tubular products businesses,
steel racking, piling products business, wire and wire mesh, overhead doors, and utility towers and
structures. The raw materials segment includes The David J. Joseph Company and its affiliates (“DJJ”),
primarily a scrap broker and processor; Nu-lron Unlimited and Nucor Steel Louisiana LLC, two facilities
that produce direct reduced iron used by the steel mills; and our natural gas production operations.

Corporate/eliminations include items such as net interest expense on long-term debt, charges and
credits associated with changes in allowances to eliminate intercompany profit in inventory, profit sharing
expense and stock-based compensation. Corporate assets primarily include cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments, restricted cash and cash equivalents, allowances to eliminate intercompany profit
in inventory, deferred income tax assets, federal and state income taxes receivable and investments in
and advances to affiliates.

Segment results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Makers
("CODMSs"), the President and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, to manage the
business, make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and to assess performance.
The measure of profit and loss that is used by the CODMs to assess segment performance and to
allocate resources is earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling interests by segment
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(“segment earnings”). Our CODMs evaluate each segment’s performance based on metrics such as net
sales, segment earnings and other key financial indicators, guiding strategic decisions to align with
company-wide goals.

Segment cost of products sold is considered a significant segment expense and is regularly
provided to the CODM. Segment cost of products sold includes amounts related to both net sales to
external customers and intercompany sales.

Nucor’s results by segment were as follows (in millions):

2024
Steel Raw
Steel Mills Products Materials Totals
Sales
Net sales to external customers $ 18,734 $ 10,085 $ 1,915 $ 30,734
Intercompany sales 4,309 553 11,365 16,227
Total Sales 23,043 10,638 13,280 46,961
Reconciliation of Sales
Elimination of intercompany sales (16,227)
Net sales to external customers 30,734
Less:
Cost of products sold 20,766 8,644 11,028 40,438
Other segment items 51 398 2,212 2,661
Segment earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests 2,226 1,596 40 3,862
Reconciliation of earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests
Corporate/eliminations (960)
Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling
interests $ 2,902
2023
Steel Raw
Steel Mills Products Materials Totals
Sales
Net sales to external customers $ 20,093 $ 12,759 $ 1,862 $ 34,714
Intercompany sales 4,812 456 12,364 17,632
Total Sales 24,905 13,215 14,226 52,346
Reconciliation of Sales
Elimination of intercompany sales (17,632)
Net sales to external customers 34,714
Less:
Cost of products sold 21,120 9,357 11,787 42,264
Other segment items 73 414 2,185 2,672
Segment earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests 3,712 3,444 254 7,410
Reconciliation of earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests
Corporate/eliminations (1,137)
Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling
interests $ 6,273
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2022

Steel Raw
Steel Mills Products Materials Totals
Sales
Net sales to external customers $ 24190 $ 15060 $ 2,262 $ 41,512
Intercompany sales 5,859 547 13,715 20,121
Total Sales 30,049 15,607 15,977 61,633
Reconciliation of Sales
Elimination of intercompany sales (20,121)
Net sales to external customers 41,512
Less:
Cost of products sold 22,760 11,213 13,020 46,993
Other segment items 90 301 2,460 2,851
Segment earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests 7,199 4,093 497 11,789
Reconciliation of earnings before income taxes and
noncontrolling interests
Corporate/eliminations (1,544)
Earnings before income taxes and noncontrolling
interests $ 10,245
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Depreciation expense:
Steel mills $ 728 $ 611 $ 529
Steel products 150 131 116
Raw materials 197 174 171
Corporate 19 15 11
$ 1,094 % 931 $ 827
Amortization expense:
Steel mills $ 8 $ 8 $ 8
Steel products 226 202 199
Raw materials 28 28 28
$ 262 § 238 $ 235
Segment assets:
Steel mills $ 16,582 $ 15407 $ 14,157
Steel products 11,235 10,915 12,087
Raw materials 3,656 3,547 3,383
Corporate/eliminations 2,467 5,471 2,852
$ 33940 $ 35340 $ 32,479
Capital expenditures:
Steel mills $ 2238 $ 1,440 $ 1,453
Steel products 497 367 267
Raw materials 478 353 182
Corporate 75 55 50
$ 328 § 2215 § 1,952
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Net sales by product were as follows (in millions). Further product group breakdown is
impracticable.

Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Net sales to external customers:

Sheet $ 9,248 §$ 9,147 $ 11,438
Bar 5,190 5,994 7,032
Structural 2,276 2,429 2,928
Plate 2,020 2,523 2,792
Tubular Products 1,292 1,588 1,945
Rebar Fabrication 1,777 2,182 2,206
Joist 1,230 2,212 2,958
Deck 998 1,712 2,392
Building Systems 1,347 1,376 1,793
Other Steel Products 3,441 3,689 3,766
Raw Materials 1,915 1,862 2,262

$ 30,734 $ 34,714 $ 41,512

23. Revenue

Nucor recognizes revenue when obligations under the terms of contracts with our customers are
satisfied and collection is reasonably assured; generally, obligations under the terms of contracts are
satisfied upon shipment or when control is transferred. Revenue is measured as the amount of
consideration expected to be received in exchange for transferring the goods. In addition, revenue is
deferred when cash payments are received or due in advance of performance.

The durations of Nucor’s contracts with customers are generally one year or less. Customer
payment terms are generally 30 days.

Contract liabilities are primarily related to deferred revenue resulting from cash payments received
in advance from customers to protect against credit risk. Contract liabilities totaled $200 million as of
December 31, 2024 ($314 million as of December 31, 2023), and are included in accrued expenses and
other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The amount of revenue recognized from the
December 31, 2023 contract liabilities balance during 2024 was approximately $177 million.

Nucor disaggregates its revenues by major source in the same manner as presented in the net
sales by product table in the segment footnote (see Note 22).

Steel Mills Segment

Sheet — For the majority of sheet products, we transfer control and recognize a sale when we ship
the product from the sheet mill to our customer. The amount of consideration we receive and revenue we
recognize for spot market sales are based upon prevailing prices at the time of sale. The amount of
consideration we receive and revenue we recognize for contract customers are based primarily on pricing
formulas that incorporate monthly or quarterly price adjustments which reflect changes in the current
market-based indices and/or raw material costs near the time of shipment.

The amount of tons sold to contract customers at any given time depends on a variety of factors,
including our consideration of current and future market conditions, our strategy to appropriately balance
spot and contract tons in a manner to meet our customers’ requirements while considering the expected
profitability, our desire to sustain a diversified customer base and our end-use customers’ perceptions
about future market conditions. These contracts are typically one year or less. Contract sales within the
steel mills segment are most notable in our sheet operations, as it is common for contract sales to
account for the majority of sheet sales in a given year.
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Bar, Structural and Plate — For the majority of bar, structural and plate products, we transfer control
and recognize a sale when we ship the product from the mill to our customer. The significant majority of
bar, structural and plate product sales are spot market sales, and the amount of consideration we receive
and revenue we recognize for those sales are based upon prevailing prices at the time of sale.

Steel Products Segment

Tubular Products — The tubular products businesses transfer control and recognize a sale when the
products are shipped from our operating locations to our customers. The majority of tubular product sales
are spot market sales, and the amount of consideration we receive and revenue we recognize for those
sales are based upon prevailing prices at the time of sale.

Rebar Fabrication — The majority of revenue is derived from contracts with customers for the supply
of fabricated rebar. As the majority of contracts with customers are fixed price contracts to complete a job,
control transfers over time and revenue is recognized (if collection is reasonably assured) over time using
an input method, based on the amount of rebar shipped from the Company’s operating locations relative
to the total expected amount of rebar required to complete the job.

For contracts to supply fabricated rebar and install it at the customer’s job site, there are two
performance obligations: (1) the supply of the fabricated rebar and (2) the installation of the supplied
rebar at the customer’s job site. For the supply of fabricated rebar performance obligation, the transaction
price allocated to this performance obligation is determined at the start of the contract, based on the
awarded contract price for the supplied fabricated rebar and revenue is recognized over time based on
the amount of rebar shipped from the Company’s operating locations relative to the total expected
amount of rebar required to complete the job. For the installation of supplied rebar performance
obligation, the transaction price allocated to this performance obligation is determined at the start of the
contract, based on the awarded contract price for the installation of fabricated rebar and revenue is
recognized over time based on the amount of rebar installed relative to the total expected amount of rebar
required to be installed to complete the job.

While a majority of the contracts with customers are fixed price contracts to complete a job, variable
consideration can occur from contract modifications relating to change orders and price escalations
caused by changes in underlying material costs. In these situations, the additional variable consideration
is recognized cumulatively in the period in which the contract modification is approved and collection is
reasonably assured unless the change order relates to additional distinct goods or services at standalone
selling prices in which case they are accounted for prospectively. Management reviews these situations
on a case-by-case basis and considers a variety of factors, including relevant experience with similar
types of performance obligations, the Company’s experience with the customer and collectability
considerations.

Other Steel Products — Other steel products include our joist, deck, cold finish, metal building
systems, insulated metal panels, piling, overhead doors, towers and structures, and the other remaining
businesses that comprise the steel products segment. Generally, for these businesses, we transfer
control and recognize a sale when we ship the product from our operating locations to our customers.
The amount of consideration we receive and revenue we recognize for those sales are agreed upon with
the customers before the product is shipped.

Included in the other steel products businesses is Nucor Racking Group (“NRG”). The majority of
NRG’s revenues are related to supply and installation contracts. Revenue on NRG’s supply and
installation contracts is primarily recognized over time, typically between three and six months, using the
cost-to-cost input measure (e.g., costs incurred to date relative to total estimated costs at completion) to
measure progress because it best depicts the transfer of assets to the customer which occurs as the
Company incurs costs on the contracts.
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Raw Materials Segment

The majority of the raw materials segment revenue from outside customers is generated by DJJ. We
transfer control and recognize a sale based on the terms of the agreement with the customer, which is
generally when the product has met the delivery requirements. The amount of consideration we receive
and revenue we recognize for those sales is based on the contract with the customer, which generally
reflects current market prices at the time the contract is entered into.

24. Acquisitions

Acquisition of Rytec Corporation

On July 23, 2024, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire the assets of Rytec Corporation ("Rytec") for
a purchase price, net of cash and debt acquired, of approximately $565 million. Rytec is a manufacturer
and seller of high-performance overhead doors. Rytec produces spiral metal doors for warehouses,
manufacturing facilities, auto dealerships, and parking garages, as well as durable fabric doors that are
used in cold storage, manufacturing and clean room applications. We believe this acquisition will help
Nucor and C.H.I. Overhead Doors, LLC continue to grow their sales to the commercial market. The Rytec
financial results are included as part of the steel products segment (see Note 22) beginning on July 23,
2024, the date Nucor acquired Rytec.

We allocated the purchase price for Rytec to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
While the purchase price allocation is substantially complete, it is still preliminary and subject to change.

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of
Rytec as of July 23, 2024, the date of acquisition (in millions):

Cash $ 1
Accounts receivable 35
Inventory 33
Other current assets 1
Property, plant and equipment 32
Goodwill 275
Other intangible assets 215
Other assets —

Total assets acquired 592
Accounts payable 16
Salary, wages and related accruals 5
Other current liabilities 6

Total liabilities assumed 27
Net assets acquired $ 565

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation to the identifiable intangible assets of
Rytec as of July 23, 2024, the date of acquisition (in millions, except years):

Weighted-
__Average Life
Customer relationships $ 185 15 years
Trademarks and trade names 16 10 years
Other intangibles 14 <1 year

$ 215

The goodwill of $275 million is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel products segment (see
Note 8). The goodwill is attributable to expected synergies within the steel products segment. Goodwill
recognized for tax purposes was $275 million, all of which is deductible for tax purposes. Pro-forma
results of operations for the Company would not be materially different as a result of the acquisition of
Rytec and, therefore, this information is not presented.
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Acquisition of Additional Interest in NJSM

On October 27, 2023, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire an additional 1% equity interest in NJSM
bringing our total equity ownership to a 51% controlling interest. We believe this acquisition allows NJSM
to benefit from Nucor's galvanized sheet sales expertise in North America.

Prior to this transaction, we accounted for our 50% ownership in NJSM under the equity method. As
part of the purchase price allocation for this step acquisition, we remeasured our previously held interest
as of the acquisition date which resulted in a $21 million loss recorded in marketing, administrative and
other expenses. Neither our previously held equity interest in NJSM nor the loss on remeasuring the
equity interest are material to our financial statements.

We allocated the purchase price for NJSM to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of

NJSM, as well as the fair value of the 49% noncontrolling interest not acquired by Nucor, as of October
27, 2023, the date of acquisition (in millions):

Cash $ 11
Accounts receivable 11
Inventory 45
Other current assets 18
Property, plant and equipment 258
Goodwill —

Other intangible assets —
Other assets —

Total assets acquired 343
Short-term debt 95
Current portion of long-term debt 50
Other current liabilities 14
Long-term debt due after one year 30
Other liabilities 1

Total liabilities assumed 190
Net assets acquired at 100% 153
Less: fair value of Noncontrolling interest 75
Net assets acquired at 51% $ 78

The determination of the fair value of noncontrolling interest was calculated using the implied value
of 100% of the enterprise value as the purchase price included an immaterial implied control premium on
a per-share basis and the noncontrolling interest shareholder will benefit from the transaction and
participate in the economic benefits of NJSM after the acquisition.

The NJSM financial results were included as part of the steel mills segment (see Note 22) beginning
on October 27, 2023, the acquisition date. Pro-forma results of operations for the Company would not be
materially different as a result of the acquisition of NJSM and, therefore, this information is not presented.

Acquisition of C.H.].

On June 24, 2022, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire the assets of C.H.I. for a purchase price,
net of cash acquired, of approximately $3.00 billion. C.H.I. is a leading manufacturer of overhead doors
for residential and commercial markets in the United States and Canada. Commercial overhead doors are
used in warehousing and retail, areas that Nucor has focused its attention on recently through other
value-added products such as insulated metal panels (CENTRIA, Metl-Span and TrueCore brands) and
steel racking solutions (Nucor Racking Group). It is expected that the C.H.l. acquisition also will benefit
from Nucor’s recent paint line investments at its Hickman, Arkansas and Crawfordsville, Indiana sheet
mills. The C.H.I. financial results are included as part of the steel products segment (see Note 22)
beginning on June 24, 2022, the date Nucor acquired it.
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We allocated the purchase price for C.H.I. to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The purchase price allocation is complete.

The following table summarizes the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of
C.H.l. as of June 24, 2022, the date of acquisition (in millions):

Cash $ 159
Accounts receivable 78
Inventory 53
Other current assets 18
Property, plant and equipment 117
Goodwill 1,033
Other intangible assets 2,389
Other assets 10

Total assets acquired 3,857
Current liabilities 75
Deferred income taxes 578
Other liabilities 8

Total liabilities assumed 661
Net assets acquired $ 3,196

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation to the identifiable intangible assets of
C.H.l. as of June 24, 2022, the date of acquisition (in millions, except years):

Weighted-
Average Life
Customer relationships $ 2,242 25 years
Trademarks and trade names 147 13 years
Backlog — 1 year

$ 2,389

The goodwill of $1.04 billion is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel products segment. The
goodwill is attributable to expected synergies within the steel products segment. Goodwill recognized for
tax purposes was $6 million, all of which is deductible for tax purposes. Pro-forma results of operations for
the Company would not be materially different as a result of the acquisition of C.H.I. and, therefore, this
information is not presented.

Acquisition of CSI

On February 1, 2022, Nucor used cash on hand to acquire a 51% controlling ownership position in
CSI by purchasing a 50% equity interest from a subsidiary of Vale S.A. for a cash purchase price of
approximately $400 million, adjusted for net debt and working capital at closing, as well as a 1% equity
interest from JFE Steel Corporation. CSl is a flat-rolled steel converter located in California with the
capability to produce more than two million tons of finished steel and steel products annually. The
company has five product lines, including hot rolled, pickled and oiled, cold rolled, galvanized and electric
resistance welded (“ERW”) pipe. Key end-use markets served by CSl include customers in the
construction, service center and energy industries. We believe this acquisition helps give Nucor a strong
presence in the Western region of the United States and grows our ability to produce a wide range of
value-added sheet products. The CSI financial results were included as part of the steel mills segment
(see Note 22) beginning on February 1, 2022, the date Nucor acquired its 51% controlling ownership
position.

We allocated the purchase price for CSl to its individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The purchase price allocation is complete.
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The following table summarizes the fair values of 100% of the assets and liabilities of CSl, as well
as the fair value of the 49% noncontrolling interest not acquired by Nucor, as of February 1, 2022, the
date Nucor acquired its 51% controlling ownership position (in millions):

Cash $ 99
Accounts receivable 159
Inventory 355
Other current assets 5
Property, plant and equipment 567
Goodwill 62
Other intangible assets —
Other assets 7

Total assets acquired 1,254
Current portion of long-term debt 10
Other current liabilities 163
Long-term debt due after one year 68
Other liabilities 140

Total liabilities assumed 381
Net assets acquired at 100% 873
Less: Fair value of noncontrolling interest 428
Net assets acquired at 51% $ 445

The determination of the fair value of the noncontrolling interest was calculated using the implied
value of 100% of the enterprise value of the business using the purchase price as the purchase price did
not include a control premium on a per-share basis and the noncontrolling interest shareholder will
participate equally in the economic benefits of CSI after the acquisition.

The goodwill of $62 million is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has been allocated to the steel mills segment. The
goodwill is attributable to the assembled workforce acquired, expanding our Western United States
presence and CSI’s value-added product capabilities. None of the goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.
Pro-forma results of operations for the Company would not be materially different as a result of the
acquisition of CSI and, therefore, this information is not presented.

Other Acquisitions

Other smaller acquisitions, exclusive of purchase price adjustments made and net of cash acquired,
totaled approximately $193 million, $71 million and $170 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Pro-forma results of operations for the Company would not be materially different if the aggregate
acquisitions made during 2024, 2023 and 2022 were included and, therefore, this information is not
presented.
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25. Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

(in millions, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2024
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 8,137 $ 8,077 $ 7,444 $ 7,076
Gross margin 1,523 1,194 758 627
Net earnings before noncontrolling
interests () 959 712 303 345
Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders 845 645 250 287

Net earnings per share:

Basic $ 346 $ 268 $ 1.05 $ 1.22

Diluted $ 346 § 268 $ 1.05 $ 1.22
1) Third quarter of 2024 results include losses and impairments of asset charges of $83 million and $40 million, related to the

impairment of certain non-current assets in the raw materials and steel products segments, respectively.

(in millions, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2023
First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 8,710 $ 9523 $ 8,776 $ 7,704
Gross margin 1,998 2,502 1,921 1,394
Net earnings before noncontrolling
interests 1,232 1,587 1,221 873
Net earnings attributable to Nucor
stockholders 1,137 1,461 1,142 785
Net earnings per share:
Basic $ 447 $ 582 § 458 $ 3.17
Diluted $ 445 § 581 $ 457 $ 3.16
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures — As of the end of the period covered by this
report, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of
the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures.
Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the evaluation date.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — There were no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2024 that have materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting — Management'’s report on internal control over
financial reporting required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the attestation report
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, on the effectiveness
of Nucor’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024 are included in “Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

Insider Trading Arrangements - During the quarter ended December 31, 2024, none of our directors
or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the Exchange Act) adopted, modified or terminated a "Rule
10b5-1 trading arrangement"” or a "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement" (as such terms are defined in
Item 408 of Regulation S-K).

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections.

Not applicable.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this item with respect to Nucor’s executive officers appears in Part | of
this report under the heading Information About Our Executive Officers and is incorporated herein by
reference. The other information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from Nucor’s
definitive proxy statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expect to file with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after December 31, 2024 (the “Proxy
Statement”), under the headings Election of Directors; Information Concerning Experience, Qualifications,
Attributes and Skills of the Nominees; and Corporate Governance and Board of Directors.

Nucor has adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Professionals (the “Code of Ethics”), which
is intended to qualify as a “code of ethics” within the meaning of Item 406 of Regulation S-K of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Code of Ethics applies to our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, and persons performing similar
functions. The Code of Ethics is available on our website, www.nucor.com.

We will disclose information pertaining to any amendment to, or waiver from, the provisions of the
Code of Ethics that apply to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions and that relate to any element of the Code of
Ethics enumerated in the SEC rules and regulations by posting this information on our website,
www.nucor.com. The information contained on our website or available by hyperlink from our website is
not a part of this report and is not incorporated into this report or any other documents we file with, or
furnish to, the SEC.

We have adopted an insider trading policy governing the purchase, sale, and other dispositions of
our securities by our directors, officers, and employees, and by the Company. We believe this policy is
reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rules, and regulations and listing
standards applicable to the Company. A copy of our insider trading policy is filed as Exhibit 19 to this
report.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the headings Executive Officer Compensation; Director Compensation; Report of the
Compensation and Executive Development Committee; and Board’s Role in Risk Oversight.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related
Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the headings Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Owners and Equity
Compensation Plan Information.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the heading Corporate Governance and Board of Directors.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference from the Proxy Statement
under the heading Fees Paid to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
Financial Statements:

The following consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, management’s report on internal
control over financial reporting and the report of independent registered public accounting firm are
included in “ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”:

e Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

o Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

e Consolidated Balance Sheets—December 31, 2024 and 2023

o Consolidated Statements of Earnings—Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

e Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income—Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023
and 2022

o Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity—Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022

e Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022

¢ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule Il is not presented as all applicable information is presented in the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.

Exhibits:

3 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Nucor Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2010 (File No. 001-04119))

3(i) Bylaws of Nucor Corporation as amended and restated February 22, 2021 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 24, 2021 (File No.
001-04119))

4* Description of Securities of Nucor Corporation

4(i) Indenture, dated as of January 12, 1999, between Nucor Corporation and The Bank of New

York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed December 13, 2002 (File No.
333-101852))

4(ii) Indenture, dated as of August 19, 2014, between Nucor Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement
on Form S-3 filed August 20, 2014 (File No. 333-198263))

4(iii) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 3, 2007, between Nucor Corporation
and The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York), as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 4,
2007 (File No. 001-04119))

4(iv) Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2013, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as successor trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1
to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 29, 2013 (File No. 001-04119))

4(v) Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 10, 2014, among Nucor Corporation,
The Bank of New York Mellon, as prior trustee, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
successor trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed December 11, 2014 (File No. 001-04119))

4(vi) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 26, 2018, between Nucor Corporation and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed April 26, 2018 (File No. 001-04119))
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4(vii)

4(viii)

4(ix)

4(xi)
4(xii)
4(xiii)
4(xiv)
4(xv)
4(xvi)
4(xvii)
4(xviii)
4(xix)
4(xx)
4(xxi)

10

10(i)

10(ii)

10(iii)

10(iv)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 22, 2020, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 7, 2020, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 11, 2022, between Nucor Corporation and
U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2022, between Nucor Corporation and U.S.
Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 6.400% Notes due 2037 (included in Exhibit 4(iii) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 4, 2007 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 5.200% Notes due 2043 (included in Exhibit 4(iv) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 29, 2013 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.950% Notes due 2028 (included in Exhibit 4(vi) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 26, 2018 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 4.400% Notes due 2048 (included in Exhibit 4(vi) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 26, 2018 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 2.000% Notes due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4(vii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 2.700% Notes due 2030 (included in Exhibit 4(vii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 2.979% Notes due 2055 (included in Exhibit 4(viii) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 7, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.125% Notes due 2032 (included in Exhibit 4(ix) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.850% Notes due 2052 (included in Exhibit 4(ix) above) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 11, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 3.950% Notes due 2025 (included in Exhibit 4(x) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Form of 4.300% Notes due 2027 (included in Exhibit 4(x) above) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 23, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

Fourth Amended and Restated Multi-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of November
5, 2021, by and among Nucor Corporation and certain subsidiaries of Nucor Corporation, as
borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, and the lenders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 2, 2021 (File No. 001-04119))

2005 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed May 17, 2005 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Amendment No. 1 to 2005 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2007 (File
No. 001-04119)) (#)

2010 Stock Option and Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 2010 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective February 21,
2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)
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10(v)

10(vi)

10(vii)

10(viii)

10(ix)

10(x)

10(xi)

10(xii)

10(xiii)

10(xiv)

10(xv)

10(xvi)

10(xvii)

10(xviii)

10(xix)

10(xx)*

Amendment No.1, effective September 14, 2023, to 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation
Plan, as amended and restated effective February 21, 2022 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(v) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (File
No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan (Supplement to 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation
Plan), as amended and restated effective February 21, 2022 (included in Exhibit 10(iv) above)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan (Supplement to 2014 Omnibus Incentive
Compensation Plan), as amended and restated effective February 21, 2022 (included in
Exhibit 10(iv) above) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Annual Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2013, for
awards granted prior to January 1, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the
Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Senior Officers Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective January 1,
2013, for awards granted prior to January 1, 2018 (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to
the Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed March 27, 2013 (File No. 001-04119))

#)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement — time-vested awards (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(iv) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement — retirement-vested awards (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10(v) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 1,
2006 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Award Agreement for Annual Stock Option Grants used for awards granted prior to
May 8, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2012 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Award Agreement for Annual Stock Option Grants used for awards granted after May
7, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended July 5, 2014 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement used for awards granted after February 21,
2022 — time-vested awards (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Form of Award Agreement for Annual Stock Option Grants used for awards granted after
February 21, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Retirement, Separation, Waiver and Release Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2022, by and
between Nucor Corporation and James D. Frias (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed May 25, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Retirement, Separation, Waiver and Release Agreement, dated as of May 28, 2024, by and
between Nucor Corporation and Douglas J. Jellison (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2024 (file No. 001-
04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Leon J. Topalian (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 19, 2020 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of Leon J. Topalian (#)
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19*
21*

Executive Employment Agreement of D. Chad Utermark (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.10 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 19, 2020 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of D. Chad Utermark (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Allen C. Behr (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 4, 2020 (File No. 001-04119))

(#)
Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of Allen C. Behr (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of David A. Sumoski (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed January 5, 2021 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Douglas J. Jellison (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxx) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Gregory J. Murphy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxxi) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Daniel R. Needham (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10(xxxii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020
(File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of K. Rex Query (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxxiii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Stephen D. Laxton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed March 4, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended April 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of Stephen D. Laxton (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of John Hollatz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to
the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 2, 2022 (File No. 001-04119))

(#)
Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of John Hollatz (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Noah Hanners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10(xxxiii) to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 (File No.
001-04119)) (#)

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of Noah Hanners (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Brad Ford (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 2023 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement of Brad Ford (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Nicole B. Theophilus, former Executive Vice President
of Talent and Human Resources (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2024 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Executive Employment Agreement of Randy J. Spicer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2024 (File No. 001-
04119)) (#)

Nucor Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan for Executive Officers, as amended and
restated effective December 15, 2023 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 15, 2023 (File No. 001-04119)) (#)

Trading Policy

Subsidiaries
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23* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
24> Power of Attorney (included on signature page)

31* Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31(i)* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32** Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32(i)** Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

97 Nucor Corporation Executive Officer Incentive Compensation Recovery Policy (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 97 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2023 (File No. 001-04119))

101* Financial Statements from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Nucor Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2024, filed February 27, 2025, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

104* Cover Page from the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Nucor Corporation for the year ended
December 31, 2024, filed February 27, 2025, formatted in Inline XBRL (included in Exhibit
101).

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished (and not filed) herewith pursuant to Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K.
(#) Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.

Registrants may voluntarily include a summary of information required by Form 10-K under this ltem
16. We have elected not to include such summary information.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

NUCOR CORPORATION

By: /s/ Leon J. Topalian
Leon J. Topalian
Chair, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Dated: February 27, 2025
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Stephen D. Laxton and A. Rae Eagle, or either of them, his or her attorney-in-
fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution for such person in any and all capacities, to sign any
amendments to this report and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming
all that either of said attorney-in-fact, or substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

/s/ Leon J. Topalian /s/ Norma B. Clayton
Leon J. Topalian Norma B. Clayton
Chair, President, and Chief Executive Officer Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Stephen D. Laxton /s/ Patrick J. Dempsey
Stephen D. Laxton Patrick J. Dempsey
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice Director
President
(Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Michael D. Keller /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Michael D. Keller Nicholas C. Gangestad
Vice President and Corporate Controller Director

(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s Christopher J. Kearney

Christopher J. Kearney
Lead Director

/sl Laurette T. Koellner

Laurette T. Koellner
Director

/s/ Michael W. Lamach

Michael W. Lamach
Director

/s/ Nadja Y. West

Nadja Y. West
Director

Dated: February 27, 2025
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AUBREY A MARLOWE JR  DOMENICK J MAROCCO  STEFAN MAROLICARU  MELVIN E MAROON  ASLAN WYATT MARPLES ~ ABEL L MARQUEZ  ANDRES MARQUEZ  HIPOLITO MARQUEZ  JAVIER MARQUEZ  JOSE ANTHONY MARQUEZ  JULLIAN MARQUEZ  RODRIGO MARQUEZ IlI
ALAN MOISES GONZALEZ MARQUEZ  GILBERTO MARQUEZ CHAVARRIA ALDO MARQUEZ GARZA LUIS RAMON MARQUEZ MORENO RODDY A MARRACCINI RONALD E MARRIER ANDREA DEL ROSARIO MARROQUIN  REGINALDO MARROQUIN RUBEN JESUS MARROQUIN SAM D MARROQUIN
VICTOR E MARROQUIN GUSTAVO A MARROQUIN OZUL BRIAN MARRS CLAUDIA MARRUFO JOSE MARRUFO ROGER MARSDEN BRYON S MARSH CHRISTIAN MATTHEW MARSH JAMIE COLT MARSH JOHN MARSH JOSEPH FRANKLIN MARSH LAMONT PHER MARSH RICHARD WESLEY MARSH
RODNEY D MARSH RONALD L MARSH ZACHARY RILEY MARSH ANTONIO R MARSHALL BRENT MARSHALL CHRISTIAN ALEXANDER MARSHALL DAVID ANDREW MARSHALL DOUG MARSHALL EARL JMARSHALL GREGORY J MARSHALL JACOB HENRY MARSHALL JAMES EDWARD MARSHALL
JAMES RICHARD MARSHALL  JAYNA DALE MARSHALL JESS P MARSHALL KYLE A MARSHALL LOUISE MARSHALL MATTHEW MARSHALL NATHAN P MARSHALL NICHOLAS P MARSHALL PAUL J MARSHALL RICHARD WILLIAM MARSHALL SCOTT MARSHALL SHANA ANN MARSHALL
TAMALA SHANAE MARSHALL TERRY L MARSHALL TREVOR LANE MARSHALL VINCENT D MARSHALL ZACHARY TY MARSHALL ZACK MARSHALL JASON MARSON TANYA MARSON CARSON MARTELL JOSH MARTELL AUSTIN DANIEL MARTENS CHASE S MARTENS JORDAN MARTI KIM R MARTI
SARAH A MARTI  AARON MARTIN AARON ARTHUR MARTIN BRANDON MARTIN BRIAN KEITH MARTIN BRUCE D MARTIN Il BRYAN D MARTIN CAMERON J MARTIN CARL M MARTIN CHRISTOPHER D MARTIN CHRISTOPHER W MARTIN CLIFFORD MARTIN DAVID A MARTIN DAVID R MARTIN
DEAN MARTIN DEVIN EDWARD MARTIN DONALD E MARTIN JR DONNA B MARTIN EDWARD MARTIN ELI WAYNE MARTIN ELISA MARTIN ERIC SEAN MARTIN ETHAN-MIKEL 0ZZY MARTIN FORREST DANIEL MARTIN GLENN EDWARD MARTIN GRANT WARREN MARTIN HENRY LEE MARTIN
HUNTER BRUCE MARTIN  JACOB WILLIAM MARTIN JAMES AUBREY MARTIN Il JAMES B MARTIN JAMES D MARTIN JR JAMES ERNEST MARTIN JEFFERY W MARTIN JEFFREY R MARTIN JOEY E MARTIN JOHN AARON MARTIN JOHN C MARTIN JONATHAN AUSTIN MARTIN JORDAN MARTIN
JOSEPH JOHN MARTIN JOSHUA ANDREW MARTIN JUDY LYLE MARTIN KATHY DUPREY MARTIN KAYDEN BRENT MARTIN KENNETH BRADLEY MARTIN KENNETH R MARTIN KENTRELLE LAVELLE MARTIN LAURA MARTIN LEROY MARTIN LESLIE MIKELLE MARTIN MARCUS DEWONE MARTIN
MARCUS VERNON MARTIN Il MATTHEW CHRISTOPHER MARTIN MICHAEL MARTIN MICHAEL A MARTIN MICHAEL S MARTIN NICHOLAS WILLIAM MARTIN NICKOLAS PW MARTIN NOAH MARTIN OCTAVIA LASHAWN MARTIN RICHARD L MARTIN RICHARD V MARTIN RIVERS ALLEN MARTIN
RYANLMARTIN ~ SCOTTW MARTIN  SEAN LAMAR MARTIN ~ STEVEN EMARTIN ~ STEVEN M MARTIN ~ STEVEN SAMUEL MARTIN ~ THOMAS L MARTIN  TODD EVERETTE MARTIN ~ WILLIAM THOMAS EUGENE MARTIN  ANDRES CASILLAS MARTIN  JOSE JAIME MARTIN DEL CAMPO
ANTONIO MARTIN SANCHEZ RIVERA  ADAM BLAKE MARTINDALE  DEBBIE MARTINEAU  LEIGH-ANNE MARTINELLO  AGUSTIN H MARTINEZ ~ ALEXANDRIA MARTINEZ ~ALONSO CONTRERAS MARTINEZ ~ ALVARO MARTINEZ ~ ANGEL J MARTINEZ ~ANTHONY MARTINEZ ~ ANTONIO R MARTINEZ
ANTONY MARTINEZ ARMANDO MARTINEZ AUSTIN PATRICK MARTINEZ BRITTANY BREANNE MARTINEZ CHARLES D MARTINEZ CHERRY CUEVA MARTINEZ CHEVELLE MARTINEZ CONOR THOMAS MARTINEZ EDWIN MARTINEZ ERICA MARTINEZ ERICK J MARTINEZ FREDDIE MARTINEZ
GABRIEL MARTINEZ  GABRIEL VINCENT MARTINEZ  GILBERTO MARTINEZ GUSTAVO MARTINEZ GUSTAVO MIGUEL MARTINEZ JR  HENRY MARTINEZ HERBERT MARTINEZ ISAIAH ANTONIO MARTINEZ IVANS MARTINEZ JASMINE MARTINEZ JEFFREY MARTINEZ JEREMY PAUL MARTINEZ
JESSICA M J MARTINEZ JESUS MARTINEZ JESUS ALBERTO MARTINEZ JOAQUIN MARTINEZ JOSE CHRISTIAN MARTINEZ JOSE MANUEL MARTINEZ JOSE MANUEL MARTINEZ JOSHUA D MARTINEZ JUAN MARTINEZ JUAN E MARTINEZ JUAN F MARTINEZ KCM MARTINEZ KENNY M MARTINEZ
LUIS G MARTINEZ MANUEL MARTINEZ MARIO MARTINEZ MARLON SALOME MARTINEZ MICHAEL M MARTINEZ MICHELLE LYNN MARTINEZ MIGUEL ENRIQUE MARTINEZ NICHOLAS LEE MARTINEZ NOE MARTINEZ OSCAR MARTINEZ OSCAR JAVIER MARTINEZ PAUL MARTINEZ PETER A MARTINEZ
RYAN MARTINEZ ~ SAMIR A MARTINEZ ~ SAUL MARTINEZ ~ TOMMY MURRAY MARTINEZ ~ WALTER M MARTINEZ ~ DAVID ALEJANDRO MARTINEZ ~ FABIAN MARTINEZ ~ JUAN PABLO MARTINEZ ~ MARIO ANTONIO MARTINEZ ~ VICTOR HUGO MARTINEZ ~ CARLOS ANDRES FRANCO MARTINEZ
CESAR PASTOR GONZALEZ MARTINEZ OMAR CHAVEZ MARTINEZ MARIO DANIEL MARTINEZ AGUILAR JOSE MANUEL MARTINEZ BARAJAS MAURICIO MARTINEZ BERNAL JOSE DE LA LUZ MARTINEZ CALZADA JOVANA LIZETTE MARTINEZ CHAVEZ OSVALDO MARTINEZ ESPARZA
JUAN PABLO MARTINEZ GONZALEZ ARTURO MARTINEZ HERNANDEZ CAROLINA MARTINEZ MEDINA MARVIN MARTINEZ MULATO LILIA PAULINA MARTINEZ NAVARRETE VALERY ROXANNA MARTINEZ NAVARRO J REYES MARTINEZ ORTEGA LIAM MARTINEZ PANIAGUA JUANA PAOLA MARTINEZ PENA
DAVID FELIPE MARTINEZ SANTAMARIA CRISTIAN RAFAEL MARTINEZ SANTOYO JOSE FRANCISCO MARTINEZ SERVIN FRANCISCO RAFAEL MARTINEZ TORRES MERLIN ROBERT MARTINEZ TURRIETTA JORGE ENRIQUE MARTINEZ VARONA FERNANDO JOAQUIN MARTINEZ ZAVALA
JOSE A MARTINEZ-GUADIANA  MICHAEL R MARTINI ROBERT LUIS MARTINI JOSEPH SAMUEL MARTINO ARACELI P MARTINON ADEDAPO MARTINS ANTONIO MARTINS KATHRYN MARTINS PAUL MARTINS ERIC L MARTINSON RYAN MARTINSON IGOR NA MARTYNYUK ALINA MARUNTELU
BRADY L MARUSKA TODD M MARUSKA NAOFUMI MARUTA GANESH MARUTI KAMBLE ANDREW N MARVIN NATHAN JOSEPH MARVIN SHAWN DAVID MARVIN TRAVIS MARVIN CHRISTIAN R MARYOTT FRANCESCO MARZANO STEPHANIE LATISHA MARZETTE STEPHEN ANDREW MARZIALE
DAVID JOSEPH MASCARELLA Il JOSEPH A MASCARO RICHARD AUGUST MASCHKE STEVEN DAVID MASCIARELLI DOMINIC FRANKLIN MASCOLO ABDULMEZAN | MASCORRO JAIDEN MICHAEL MASHBURN JOSEPH MASIH JOHN BRITTO MASILAMANI CARRIE MASON COREY MICHAEL MASON
DEAN MASON ~ HARLEY DILAN GRANT MASON ~ JOSEPH D MASON ~ JOSHUA SCOTT MASON ~ KAMBON MASON ~ KIM M MASON ~ LATASHA M MASON  LIONEL ALAN MASON ~ MARCEL AMASON  REESE A MASON ~ RYAN WILLIAM MASON ~ SANTONIO M MASON ~ STEPHEN W MASON
THOMAS ALEXANDER MASON ZACHARY ALLEN DANIEL MASON ADAM TARIK MASOOD ALFRED LEONARD MASSAAR LUIS MASSARO AMANDA LEEANN MASSEY BRADLEY MASSEY CHRISTOPHER A MASSEY DERRICK RAY MASSEY DUSTY LEE MASSEY JOSH TYLER MASSEY JUSTIN KYLE MASSEY
JUSTINTYSON MASSEY  KATY MARIE MASSEY MICKEY LYNN MASSEY  OLIVIA JEANETTE MASSEY ROBERT ALEXANDER MASSEY IIl  TAYLOR NICOLE MASSEY TOMMY L MASSEY ANDREW NATHAN MASSIE  ZACHARY DANIEL MASSIE  MARK C MASSIER  AARON JAY MAST  CODY M MAST
DAVID M MAST DENNIS ARDEN MAST JESSE W MAST LELAND ANDREW MAST JOHN MATTHEW MASTALERZ SHERRY MASTERS TODD A MASTERS ZACHARY TAYLOR MASTERS NOLEN TRENT MASTERSON BRIAN MASTON TERESA MARIE MASTOWSKI DAVID V MASTRANGELO MITCHELL R MASTRO
ALFREDO MATA JR  JONATHAN NA MATA  OSVALDO RICARDO MATA  PAUL ORIEL MATA  MA VERONICA MATA CONTRERAS ~ ZACHARY MICHAEL MATASCI  NEAL CORY MATCHETT  JUANA MATEO DIEGO  MENECIA MATEO PABLO  FERN MATERNO  RAMCHARAN MATHAI  RAJ MATHAIAH
MOHAMED KAMEEM MATHAR MOHAMMED  SETH ALAN MATHENEY ~ GREGORY SCOTT MATHENY ~BRANDON MICHAEL MATHERLY ~ANDREW COLLIN MATHERNE BRIAN R MATHERS  DARREN A MATHES  DILLON JAMES MATHES =~ ARUNPRASATH MATHESWARAN  KEVIN HENRY MATHEWES
ANTHONY E MATHEWS ~ BRADY MATHEWS  CHARLES HOWARD MATHEWS  SEBASTIEN MATHEWS  SHAWN ALLEN MATHEWS  CHRISTOPHER FREDERICK MATHEWSON  KEVIN MATHIAS  DAVID WAYNE MATHIS ~ GLEN ALLEN MATHIS ~ GREGORY E MATHIS ~ KADREN SHOMARI MATHIS
KENNETH J MATHIS SR SAMUEL MATHIS SAMUEL LIVINGSTON MATHIS Ill ANGEL MATIAS MICHAEL D MATIOSCHAT JUDD MATKIN COREY ALLEN MATLOCK JAMES MATLOCK SCOTT L MATLOCK SCOTTIE D MATLOCK NATHAN SCOTT MATNEY JOEL C MATOS ADRIAN MATRAM KEITH WAYNE MATRY
JAMES MICHAEL MATSAGO BRANDON SCOTT MATSCHKE ANDREW DONALD MATSON JASON LEWIS MATSON MATTHEW MATSON KAZUHIRO MATSUMURA KEN MATSUOKA REYNA PABLO A MATTEI ADAM RUSSELL MATTEO BRENTON L MATTEO MICHAEL A MATTEO WYATT A MATTESON
JASON P MATTHES JUSTIN MATTHES ADAM MATTHEWS BILLY GENE MATTHEWS JR BRANDON MATTHEWS BRANDON JOSEPH MATTHEWS BRIAN K MATTHEWS BRYCE G MATTHEWS CHRISTOPHER SCOTT MATTHEWS DAULTON DRAKE MATTHEWS DAVID MATTHEWS EUGENE D MATTHEWS
JASON DOUGLAS MATTHEWS  JESSICA BROOKE MATTHEWS JONATHAN H MATTHEWS JOSHUA KEITH MATTHEWS ~ KAVEEN LETAIR MATTHEWS KENNETH E MATTHEWS MARK R MATTHEWS MICHAEL D MATTHEWS ~MICHAEL E MATTHEWS RYAN S MATTHEWS  STEPHANIE R MATTHEWS
TERESA A MATTHEWS TRACY C MATTHEWS  JARED THOMAS MATTINGLY ~MITCHELL D MATTINGLY ~KYLE MATTINSON TUCKER NED MATTINSON  RICHARD D MATTISON  JAROD STEPHEN MATTOCKS NORMAN B MATTOX JOSHUA D MATTSON ~ BASSIM MATUK  JAMES JOSEPH MATURA
JOSEPH J MATUSKA TAMMY MATUSZAK ALINA MATVIICHUK JEREMY MATWYKO RANDY MATWYKO MARY BETH MAU ZACHARY SAMUEL MAU COLBY ALAN MAUGHAN DALTON DUSTIN MAUGHAN SAMUEL ANDERSON MAUNEY RANDY K MAURER RUSSELL PAUL MAURER TOBIAS MAURICE
JOSE L MAURICIO ANTHONY P MAURITS ANNA E MAUSER ERIC JOEL MAVIS MARIO ANGELO MAX NATE M MAXEDON JAMES R MAXIM ANDREW S MAXWELL BRANDON J MAXWELL COLTON D MAXWELL DAVIS MAXWELL ERIC L MAXWELL JASON HEATH MAXWELL MICHAEL W MAXWELL
STEPHEN AUSTIN MAXWELL AUSTIN E MAY CRAIG M MAY DEXTER MAY DYLAN MICHAEL MAY JEREMY M MAY JOSEPH CHRISTOPHER MAY JUSTIN MAY KELVIN MAY KENNETH D MAY LUCAS JAMES MAY MATTHEW ALAN MAY NICOLE CHRISTINE MAY SCOTT A MAY AGUSTIN GRANADOS MAYA
CHRISTOFER RYAN MAYBERRY JAMES WILLIAM LEE MAYBERRY MARLON C MAYBERRY STEVIN MITCHELL MAYBERRY THOMAS C MAYBERRY MIGUEL N MAYE LAUREN JMAYER MATHEW M MAYER JULIAN L MAYERS YORNAY MAYETA ADAM JOSEPH MAYFIELD CARLOS DAMON MAYFIELD
MICHAEL MAYHALL CHRISTOPHER K MAYNARD ROGER OWEN MAYNARD WILLIAM C MAYNARD ELIJAH P MAYO KENNETH GARRET MAYO JAKE MAYORCA HECTORF MAYORGA ALAN RAY MAYOTTE PAUL THOMAS MAYR AMORY TODD MAYS CALEB TUCKER MAYS CARSON DOWLING MAYS
CHRISTOPHER MAYS DELROY LAMONT MAYS GEORGE MICHAEL MAYS HERB MAYS JAMES STEVEN-ANDREW MAYS JOHN M MAYS JOSEPH DALE MAYS KENNETH L MAYS MICHAEL RYAN MAYS ROBERT JOSEPH MAYS WILLIAM TODD MAYS CODY C MAYSE JOHN C MAYTON KEVIN B MAYTUM
DANIEL M MAZILE MORGAN BRADLEY MAZON ROBERT LEE MAZONE JR DEBJYOTI MAZUMDAR DYLAN MAZUREN LOIS M MAZZARESE MICHAEL PAUL MAZZILLO CONSTANCE LEE MCADAMS TY ALDEN MCADAMS KEEGAN MCADOO KEVIN GRANT MCADOO ERIC D MCADORY CORY LEE MCALISTER
JUSTIN ROBERT MCALISTER CLAYTON C MCALLISTER DAVID LEE MCALLISTER JAMES D MCALLISTER JAMES PATRICK MCALLISTER IV JEREMY TMCALLISTER JUSTIN W MCALLISTER KAYLA MCALLISTER THOMAS BLAKE MCALLISTER TRACIMCALLISTER JAMES MCALPINE KYLE MCALPINE
NOAH MCALPINE QUINN MCALPINE STEVEN MICHAEL MCALPINE KIM ELAINE MCANULTY MICHAEL BRUCE MCARTHUR RAYFORD J MCATEER THOMAS M MCAULIFFE JR CHADWICK TYLER MCBAY ANTHONY GEORGE MCBRAYER GREG B MCBRAYER JERRY K MCBRAYER BRADY MCBRIDE
D BLAKE MCBRIDE JACOB N MCBRIDE JASON DAVID MCBRIDE JEFFREY D MCBRIDE JOHN J MCBRIDE JON KENT MCBRIDE MATTHEW MCBRIDE ROGER BRENT MCBRIDE STEPHANIE MCBRIDE WESLEY LANE MCBRIDE TREVOR DALE MCBROOM PAMELA K MCBROOME JAMES J MCCABE
KASON LUTHER MCCAFFERTY ELIZABETH CHRISTINA MCCAFFREY TYLER ANTHONY MCCAIG BRADY R MCCAIN JOHN L MCCAIN SHANG JAMAR MCCAIN WESLEY MCCAIN  KEVIN E MCCALEB DALTON MICHAEL MCCALISTER CHRISTOPHER MCCALL DAMIN D MCCALL DEVIN D MCCALL
JAMAAL ATIBA MCCALL  JAMESTMCCALLSR  JORDAN MCCALL MARCUS MCCALL SHAWNTEZ SHAQUAIWN MCCALL EDWARD A MCCALLIE ~ KEITH ALAN MCCALLISTER ~ SALLY A MCCALLUM  JOHN CHADWICK MCCALPIN  DONNIE W MCCAMMON JR  MOLLY CATHERINE MCCAMMON
DARRIN J MCCANDLESS LOGAN MICHAEL MCCANDLESS TYLER J MCCANDLESS WILLIAM R MCCANDLESS DAVID JOSEPH MCCANN STEPHEN A MCCANN JAMES H MCCANTS JOEY S MCCANTS SETH A MCCANTS TIFFANY B MCCANTS CHRISTOPHER TONY MCCARDLE LARRY B MCCARDLE
ROBERT LEE MCCARDLE KYLE MCCARRON MATTHEW C MCCART JAMES WALKER MCCARTHY KYLE MCCARTHY TRAVIS MCCARTHY ASHTON MCCARTNEY JAMES MCCARTNEY JOHN WILLIAM MCCARTY JR MICHAEL THOMAS MCCARTY JUSTIN JEMAL MCCAULEY LACHLAN PATRICK MCCAULEY
ROBERT M MCCAULEY  TINAMCCAULEY  TIMOTHY J MCCAVIT ~ AIRIKA MCCLAFFERTY ~ HUNTER MCCLAIN  JOSHUA PAUL MCCLAIN  PARKER KEITH MCCLAIN  ROBERTMCCLAIN ~ RYAN A MCCLAIN  SCOTT DALE MCCLAIN ~ GREGORY SCOTT MCCLAMROCH  GILBERT MCCLATCHIE
JOSEPH AARON MCCLATCHY  KYLE CHRISTOPHER MCCLEARY ~MATTHEW RAY MCCLEASE ~ CASEY B MCCLELLAN  CURTIS MCCLELLAN  JASON L MCCLELLAN  JEREMY C MCCLELLAN  KALEB MCCLELLAN ~ KEVIN R MCCLELLAN VERDARIUS CORDELL MCCLELLAN  ANDREW MCCLELLAND
KELVIN D MCCLENDON MYLES A MCCLERNAN  BLAKE ALLEN MCCLISH JUSTIN DOUGLAS MCCLISH THAD JACOB MCCLONE MATTHEW MCCLOSKEY ASHLEY MCCLOUD JACK MCCLOUD RANDALL JMCCLOUD BLAKE CONNOR MCCLUNG WILLIAM E MCCLUNG CONNOR RAYNE MCCLURE
JACOB W MCCLURE JESSE R MCCLURE KAVIN ROGER MCCLURE MARK L MCCLURE STACIE ANN MCCLURE BESS MCCOLLESTER JOHN ANDREW MCCOLLEY CALVIN D MCCOLLOM GARY DARNELL MCCOLLUM JASON E MCCOLLUM JUSTIN K MCCOLLUM MARK E MCCOLLUM HUGH R MCCOMAS
JAMES P MCCOMB RILEY MCCOMB CHRISTOPHER MCCOMBER AN MCCONNELL JOSHUA LEWIS MCCONNELL KYLE MCCONNELL MATTHEW THOMAS MCCONNELL MICHAEL JOSEPH MCCONNELL PATRICK MICHAEL MCCONNELL SHANNON FORTIS MCCONNELL TYLER ANDREW MCCONNELL
WILLIAM K MCCONNELL STEVEN JAMES MCCONVILLE KELSON DARYL MCCOOL RANDY CHRIS MCCOOL LYNN MCCORD MARK D MCCORD WESTIN RAYNE MCCORD CHARLES W MCCORKLE JASON R MCCORKLE LEAH R MCCORKLE MICHAEL SHAWN MCCORMACK ERIC TERENCE MCCORMICK
JASON A MCCORMICK JASON L MCCORMICK RANDY R MCCORMICK REECE TMCCORMICK ROBERT G MCCORMICK ROBERT K MCCORMICK SHANE MCCORMICK GRANT MCCORRISTER NICHOLAS GRIMSLEY MCCOWAN NINECA SHERREL MCCOWAN BRIAN MCCOY CHRISTOPHER MATTHEW MCCOY
CORBIN JACOB MCCOY DARIUS DEANDRE MCCOY ETHAN MICHAEL MCCOY HENRY B MCCOY Ill  JAMES MCCOY JOEYMCCOY MARK N MCCOY MICHAEL GUY MCCOY MIRANDA FAITH MCCOY NATHANIEL JMCCOY RICHARD L MCCOY ROBERTLOUZERNE MCCOY SHELDON MCCOY
THOMAS RAY MCCOY ~ WILLIAM B MCCOY  KENNETH C MCCRACKEN ~ MICHAEL JOHN MCCRACKEN Il MICHAEL ROBERT MCCRACKIN  STEVLEN JOSEPH MCCRANEY BRANDON D MCCRARY  DANIEL B MCCRARY ~ JARED MCCRARY  MICHAEL S MCCRAVEY  MICHAEL JUDSON MCCRAY
LAUREN WINTER MCCREA CHRISTOPHER JOSEPH MCCREARY KERRY JASON MCCREE MEGAN MARIE MCCREERY ERNEST LEE MCCRELESS ARTHUR JAMES MARK MCCRORY SEAN MCCRORY ERIC R MCCROSKEY KENNETHW MCCRUTER LLOYD L MCCUBBIN CHARLES ANDREW MCCUISTON
AIRREON JAMAR MCCULLOCH ~ JAMES MCCULLOCH MYRON A MCCULLOCH ~ ALEX ALEXIS MCCULLOUGH  ALICIA KRISTIN MCCULLOUGH ~ BRADFORD L MCCULLOUGH ~ DUANE CHRISTIAN MCCULLOUGH ~ KEITH L MCCULLOUGH  LILLIE FRANCES MCCULLOUGH ~ROBERTA MCCULLOUGH
SHATERRION JAMAR MCCULLOUGH ~ STEPHEN C MCCULLOUGH  JENKINS DUANE MCCULLUM  LATISHA MARIE MCCULLUM  CRAIG | MCCULLY BRANDON ALLEN RAY MCCUNE ~ DANIEL ALEXANDER MCCURDY ~ CHRISTOPHER J MCCURLEY BEN THOMAS MCCURRY  JONATHAN MCCURRY
CHRISTOPHER E MCCUTCHEN ADAM MCCUTCHEON JOHN ANDREW MCCUTCHEON JOHN W MCCUTCHEON ERIC EUGENE MCDADE MICHAEL JOHN MCDADE SEAN MCDADE ALBERTD MCDANIEL ALBERT DEAN MCDANIEL JR ANDREW COLLIN MCDANIEL CODY DEAN MCDANIEL MAIA MCDANIEL
PETER MATTHEW MCDANIEL QUINCY L MCDANIEL SETH WAYNE MCDANIEL TERI MCDANIEL THOMAS M MCDANIEL TYNA MCDANIEL KENNETH D MCDANIELS Ill GLENN ERIC MCDAY KELLY KIERRA MCDAY CODY M MCDERMOTT STEVEN T MCDERMOTT TIMOTHY JAY MCDOLE ABBY MCDONALD
ALEXANDER JAMES MCDONALD BARBARA MCDONALD BLAINE R MCDONALD BRENTS MCDONALD CAITLYN RAE MCDONALD CODY MCDONALD DASHAWN MCDONALD EDWARD K MCDONALD HUNTER MCDONALD IV JACOB MCDONALD JACOB ELLIOTT MCDONALD JAMES K MCDONALD
JAMES P MCDONALD JAMES R MCDONALD JR  JEFFREY ALLEN MCDONALD JENNIFER LYNN MCDONALD JOSEPH LARRY MCDONALD JOSHUA MCDONALD MITCHELL MCDONALD RYAN MCDONALD SEAN M MCDONALD JR SHAWN MCDONALD TODD D MCDONALD FRANK MCDOUGAL
TONQUEZ TONY MCDOUGAL ~ JOSEPH DONALD MCDOUGALD ~ RYAN EDWARD MCDOUGALD ~ BRENDAN DEAN MCDOWELL ~ KENNARD LEANDUS MCDOWELL JR  TRACY L MCDUFFY ~ ROBERT C MCEACHERN ~ JONATHAN L MCEACHIN SR JORDAN J MCEACHIN  STEPHEN G MCELHANON
MARK EARL MCELHINNEY ~ GARY MCELRATH BRIAN W MCELROY MARTEZ ATREL MCELROY  RILEY MCELROY STEVEN L MCELROY DAWN C MCELVEEN ~WILLIAM R MCELVEEN  JUSTICE TYLOR MCELWEE  KRISTOFFER CARSON MCELWRATH  JAMES J MCELYEA  LUKUS BLAKE MCELYEA
MARTY DEWAYNE MCELYEA ~ BRADLEY JMCENDRE ~ ANNETTE M MCENERNEY ~ CLAUDE MCFADDEN  JOHN J MCFADDEN IV KENNETH DION MCFADDEN ~ STEPHANIE ANN MCFADDEN ~ CAMERON RMCFALL ~ SHANNA M MCFALL  JOSHUA MICHAEL MCFALLS ~ JEREMY MCFARLAND
JOHNATHON WAYNE MCFARLAND ~ MALCOLM JOEL MCFARLAND  ROBIN BRADLEY MCFARLAND ~ TIMOTHY MCFARLAND ~ RORY LAYNE MCFARLANE ~ NICHOLAS MCFATRIDGE =~ JOSEPH ROBERT MCFERREN ~ JOSHUA MCGAHAN ~ MACKINLEY R MCGARRY ~ NICHOLAS JAMES MCGARVEY
NATHAN G MCGAUGHEY RYAN D MCGAUGHEY ANDREW MCGEE CHRISTOPHER WAYNE MCGEE COURTNEY JMCGEE JALEN JOSEPH MCGEE JAMES CASH MCGEE ~ LUCAS CAINE MCGEE MARK JACOB MCGEE MEGAN MICHELLE MCGEE ~ STEPHEN C MCGEE  TEVIN MONTREY MCGEE
TIMOTHY A MCGEE  TRISTEN LYNN MCGEE WALTER TMCGEE ~ WILLIAM MATTHEW MCGEE MICHAEL E MCGEORGE ~ CHRISTOPHER JAMES MCGHEE  DANIEL RYAN MCGHEE RICKY D MCGHEE STACY MCGHEE DARIK MICHAEL MCGILL ~ KATIE MICHELLE MCGILLEM  ZACHARY MCGILLIS
JACOB KOLE MCGINLEY DACIA D MCGINNESS ALEC MCGINNIS KENDERICK R MCGIRT COLTON H MCGOUGH DANIEL L MCGOWAN JADEN DON MCGOWAN JAMIE M MCGOWAN  KYLE A MCGOWAN MICHAEL W MCGOWAN CLARENCE RUSSELL MCH CLAUDE E MC(

DUSTIN EDWARD MCGRANAHAN ~ AIDAN MCGRATH ~ MARTIN MCGRATH ~ SCOTT MICHAEL MCGRATH ~ ANDREW TMCGRAW  ROBERT HOLLADAY MCGRAW  RONALD A MCGRAW CHAD D MCGREGOR HUNTER JOHN MCGREGOR JENNIFER L MCGREGOR  RUSSEL LEE ANDREW MCGREGOR
TRENTIN SETH MCGREGOR CHASITY ANDREA MCGRIFF JOHNNY F MCGRIFF SEAN EDWARD MCGUIGGAN AMANDA N MCGUIRE BRIAN A MCGUIRE BRUCE MCGUIRE DAIMIEN D P MCGUIRE JEFFERY S MCGUIRE JON MICHAEL MCGUIRE LATHAN ARISTOTLE MCGUIRE ROBERT ALLAN MCGUIRE JR
SHANE P MCGUIRE ~ STEPHEN E MCGUIRE  TYLER FORREST MCGUIRE  MICHAEL BRANDON MCGUIRT ~ JOHN H MCHALFFEY CLINTON AMCHAN LARRY MCHARGUE ROBERTB MCHARGUE ANTHONYMCHUGH KEVIN MCHUGH JOHN MCINALLY HART MCINERNEY CORY P MCINTOSH
DAVID LEE MCINTOSH ~ LINDSAY A MCINTOSH  JAIME LEA MCINTYRE ~ JANET L MCINTYRE BRANDON MCINVILLE  JOSEPH P MCINVILLE JUSTIN R MCINVILLE COREY J MCKAY JONATHAN DEAN MCKAY MARK STEVEN MCKAY ~RALPH E MCKAY RANDIN MCKAY SAMUEL LEVI MCKAY
SCOTT T MCKEAN HEIDI ELIZABETH MCKEE JACOB ROSS MCKEE JEREMY R MCKEE ZACHERY DEAN MCKEE MICHAEL E MCKEEN EUGENE TOMS MCKEIVER CHRISTOPHER THOMAS MCKELLAR CHRISTOPHER O MCKELVEY OWEN GAGE MCKELVEY ELLEN J MCKENNA CAMERON SHAWN MCKENNEY
KOREY DEAN MCKENNEY ~ ANTHONY DWAYNE MCKENZIE ~ CASEY SCOTT MCKENZIE ~ DAVID JAMES MCKENZIE ~ GERALD R MCKENZIE ~ IAN MCKENZIE ~ JOHNATHAN WILLIAM MCKENZIE ~ KERSHAN MCKENZIE ~ ORNIN L MCKENZIEJR ~ PAUL JMCKENZIE ~ ROBERT GAGE MCKENZIE
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JOSEPH LEE ARMSTRONG  JUDSON GRANT ARMSTRONG ~ JUSTIN LEE ARMSTRONG ~ KEITH A ARMSTRONG  KEVIN L ARMSTRONG ~ KURTIS A ARMSTRONG ~ LESLIE ARMSTRONG  LOUIS LAMONT ARMSTRONG ~ LYDIA M ARMSTRONG ~ MICHAEL LORIN ARMSTRONG ~ MICHAEL S ARMSTRONG
REESE JERARD ARMSTRONG RUSSELL DON ARMSTRONG ZACKARY KADEEM ARMSTRONG ETHAN ARNASON JASON ARNDT JOHN WESTON ARNDT JAMES ALEX ARNETT JAMES R ARNETT KHRISTA NICOLE ARNETT VASHAN T ARNETTE DAVID ARNEVIK DONALD ARNOLD EDWARD ARNOLD JR
JAYSON RAY ARNOLD JONAH ARNOLD JUSTIN LEE ARNOLD KALEB CHRISTIAN ARNOLD NICHOLAS M ARNOLD TRENTON WESLEY ARNOLD WILLIAM S ARNOLD BRIAN MICHAEL ARNONE KODY ARQUETTE DANIEL GUSTAVO ARREDONDO LEOPOLDO G ARREDONDO SERVANDO ARREDONDO
ALAN GASTON ARREDONDO CASTILLO  ANA PAULA ARREDONDO CASTILLO LARISSA ARREDONDO DOMINGUEZ BRIAN PATINO ARREGUIN CHRISTOPHER ARREGUIN  EDDIE ARREGUIN ERIK ARREGUIN  JOSE PATINO ARREGUIN ALFREDO ARREOLA JASON ARREOLA RENEE JOY ARREOLA
JENNIFER ROSE ARREQUIN  FELIPE ARRESEIGOR ~ EDUARDO ARRIAGA  CHARLES C ARRINGTON ~ JUSTIN ARRINGTON ~ ROWANTA XAVIER ARRINGTON ~ MICHAEL ANTHONY ARRIOLA  IGNACIO GONZALEZ ARROLLO  ARMANDO ARROYO  FELIX OMAR ARROYO  JOHNNY REA ARROYO
GABRIEL ARROYO CALVILLO  MANUEL ARRUDA  EDWARD A ARSENAULTJR  RYAN MATTHEW ARSENEAU  ZACHARY L ARSNOE ~ ANTHONY B ARTAGAME ~ JASON B ARTAGAME ~ LEONEL M ARTEAGA SR MARCO ANTONIO ARTEAGA  JOSE CARLOS ARTEAGA-CASTANEDA ~ MARK ARTECHI
GEORGE W ARTENSTEIN TYLER E ARTFITCH BRANDIARTHUR JASON ARTHUR STEVEN JOSEPH ARTHUR JUAN M ARTIGAS JR NOAH ARTUSO MUTHU DAYANIDHI ARUNACHALAM SIVARAM ARUNACHALAM JOHN M ARVIDSON DAVID EUGENE ARVIN JORGE ALEJANDRO ARZABALA TORRES
CESAR ALONSO ARZABALA- TORRES JUAN CARLOS ARZATE ARNOLDO ARZOLA FRANCISCO JAVIER ARZOLA HELEN QUETZALY ARZOLA GREGORIO ARZUAGA PHILIP ASANTE WILLIAM EARL ASBACH KEITH V ASBELL MASON ANDREW ASBELL SEAN C ASBELL WILLIAM HERBERT ASBURY IV
BRIAN M ASCHLEMAN DAGMAWI T ASFAW  JADAH MYKEA ASH RUSTY S ASHBY JR  SHELLY ASHBY CHARLES WILLIAM ASHCRAFT ZACHARY H ASHCROFT KELVIN D ASHE EASTON TASHER ROYL ASHER MOHAMMADREZA ASHERLOO BRENNEN DAVIS ASHFORD DENNIS L ASHINHUST
AMBER ELISABETH ASHLEY ~ ANDREW ASHLEY BONNIKA N ASHLEY ~ BRYAN HARRIS ASHLEY JR  CHRISTOPHER RASHAN ASHLEY ~ CODY D ASHLEY ~GRANTNEAL ASHLEY ~MATTHEW HARRELL ASHLEY THOMAS H ASHLEY THOMAS K ASHLEY ~WILMA S ASHLEY D MCKADE ASHLIMAN
ANNA NICOLAMISHA ASHMEADE  EMILY S ASHMORE  JOHN NEAL ASHMORE  JOSEPH KEVIN ASHMORE MARK D ASHMORE STEPHEN ASHMORE WALTER KAINE ASHMORE  ANIKET ASHOK PATIL  ASMITA ASHOK PATIL  AVINASH ASHOK SWAIN  ANDREW MARK ASHTON  RANDY ASHURST
RYAN ASHURST BRANDON ASHWORTH GORDON REED ASHWORTH JAMES D ASHWORTH RONALD W ASHWORTH AMY PILAND ASKEW JOSEPH P ASKEW KENDALL ASKEW STEVEN WAYNE ASKEW Il WILLIAM BRYANT ASKEW WILLIAM TONY ASKEW MAHDI ASSAR HANAN ASSFOURA
MICHAEL A ASTROSKY ROGER S ASUNCION LAHU ASWALE MEHMET E ATAMAN RICHARD ATAMANCHUK WILLIAM A ATCHER RUSSELL H ATCHLEY CHAYOTE ATEAH TANIA RENEA ATES VIRAJ ASHOK ATHAVALE TANNER ATHERTON DAN ATKIN ANTHONY ANDREW ATKINS I1SOM ATKINS III
ISOM ATKINS JR JASON CLAN ATKINS MICHAEL EDWARD ATKINS PATTY KERBY ATKINS STEVEN CODY ATKINS STEVEN D ATKINS WILLIAM M ATKINS AUSTIN ATKINSON BRADY W ATKINSON BROOKS E ATKINSON CHRISTIE LYNN ATKINSON DAKOTA JAMES ATKINSON DANIEL L ATKINSON
ELIJAH ALEXXANDER ATKINSON JAKE DANIEL ATKINSON JAMES BRENT ATKINSON JAMES R ATKINSON JR JOANNE ATKINSON JONATHAN B ATKINSON JOSEPH J ATKINSON IV MARK A ATKINSON RICHARD ATKINSON SHANE CHRISTOPHER EVANS ATKINSON SKYLER D ATKINSON TINA ATKINSON
ALEXANDER ATOIAN AMANDA C ATTAWAY LEE R ATTAWAY BOYD ATTERBERRY ASTRID ALEJANDRA ATTIAS CEVEDO ETHAN JAY ATWOOD SHEARL DEAN ATWOOD CHRISTIAN AUBIN JAMES MICHAEL AUBREY HAYDEN JACK AUBUT JOSIAS JOHANNES AUCAMP KYLA AUCONE ROBERT AUCONE
ROBERT A AUCONE  JOSHUA MICHAEL AUER  MICHAEL AUER  BRANDON AUFFERT ~CHRISTOPHER CHARLES AUFRANCE CHANDLER ESPAN AUGENSTEIN  KIRSTEN A AUGSBACK  JAMES P AUGUSTIN  LINDSEY L AULBY ROBBY AULT RAYMOND E AULTMAN  JACOB EZEKIEL AUSTERMAN
CLAYTON HASLETT AUSTILL NATHANIEL WILLIAM AUSTILL ADAMTAUSTIN ARIANA AUSTIN CODY ISAIAH AUSTIN CURTIS AUSTIN DYLAN QUADE AUSTIN ERIC L AUSTIN GEORGE S AUSTIN HAYDEN ALLEN AUSTIN HERSHEL W AUSTIN JASON S AUSTIN JOEY L AUSTIN KARA CAPREE AUSTIN
KAYLA BROOKE AUSTIN KYLER CLAIR AUSTIN MICHAEL ANTHONY AUSTIN SHAWN H AUSTIN THEA AUSTIN ANTHONY AUSTON JEREMY JOHN AUTHEMENT JR MIGUEL ANGEL AVALOS SARAI AVALOS JULIO AVALOS ESCOTO ALEXANDRA C AVANS DARRELL WEST AVANS JACKSON MCKAY AVANT
MAXIMILIANO AVER MICHAEL S AVERITT LILY MAE AVERKAMP BRIAN AVERY BRYAN KEITH AVERYJR DERRELL AVERY JACOB WESTON AVERY JAMES TYLER AVERY KEVIN RAY AVERY AARON AVILA ERIKAVILA FLOR MARIA AVILA JOSEAVILA LUIS AVILA MARIE AVILA MARTIN X AVILA
MATTHEW ELLIS AVILA  WILSON AMILCAR AVILA BATEN  OSSIEL NA AVILA DELGADILLO CESAR AVILA RAMIREZ  FRANCISCO AVILA-AGUILAR  JFERNANDO AVILA-GARCIA BRENDA ARACELI AVILES VANESSA AVILES DAVID WALTER AVILES LOPEZ  LILIIA AVILES-DIAZ EDUARDO AVILEZ JR
JAMES D AWBREY ~ ZAAWI  JACOB ROSS AXELSON  RYAN JAXFORD ~ ANDREW AXLINE ~ KEVIN ROBERTAXT  CARLOS ALFONSO AYALA  JAVIER AYALA  MARIE GISELLE AYALA ~ OTONIEL N AYALA  JOSE RUBEN SANCHEZ AYALA  JOSE G AYALA CINTORA  URIEL AYALA CINTORA
CESAR ANTONIO AYALA-MARTINEZ JAMES AYCOCK JR JUSTICE MALACHI AYCOCK KEVIN ERIC AYCOCK CHRISTOPHER R AYER ANGELA N AYERS JUSTIN C AYERS NATHAN ROBERT AYERS THOMAS AYERS KRYSTAL LEE AYNES MICHAEL ROBERT AYOTTE SHADY AYOUB AUSTEN WILLIAM AYRES
DANIEL W AYRES WALKER ROBERT AYRES MOHAMED AZARUDEEN TONY A AZEVEDO AIDAN THOMAS AZINGER PEDRO IVAN AZUARA-HEREDIA ISAAC SABINA AZUCENA SAHEED ADEOYE BABALOLA ASHLEY BABB ADAM S BABCOCK KEVIN M BABCOCK HERMAN R BABE LOGAN DATHEN BABER
DALE ABABIN JR RICHARD J BABINEAU JAY RYAN BABOR UNNIMAYA BABU NORMAN BABUIN AKKASH BABUJI IVAN ALEXIS RODRIGUEZ BACA JAKE ABACH SEVERIN JBACH ALBERTBACHE MARCUS ADAM BACHELOR DEVAN LYNN BACHER MATTHEW D BACHMAN JOHN R BACK III
CHRISTOPHER J BACKEL JONATHAN BACKES CHAD W BACKHAUS JESSE J BACKHAUS ARNE NILS BACKLUND GREGORY R BACKUS NATHAN W BACKUS RODNEYW BACKUS KEVIN EBACON MAVERICK WESTON BACON SKYLER CHASE BACON TERRY A BACOTE TERRY KYSHAWN BACOTE
KYLE BADCOCK TRAVIS BADEAUX COLLYN BADENHOP TIMOTHY BADER JAMES L BADGER JUSTIN MALIK BADGER SAMANTHA LYNNE BADGER ALEX ARTURO BADILLO GERALD G BADMAN JR VANCE BADOUR DHILIPKUMAR BADRAPPAN JAEWAN J BAE KERRY M BAEHR ALEXANDER BAER
JASON A BAER JEREMY BAER MATTHEW P BAERMANN MARCO A BAEZ ABRAHAM BAEZA YAIR ALBERTO BAEZA GOMEZ TY SCOTT BAGGE HADI BAGHCHEHSARAI JERZY BAGINSKI ANTHONY W BAGLEY ROBERTC BAGLEY MARK BAGNULO SAMANTHA LYNN BAGNUOLO CARLTON BAGWELL
JEROD A BAGWELL COLBY R BAHE JESUS BAHENA GARCIA BRICE BAHHUR BENJAMEN BAIER RYAN BAILER CHADRICK MORICE BAILEY CHARLES A BAILEY CHASE D BAILEY CHRISV BAILEY CHRISTA D BAILEY CHRISTOPHER JERRY BAILEY DALE BAILEY DARREN R BAILEY DAVID W BAILEY
DEREK WAYNE BAILEY GREGORY DEWAYNE BAILEY JACOB BAILEY JOHN EBAILEY JOHN PATRICK BAILEY Il JONATHAN BAILEY JONATHAN R BAILEY JOSEPH AARON BAILEY LARRY DION BAILEY LAUREN W BAILEY LOGAN JACOB BAILEY LOGANTBAILEY MADALENE KAYLEE BAILEY
MICHAEL BAILEY NATHAN D BAILEY PHILIP DAVID BAILEY QUENTIN NATHANIEL BAILEY RANDY K BAILEY RANDY S BAILEY TANNER DAKOTA BAILEY TRENTON BAILEY JORDAN ALEXANDER BAIN BRYAN ZACHARY BAINES KYNDAL GRACE-ANN BAIR RICHARD SCOTT BAIR STEVEN R BAIR JR
TRICIA RENEE BAIR JOSHUA C BAIRD MORGAN E BAIRD MARTIN BAJER THOMAS WALTER BAJIER ALBERT BAJRAMI KARANPREET BAJWA ANDREW BAJZERT ANTHONY BAK AARON BAKER AARON C BAKER AARON K BAKER ADAM L BAKER ALEX BAKER AMY B BAKER AMY NICOLE BAKER
ANDREW PORTER BAKER  ASHLYNN GWEN BAKER BRAEDEN D BAKER BROOKLYN BAKER CHANCE A BAKER CHRISTOPHER M BAKER CODY L BAKER CODY RAY BAKER DANIEL W BAKER DANIELLE NICOLE BAKER DANNIELLE S BAKER DAVID BAKER DAWANA ALLAROSA BAKER
DUSTIN WAYNE BAKER ELLISHA SUE BAKER FORRESTER R BAKER GABRIEL GENE BAKER IRA JBAKER JARRIOD B BAKER JOEL D BAKER JOHN JBAKER JONATHAN D BAKER JONATHAN S BAKER JORDAN LEE BAKER KAIGAN SCOTT BAKER KEVIN BAKER KEVIN BAKER KYRON BRENT BAKER
LORAN RUBY BAKER MATTHEW STEPHEN BAKER MICHAEL E BAKER MICHAEL O BAKER MIRAN OTHMAN BAKER PATRICE ANN BAKER PHILLIP A BAKER PRESTON O BAKER RANDALL G BAKER JR RHONDA KAY BAKER ROY L BAKER RUSSELL D BAKER SCOTTM BAKER SCOTTR BAKER
SPURGEON G BAKER JR  TAMATHA L BAKER TYLER BAKER TYLER JAMES BAKER TYLER NEIL BAKER WADE BAKER WILLIAM BAKER WILLIAM BAKER LUMINITA BALABAN HARSHAVARDHAN BALAJI KARTHIKA BALAKRISHNAN NIKEISHA BALAKRISHNAN VINOTHKUMAR BALAKRISHNAN
ATHINAM BALASUBRAMANIAN JOSHUA THOMAS BALBIER ISRAEL SALDIVAR BALBOA CRISTOBAL BALBUENA KELGUER BALBUENA MARCELINO BALBUENA JESUS BALDERAS JOSE LUIS BALDERAS SUZANNA GONZALEZ BALDERAS RONALD P BALDO JACOB ANDREW BALDUF DEWAUN L BALDWIN
JEFFERY M BALDWIN JR JOSHUA RYAN BALDWIN LOGAN ANDREW BALDWIN MASON BALDWIN TAYLOR JOY BALDWIN GABRIEL DAVID BALEANU ASHLEY BALES CHADRICK DURAY BALES CHASE AUSTEN BALES MATTHEW JOSEPH BALEST JEAN-MICHAEL BALHA CHRISTOPHER A BALICKI
DERON BALKARAN BRANDON THOMAS BALKE CHRISTOPHER MARVIN BALKE CHRISTA C BALL DARNELL BALL JR GARRY W BALL JASON JOEL BALL JOHNNY JBALL Il LAURA BALL MARCI R BALL RANDI RAE BALL SAMUEL D BALL TIMOTHY J BALL TUCKER DANIEL BALL ZACHARY HAYDEN BALL
JESSE BALLA CJ HUNTER BALLARD BRADLEY THOMAS BALLENGER AUSTIN M BALLENTINE KIERRA MICHELLE BALLENTINE TRACIE BALLENTINE JOSE BALLESTEROS JUAN BALLESTEROS ROCKY PARAYNO BALLESTEROS JOSEPH F BALLEW Ill WESLEY TYLER BALLEW VICTOR SAMUEL BALLEZA
WAGNER DAELY BALLINGER  FREDERICK BALLOU ~ JASON LEE BALLS NICKOLAS JOHN BALMER ~JONATHON P BALOGH DAMILOLA SOLOMON BALOGUN OLABOSIPO BALOGUN BRODY JAMES BALSER MARTIN BALTAZAR ~ MARIA BALTAZAR ANDRES ~ CLAUDIA ELIZABETH BALTAZAR DIAZ
CYWEN TABITA BALTERO  JANICE BALTZELL  LUIS JESUS BALVER NAVARRETE ~ RUSSELL J BALVIN  KRISTI MARIE BANALES RAMIRO BANDA ROJAS ~ SIVA SENKAR BANDARU  IHOR BANDRIVSKYl ~HELEN SHELBY BANDT ~MAXWELLE BANDT CRAIG M BANDUR  SEAN MICHAEL BANDUR
CHRISTIAN LEE BANE ~ WILLIAM R BANE ~ SUSANNAH CREIGHTON BANFIELD  DAVE BANGERT ~JEREMY BANKER BRANDON A BANKS BRANDON ANTHONY BANKS JR  CHARLES ERIC BANKS ~COURTNEY D BANKS ~DELMAS M BANKS ~ DELMAS M BANKS ~ DENIS BANKS  ERIC E BANKS




HARRISON KYLE BANKS OCTAVIS BANKS Ill PERRY R BANKS RYDER ALAN BANKS WILLIAM B BANKS WILLIAM CODY BANKS WILLIAM T BANKS WILLIE CORNELL BANKS COLTON W BANKSTON WALTER W BANNICK JAMES MICHAEL BANNING JR DANIEL TBANNON STEPHEN P BANNOWSKY
FAMEZA BANO NOAH C BANTON RAMON BANUELOS ALBERTO BARAJA RIGOBERTO BARAJAS ROBERTO BARAJAS SALVADOR BARAJAS JORGE FERNANDO BARAJAS MACIAS ANNA E BARAN CALEBTIMOTHY BARAN MATTHEW PAUL BARAN BRANDON LEE BARBEE CAREY LORENZO BARBEE II
DEVORIK BARBEE KEVIN TRENT BARBEE VALARIE JENINE BARBEE ANGEL NICOLE BARBER BRAYDEN BARBER BREANNA BARBER CHRISTOPHER WILLIAM BARBER DERRICK B BARBER FRANKLIN BARBER HEATH BARBER JASON BARBER JOSEPH BRETT BARBER LARRY JEROME BARBER
MASON JEROME BARBER ~ MITCHELL LEE BARBER ~ RICHARD BARBER ~ BRIAN L BARBERY  JESSICA RENEE BARBISH FRANKW BARBON  LUIS ANGEL BARBOSA ~ HECTOR O BARBOZA-REYES ~ FAY BARBRICK  DAVID P BARCAL  KENDRA GULLATT BARCLAY  SHEILA RENE BARCLAY
ROHIT RATNAKAR BARDAPURKAR ERNEST E BARE MICHAEL S BARE CHRISTOPHER BRADLEY BAREFOOT JEFFREY JOHN BAREFOOT ARTUR DOMINIK BAREJA JEFFREY BARFIELD JOHN FRANKLYN BARFIELD REX KENDELL BARFIELD Il BRAD K BARFUSS JOHN K BARFUSS KARL L BARFUSS
CHARLES E BARGER JR  WILLIAM DEVON BARGER CHRISTY LYNNE BARGERY NICKOLE M BARGMAN MATTHEW D BARGSTADT JONATHAN ROBERT BARHAM ANDREW M BARKER CHRISTOPHER LAYTON BARKER COOPER BJ BARKER DANIEL RYAN BARKER DONALD WILLIAM BARKER I1I
DOUGLAS W BARKER GAIGE B BARKER GRANT BARKER HAMPTON TBARKER JARRETTTYLER BARKER JOSEPH A BARKER JOSHUA BARKER KEVIN L BARKER KEVIN P BARKER MICHAEL BARKER QUENTIN THOMAS BARKER ROBERT GLENN BARKER RUSSELL W BARKER TIMOTHY J BARKER
TODD A BARKER TRAVIS J BARKER TYLER BARKER JONATHAN THOMAS BARKL ERNEST BARKLEY HERMAN JON BARKLEY JEFFREY PAUL BARKMAN CHARLIE O BARKS GARY LYNDALE BARKS NATHANIEL B D BARKS CHARLES E BARKSDALE JR ERIC J BARKSDALE JOSHUA HOYT BARKSDALE
KEVIN E BARKSDALE JOSHUA B BARLET FRASHOD C BARLOW NATHAN BARLOW ZACHARY WAYNE BARLOW SURENDRA BARMA JOSEPH RYAN BARNABY KEENON D BARNARD DARNELL RENARE BARNER DARYL R BARNER ISAIAH DARYL BARNER ROBERT J BARNER SHANE D BARNER
KALVIN BARNERT ALFRED J BARNES JR ANDREW RAYMOND BARNES AUBREY NICOLE BARNES BRIAN A BARNES CHARLES BARNES CHRISTIAN DYRE BARNES CLAIRISSA GRACE BARNES DAMEON O BARNES DAVID R BARNES DONALD E BARNES DUSTIN BARNES EDDIE LEE BARNES
HENRY WESLEY BARNES JACOB WESLEY BARNES JOHNATHAN TYLER BARNES JUSTIN BARNES JUSTIN D BARNES JUSTIN M BARNES KAPHONES LATRELL BARNES LAQUAN BARNES LOGAN ALEXANDER BARNES MATTHEW ELLIOTT BARNES NATHANIEL MATTHEW BARNES ONEIL BARNES
RAYMOND G BARNES ROBERT LUTHER BARNES TIMOTHY BLAINE BARNES TODD D BARNES TRAVIS D BARNES VIRGIL LEE BARNES WILLIAM D BARNES AARON J BARNETT COREY JAMES BARNETT CYNTHIA EULA BARNETT JAMES M BARNETT JAMIE MAURICE BARNETT KENDALL LEIGH BARNETT
MATHEW DAVID BARNETT MATTHEW C BARNETT MELISSA S BARNETT TIMOTHY BLAKE BARNETT WILLIAM MATTHEW BARNETT CHRISTOPHER DANIEL BARNETTE COREY PATRICK BARNETTE DONALD A BARNEY REYNALDO CORTEZ BARNEY JR SHELLY ANN BARNGROVER AARON R BARNHART
CLIFFORD DAVID BARNHART DANIEL DEAN BARNHART DAVID E BARNHART DEVON MARTIN MICHEAL BARNHART KENNETH E BARNHART MARK BARNHART BRIAN ADAM BARNHILL MATTHEW ALAN BARNHILL JASON R BARNSTABLE NANCY SUSAN BARNWELL DOUGLAS BARON MARK H BARON
ADAM J BARONE ANDREW H BARR ERIC BENJAMIN BARR JAMES A BARR JEREMY L BARR JOHN H BARR JOSHUA D BARR JOSIAH ABARR LOGAN K BARR VINCE BARR JUAN BARRAGAN ROBERTO CARLOS BARRAGAN DELFINO BARRAGAN LOPEZ EDWIN SALVADOR BARRAGAN SOLANO
BENJAMIN N BARRANCO MARCO ANTONIO DIAZ BARRANCO ~ MOLLIE E BARRATT ALESSANDRO BARRECA ADEL BARRERA ERIKA JOY BARRERA RACHAEL BARRERA ADRIANA ALEJANDRA GUZMAN BARRERA CALEB RYAN BARRETT CASEY WILLIAM BARRETT = CHRISTOPHER L BARRETT
CHRISTY LEE BARRETT DAWN M BARRETT JACOB A BARRETT JEREMY C BARRETT JEREMY KYLE BARRETT ROBERTJBARRETTJR SHAWN H BARRETT STEVEN RAY BARRETT ZACHARY PHILIP BARRETT BRANDIE LEE BARRETTE  JUSTIN DUANE BARRINEAU ~ LAURICE R BARRINEAU JR
KIRK D BARRINGTON I NATHAN BARRINGTON TIMOTHY BARRINGTON BRETT DAVID BARRIOS ENGELS JOSUE BARRIOS RUSSELL Q BARRIOS CHAD R BARRON JASON DERRICK BARRON ROBERT DARYON BARRON BRANDON DE JESUS BARRON JEAN N BARROS AREVALO WILLIAM J BARROW
JOSHUA D BARROWS CHANDA LAVEE BARRY ETHAN BARRY JOSEPH BARRY MARTIN E BARRY Il MORGAN RENEE BARRY ROBERT JBARRY STEVEN THOMAS BARRY WINSTON BARRY ZACHARY M BARRY COREYTHOMAS BARTEE STEVEN J BARTEL JOHNATHAN RUSSELL BARTHEL
MATTHEW ALAN BARTHOLET AARON C BARTHOLOMEW CHRISTOPHER BARTHOLOMEW KARRIE ANN BARTHOLOMEW LISA MARIE BARTHOLOMEW CLARE ELISE BARTLETT DAMIAN WESTON BARTLETT JAMES ALAN BARTLETT JEREMY LEE BARTLETT JOSHUA NASH BARTLETT PETER BARTLETT
ROBERT L BARTLETT TIFFANY BARTLETT BRITTANY ROCHELLE BARTLEY TIMOTHY J BARTLING ALFRED M BARTOL PHILLIP BARTOLETTI THOMAS M BARTON DAMIAN WEST BARTRUM DUSTIN THOMAS BARWICK TERRY O BARWICK WALTER BARWICK YOGI GROFF BARWICK HANNAH NICOLE BARY
MARY ANN BASCO MIGUEL BASCUR DACODA WAYNE BASDEN BLAIRE ELIZABETH BASHAM BRANDON LEE BASHAM HEATHER M BASHAM KAITLYN ELIZABETH BASHAM KENNON DALE BASHAM PAUL D BASHAM GERALD BASHAW JR STEVEN E BASHFORD KARI E BASHIOUM JESSICA BASHORE
RANDALL BASHORE JR  GOWTHAM BASKAR KRISHNARAJ B BASKAR K BRETTBASLER TARAY MYCHELE BASNIGHT ~ALAIN BASQUE CECIL RYAN BASS CHANTASIA RAPSODEE BASS ELLIS BASS LEVON BASS ROBERTBASS RYAN CHRISTIAN BASS SKYLER SHANE BASS VICTOR BASS
WILLIE MCAURTHUR BASS  LOGAN BASSETT  JASON L BASSHAM  JACK JOHN BASSILE  FABRICE BASTIEN JOSEPH B BASTIN  MALISSA ANMAREE BATCHELOR  JORDAN DALE BATELAAN  JIM BATEMAN MILES A BATEMAN TANNER BATEMAN  AARON KENNETH BATES  BRIAN K BATES
CHRISTOPHER M BATES CORY A BATES DANIEL D BATES DEWIGHT EDWARD BATES DUSTIN BATES GEORGE ALLEN BATES JASON BATES JEFFREY KYLE BATES JOSHUA M BATES KWESI BATES RONNIE L BATES RYLAND EDWARD BATES SHAKEIL JEREAL BATES TAMI BATES TOMMY BATES
TONY WAYNE BATES TYLER L BATES WILLIAM ANDREW BATES DARRELL WAYNE BATLEY JORGE A BATRES MARK A BATSON MELVIN J BATSON STEFANO MACARIO BATTAFARANO THOMAS J BATTERBEE JOHN CAMPBELL BATTERSBY TREVOR RILEY BATTERSHAW  LINDSAY BATTILANA
TAWAN BATTLES EUGENE G BATTOCCHIO BRANDON WAYNE BATTON BRIAN K BATTON JASON C BATTON JOHN HOWARD BATTS SHELTON MITCHELL BATTS SHELTON MITCHELL BATTS Il TIMOTHY M BATTS JOHN F BATY CHAD MICHAEL BAUDENDISTEL STEPHEN BAUDLER ADAM J BAUER
JOHN EDWIN BAUER JOSHUA BAUER KELCI B BAUER QUENTIN G BAUER REID CHRISTIAN BAUER TREVOR TBAUER SETH E BAUERLE AUBREY BAUGH Il CALVIN CURTIS BAUGH DANIEL WARREN BAUGH TYLER STEVEN BAUGHER FRANKLIN A BAUGHMAN TYLER A BAUGHMAN BELLE R BAUGUS
DYLAN CHASE BAUGUS  JODY W BAUGUS ADAM C BAUMANN  DAVID BAUMANN RACHAEL L BAUMANN  SARA J BAUMANN SETH M BAUMERT FRANK L BAUMGARDNER ANTHONY C BAUMGARTNER BRENDAN J BAUMGARTNER DANIEL C BAUMGARTNER RICHARD MATTHEW BAUREIS
TIMOTHY J BAUSMITH ~ ABELINO BAUTISTA ~ JOHNNY BAUTISTA  JOSEPHINE DEGUZMAN BAUTISTA LUIS MIGUEL BAUTISTA  MOISES BAUTISTA NEREIDA BAUTISTA CARLOS DE JESUS HERNANDEZ BAUTISTA EDGAR GUTIERREZ BAUTISTA  ALMA LILIANA BAUTISTA ALCARAZ
CHRISTIAN DAVID BAUTISTA QUIROGA ALLEN MICHAEL BAXLEY DEVIN K BAXLEY JACKSON WINFIELD BAXLEY ROBERTS BAXLEYJR SCOTTA BAXLEY DAVID ERIC BAXTER GERALD R BAXTER JEREMY CHARLES BAXTER MATTHEW BAXTER ROBERT GRAY BAXTER STEPHANIE RENEE BAXTER
TONIA JBAXTER MICHAEL JAMES BAYERQUE CHRISTIAN BAYLES ANDREW BAYLISS ANTONIO BAYLON YANKUBA BAYO MAIKHEL LORENZ BAYOT JEWL BAYWONG ROI ALBERTO BAZAN LINAN  CASEY MOZINGO BAZEN DANIEL WALKUP BAZEN JOHN D BAZEN KEVIN FIELDS BAZEN
CONNOR THOMAS BAZHAW JOHNNY R BAZZELL Il LOUIS BAZZLE JR ADAM L BEACH BOSTON D BEACH CRAIG W BEACH PHILLIP ABEACH BRIAN L BEACHY AMMON BEAGLEY DERRICK BEAHM JESSE LEE BEAL STEPHEN BEALE MACRESZZ L BEAMON DEVIN JBEAN ELIZABETH A BEAN
LORETTA J BEAN REX HOGAN HENDERSON BEAN ROBERT WINNFIELD BEAN JR SONYAYBEAN TIMOTHY BEAN WILLIAM J BEAN WILLIAM J BEAN YANCYW BEAN JACKSON DRAKE NICOLAS BEANE BRANDON BEAN-ROBERTS DAVID BEAR THOMAS R BEAR CHAD BEARD DANNY R BEARD
MACK ARTHUR BEARD Ill SAMUEL TBEARD SEAN M BEARD BENJAMIN DAVID BEARDEN GINA MICHELLE BEARDEN JEFFREY A BEARDEN JOSEPH BEARDEN JOSEPH GENE BEARDEN MISTI QUEEN BEASLEY NICHOLAS SCOTT BEASLEY SHANE A BEASLEY STEVE L BEASLEY DUSTIN L BEASON
PHILLIP ADAM BEASON JONATHAN BEATH BRITTNEY DANIELLE BEATTIE VICKEY LEE BEATY JOHN PETER BEAUCHAMP MANUEL D BEAUCHAMP NICHOLAS BEAUCHAMP JOHNATHAN PAUL BEAUDETTE TRAVIS L BEAUDETTE ELIJAH STEPHON BEAULIEU FRANCOIS BEAULIEU KIMBERLY BEAULIEU
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KAMY ANN BOUDREAUX SETH MICHAEL BOUDREAUX RICKY JBOUGHTON ANTHONYBOUK SABRENA LAURINE BOUKNIGHT BRADEN CHARLES BOULAY DANIEL THOMAS BOULGER ANDREW ROBERT BOUNDS CHRISTOPHER E BOURASSA ROBERT M BOURASSA ALEXANDRE BOURCIER
ALEXANDRE BOURDAGES LIAM BOURGEAU BARRY BOURGEOIS ELIZABETH S BOURLAND BRIAN BOURQUE BRUCE DAVID BOUSQUET JR NICOLAS BURTON BOUSQUET RANDY A BOUTET BRYAN BOUTILIER CHRIS BOUTIN PATRICK SHELDON BOUTON BARBARA J BOUXSEIN CARTER M BOVA
JAMIE BOVAIRD ERICA L BOVEE MICHAEL B BOVIN ANDREW HOUSTON BOWDEN JAMES EDWARD BOWDEN JR KENNAN S BOWDEN RYAN A BOWDEN DEVIN LOUIS BOWDREN KEVIN BOWE KIA BOWEN KIMBERLY KAY BOWEN SEAN BOWEN TRAVIS BOWEN KEENAN ANTHONY BOWER
MATTHEW BOWERMAN  BLAKE ALAN BOWERS BRIAN WADE BOWERS DOTY J BOWERS ERIC MARTIN BOWERS JUSTIN D BOWERS KYLE LEE BOWERS MELANIE RENET' BOWERS ROBERTR BOWERS ROGER D BOWERS CHRISTOPHER BOWES ANNA DENISE BOWLES LANCE C BOWLES
CONNER J BOWLINE ADAM C BOWLING BRIAN A BOWLING DEWEY JBOWLING JACOB DEWAINE BOWLING KEVIN ODELL BOWLING WILLIAM DEWAINE BOWLING BRADD A BOWMAN GEORGE B BOWMAN JAMES BOWMAN JAMES C BOWMAN JEFF BOWMAN LEVI WINSTON BOWMAN
MAXON CURRY BOWMAN  PATRICK K BOWMAN RYAN TODD BOWMAN SHANNON D BOWMAN TERRY D BOWMAN TRISTAN BOWMAN KAROL ANN FRANCES BOWMAN TUKE ALEXANDER BOWN JAMES ABOWN ETHAN G BOWSER REBECCA BOWSER CARILBOX DEVONA CAROL BOX
JEFFREY DANIEL BOX SAMUEL E BOX DEAN BOXALL JAYLEN RAY BOYCE JENNIFER BOYCE MELISSA BOYCE AARON BOYD ALANDIS E BOYD ALEXANDER B BOYD BARRYBOYD BLAKE ALAN BOYD BO A BOYD BOBBYC BOYD BRIAN ONEIL BOYD BRITTANY LEE BOYD CADE RICHARDSON BOYD
CRAIG D BOYD DAVID SBOYD Ill DENNIS M BOYD GREGORY PAUL BOYD IAN B BOYD JEFFREY DEAN BOYD JESSICA BOYD KEVIN BOYD MARKA BOYD MAURICE BOYD JR MELISSA S BOYD NOAH MICHAEL BOYD PATRICIA M BOYD ROBERTBBOYD TERRYLBOYD TORRELL OMORO BOYD
TRENTON ANTHONY BOYD TROY LEON BOYD WILLIAM J BOYD BETH ANN BOYER CHARLES RICHARD BOYER JAMES ALLAN BOYER JEREMY MICHAEL BOYER KEITH ORLANDO BOYICE Il CHARLES DEN BOYLES KATHRYN BOYLES PHILLIP RYAN BOYLES JACOB D BOZARTH JOSHUA ALAN BOZARTH
ANNMARIE BOZEK CHRISTOPHER A BOZEK LOGAN MITCHELL BRAATEN DALE BRABBLE TRINA A BRABEC BRIANNE LEIGH BRACCO ALLEN G BRACEY DANAIC BRACEY DEBORAH KBRACK WILLIAM HBRACK ALICIA YVETTE BRACKEN DOMINIC L BRACKENS MITCHELL ALLEN BRACKETT
JEREMY HUNTER BRADBURN ~ MICHAEL H BRADBURY SHELTON H BRADBURY CODY BRADD DAVID DEWAYNE BRADDOCK RYAN J BRADDOCK CHRISTOPHER B BRADDY DARRELL BRADEN JR ROBERTP BRADEN ADAM BRADFORD CHRISTOPHER BRADFORD DARA MCKAY BRADFORD
EUGENE N BRADFORD ~ JACOB DANIEL BRADFORD  JASON A BRADFORD ~ JONATHAN JACOB BRADFORD  LANDON JARED BRADFORD  LOTTIE BRADFORD ~ ZACKARY STERLING BRADFORD ~ JOSHUA P BRADING ~ ASHLEIGH CAROL BRADLEY CASEY SCOTTBRADLEY CHAD RAY BRADLEY
CURTIS SCOTT BRADLEY ~ JAMES S BRADLEY ~ JONATHON ERIK BRADLEY ~ MATTHEW CLAY BRADLEY  NATHANIEL SHAWN BRADLEY  OLIVIA JASMINE BRADLEY  PAUL ELY BRADLEY TREVANTE ALEXANDER BRADLEY TROY D BRADLEY  ZACHARY TYLER BRADLEY  JOSHUA P BRADOC
JOSHUA ONEIL BRADSHAW LAURA M BRADSHAW MARIA SUZANNA BRADSHAW MATTHEW T BRADSHAW PARKER BRADSHAW BILL VAN BRADY BRETT E BRADY FRED STEVEN BRADY JUSTIN TRAVIS BRADY MCKENZIE HYDE BRADY MICHAEL BRADY TRAVIS A BRADY RHIANNON LEIGH BRAGG
JACOB PAUL BRAGWELL LOGAN BRAID ROBERT BRAID JOFFERY LEBORIUS BRAILEY DAUDA BRAIMAH PHILIP J BRAIN NATHAN MICHAEL BRAKER TREMAINE BYRON BRALEY CHAD M BRAMER JACOB ALAN BRAMER JIMMY B BRAMLETT KODEY BRAMLETT MATTHEW A BRANAM
JAMES D BRANCH JOHN R BRANCH KELLY G BRANCH ELAINE ESTHER BRAND LANDON P BRAND PAUL BRAND TIMOTHY CALEB BRAND GREGORY JBRANDL TRICIA A BRANDL AARON TYLER BRANDON BRANTLEY KYLE BRANDON DONNA J BRANDON JOHN W BRANDON JORDAN BRANDON
JUSTIN M BRANDON CLINTON DOUGLAS BRANDT DAVID BRANDT JASON C BRANDT JERRYW BRANDT SARA C BRANDT TIMOTHY BRANDT CORTNEY BRANHAM JAMES LEONARD BRANHAM JERROD BRANHAM JESSE ELIAS BRANHAM LANDON JAMES BRANHAM JACOB LEE BRANNAN




WILLIAM H BRANNOCK STEVEN NICK BRANNON ANDREW RYAN BRANSON RYAN L BRANSON STEVE A BRANSON THOMAS M BRANT DEBORAH LYNN BRANTLEY KIRK R BRANTLEY LEAH P BRANTLEY RAYMOND E BRANTLEY REGINALD ROZELL BRANTLEY MICHAEL R BRANZ BALDEV BRAR
BRENDAN BRAR ~ RUSSELL BRAR ~ JOHN P BRASELL ~ TIFFANY L BRASELL ~ AUSTIN LEE BRASFIELD ~ HUNTER BLAKE BRASFIELD ~ CANDILYNN BRASHER ~ JACOB AARON BRASHIER  MANUEL BRASIL  DREW NELSON BRASINGTON ~ DANIEL BRASS ~ JASON BRASS ~ MICHAEL BRASSER
HARRISON MONTGOMERY BRASSEUR ~ JEFFREY S BRASSEUR ~ NOAH MICHAEL BRASSEUR ~ AARON BRASSFIELD ~ JEREMY BRASWELL ~ LINDA D BRASWELL ~ AUSTIN RAY BRATCHER ~ JACOB COLE BRATCHER ~ KEVIN R BRATCHER ~ MYRNA BRATHWAITE ~ JEREMY MICHAEL BRATTAIN
WHITNEY NICOLE BRATTON MICHAEL CHARLES BRATZ CRYSTAL BRAUD RICHARD O BRAUER ERIC JBRAUN GREGORY A BRAUN JOSEPH C BRAUN JR JUSTIN BRAUN SIMON BRAUN TERRELL BRAUN JARED J BRAVEBOY BARTOLO BRAVO MARIA DE LOURDES BRAVO RYAN BRAWLEY
EVAN M BRAWNER HUNTER HUTSON BRAWNER ~LARRY R BRAWNER JR SAMANTHA M BRAWNER ANDREW BRAXTON MIKE W BRAXTON ANDREA LYNN BRAY BOBBY JOE BRAY BRADLEYW BRAY CHRISTYLYNN BRAY CONRAD CHARLES BRAY DESAREA SHERICE BRAY JERRY BRAY
NATHAN P BRAY RICHARD AUGUSTUS BRAY SAVANNAH R BRAY SHANE EDWARD BRAY CHRISTOPHER BRAYE JAMES PETER BRAYLEY LUKE ANTHONY BRAZAS HUNTER DYLAN BRAZELL CAMERAN MICHAEL BRAZIEL JOSHUA MICHAEL BRAZIEL ALLEN E BRAZIER Il PATRICK NEAL BRAZIER
BRIAN B BREACH CALIN BREAHNA STEPHANE BREAU BRAD BREAUD CLARISSA A BREAUX JEFFREY S BREDEHOFT AMYJBREDEMEYER CARLW BREDEMEYER ALEX EZEKIEL BREECK DAVID WAYNE BREED TERRY L BREEDEN WILLIAM REED BREEDEN ALEXANDER RYAN BREEDING
MATTHEW BRANDON BREEDING ~ MICHELE L BREEN ~ DAVID A BREES ~ LORIBREES  KAITLYN MARIE BREININGER ~ THOMAS BREITKREUTZ ~ CLAYBORN BRELAND  JOSEPH M BRELAND ~ NATHANIEL L BRELAND ~ MATTHEW BREMSETH ~ NATALYA BRENICH  CHRISTOPHER J BRENNAN
DALTON MATTHEW BRENNAN DANIEL BRENNAN DANIEL E JASON WILLIAM BLAKE STEVEN BRENNER NICHOLAS WAYNE BRENNER KALEB B BRENTS CHRISTOPHER BRESTER KURTIS BRETEY PAUL B BRETSCHNEIDER AUSTIN D BRETTSCHNEIDER BILL D BREWER
DAMIAN CORTEZ BREWER JAMES W BREWER JARED KYLE BREWER JEREMY BREWER JEREMY BREWER JONATHAN L BREWER LARRY JAMES BREWER MICHAEL R BREWER PHILLIP W BREWER ROSE MARIE BREWER SEAN MICHAEL BREWER WALTER EUGENE BREWER WILLIAM BREWER
BLAZE ALEXANDER BREWINGTON CHRISTINA M BREWINGTON TANNER CHARLES BREWINGTON - DE ANGELIS TREASURE UZE ROLADA BREWSTER MATTHEW BREYER DANIEL BREZEALE MICHAEL ALEXANDER BRICENO RINCON CHRISTINE ANN BRICKNER  GAURAV BRID  ERIC BRIDEAU
SEBASTIEN BRIDEAU JOHN MICHAEL BRIDGEFORTH MALCOLM JAMAR BRIDGEFORTH ANTHONY W BRIDGES CARTER GLENN BRIDGES CLIFTON R BRIDGES DAVID W BRIDGES DIRK WAYNE BRIDGES MADISON NICOLE BRIDGES MARY B BRIDGES ALEX R BRIEL BRIAN PATRICK BRIENZA
ANGELO MAURIZIO BRIENZO  JEFFERY A BRIER  AMBER NICOLE BRIGGS BODEAN N BRIGGS BRIAN BRIGGS CALEB JAMES BRIGGS GREG BRIGGS JOSEPH C BRIGGS TODD E BRIGHAM DAPHNE A D BRIGHT ROBERT CORDARO BRIGHT TIMOTHY LEE BRIGHT  STEVEN L BRIGHTWELL
JARED A BRIGNER JAMES ADAM BRILEY RONALD J BRILEY DAVID G BRILL JONATHAN WILLIAM BRIMER KITTY BRIN CASSANDRA BRINDOWSKI CEDRIC BRINE BENJAMIN BRADLEY BRINK CODY DALE BRINK KLARK D BRINKERHOFF MICHAEL NEAL BRINKLEY BILLY CLAYTON BRINSON
GERALD BRINSON CODY BRINTON JORDAN PINON BRION JORGE BRIONES BRANDON JO BRISENO ANDREW DANIEL BRISSON THOMAS BRISTOL CHRIS BRISTOW ROBERT L BRISTOW ANTHONY BRITO GERALD L BRITO GREGORY L BRITT KEITH ALLAN BRITT LORIN CARL BRITT RYAN BRITT
AARON L BRITTAIN BRYAN BRITTON CHANCELOR MILES BRITTON WILLIAM FREDERICK BRITTON BRIAN C BRIZENDINE ELIZABETH BRKIC DAWSON LEE BROACH JEREMY BROACH JUSTIN B BROACH JUSTIN TYLER BROACH KENNETH EDWARD BROAD PENNY S BROAD FORREST M BROADHEAD
MATTHEW N BROADHEAD ANTWAUN BROADNAX CLINTON WALKER BROADUS JASON L BROADUS RUSTY L BROADUS TAYLOR JBROADUS TIMOTHY W BROADWELL TRAVIS BROCHU CHADWICK JBROCK CHRISTOPHER M BROCK DAVID N BROCK IIl' JAROD MICHAEL BROCK JASON M BROCK
MISTY STRICKLAND BROCK RICHARD FRANCIS BROCK ROBERT M BROCK ROSEANNE MICHELLE BROCK STEPHEN RAY BROCK TERRY JO BROCK WALTER H BROCK IV ZACHARY DARRELL BROCK SPENCER JAMES BROCKDORFF THOMAS JERUAD BROCKINGTON DEMARIO DEJEAN DENTON BRODERICK
PETER J BRODERICK  DEREK LEE BRODERS  JESSE BRODHAGEN  KELLY JOE BRODIE  HEATH J BRO MARLON W BRO! DONALD M BROGAN ~ ADAM ALEX BROGDEN ~ AUSTIN RYAN BROGDEN ~ KERIJBROGREN ~ RYAN M BROGREN ~ MICAH MACKENZIE BROMLEY
QUINCEY LAMONTE BRONER BRANDON BRONSON  KEVIN BROOK JOSEPH BROOKE JOSEPH K BROOKINS ADAM W BROOKS BLAINE MANUEL BROOKS BRANDON PAUL BROOKS BRIAN NATHAN BROOKS CALVIN L BROOKS CHRISTOPHER A BROOKS CHRISTOPHER LATHAN BROOKS
CHRISTOPHER SEAN BROOKS DANE LAWRENCE BROOKS DANIEL L BROOKS DYLAN BROOKS GEORGIA CLARE BROOKS JACOBTODD BROOKS JEFFREY D BROOKS Il JEREMY D BROOKS JESSE M BROOKS JOSHUA PHILIP BROOKS JOSHUA R BROOKS JUSTIN SHAUN BROOKS KAILIB BROOKS
KATHLEEN LOUISE BROOKS KERRY L BROOKS KIM L BROOKS KIMBERLY ANN BROOKS MARC BROOKS MATT BROOKS NATHAN ZANE BROOKS PHILIP B BROOKS ROBERT BROOKS RONNIE L BROOKS RYAN L BROOKS SHAUN R BROOKS SHAWN MICHAEL BROOKS TALESHA SHANE BROOKS
TODD S BROOKS TROY A BROOKS IIl TYLER E BROOKS WILLIAM A BROOKS CURTIS BROOM JR HARRY CHARLES THADDAEUS BROOMALL RONALD SCOTT BROSAN JR DEREK FABELA BROSS BRANDON SHANE BROSSETT ISAAC QUADE BROTHERS JOSHUA CRAIG BROTHERS RICKY R BROTHERS JR
BRUCE F BROTHERSEN JEFFERY A BROUGH RUSSELL A BROUGH SUSAN BROUSSARD HANNAH BROUSSEAU LEANDRE D BROWDER WILLIAM GRANT BROWDER DANIEL R BROWER ALAN L BROWN ALEXANDER JBROWN ALEXANDER M BROWN ALEXIS HAMBY BROWN ANDREW LEWIS BROWN
ANSON BROWN ANTHONY BROWN ANTHONY C BROWN ASHLIE M BROWN BENIQUEZ JACOI BROWN BENJAMIN M BROWN BETH M BROWN BLAKE DANIEL BROWN BRENDAN MICHAEL BROWN BRETL BROWN BRIAN RAY BROWN BRITTANY K BROWN BRYAN M BROWN CASEY ALLEN BROWN
CASSIDY BENSON BROWN  CATHY JO BROWN CHAD DANIEL BROWN CHARLES JEREMIAH BROWN CHARLIE BROWN CHRISTIAN TERRELL BROWN CHRISTOPHER BROWN CHRISTOPHER A BROWN CHRISTOPHER BROOKS BROWN CHRISTOPHER RILEY BROWN CHRISTOPHER S BROWN
CHRISTOPHER TBROWN CODY DAVID BROWN CODY JBROWN COLBY TRENT BROWN CONOR LEROY BROWN CORTNEY BROWN CORY D BROWN DANIEL E BROWN DANNYBROWN DEVEN RYAN BROWN DILLON TROY BROWN DOMINIC A BROWN DOUGLAS K BROWN DRAKE WYATT BROWN
DUMES ABROWN  DUSTY RAYBROWN DYLAN JBROWN DYLAN MICHAEL BROWN ELYSE R BROWN FLETCHER FREDERICK BROWN FREDERICK DEMETRIUS BROWN GREGORY BROWN GRETA O BROWN GUYBROWN HAYDEN C BROWN HOWARD K BROWN  JACOB GUY BROWN
JAKOB HAROLD BROWN JAMES BROWN JAMES A BROWN JAMES A BROWN JAMES A BROWN JAMES MATTHEW BROWN JAMES TYRELL BROWN JARED BROWN JASON H BROWN JASON ROBERT BROWN JAYDEN BROWN JEFFERY DWIGHT BROWN JEFFERY S BROWN JEFFERY WAYNE BROWN
JEFFREY BROWN JEFFREY A BROWN JERRYTBROWN JIMMY RICHARD BROWN III JO JULIETBROWN JOHNTBROWN JONAH LEE BROWN JONATHAN MICHAEL BROWN JOSEPH F BROWN JOSEPH LANE BROWN JOSEPH NATHANIEL BROWN JR JOSEPH R BROWN JOSHUA A BROWN
JOSHUA LYNN BROWN JUSTIN ALLEN BROWN KALEB ZACHARY BROWN KEITH S BROWN KENDELL M BROWN KENDERICK L BROWN KEVEN DERELL BROWN KINTERRIUS ANTWON BROWN KOLBY W BROWN LARRY A BROWN LARRY O BROWN LELAND AUSTIN BROWN LENNIS M BROWN
LISA ABROWN LORIANN BROWN MAC ANTHONY BROWN MACKW BROWN MARCUS ABROWN MARCUS B BROWN MARLENE BROWN MARVIN EDWARD BROWN MATTBROWN MATTHEW E BROWN MATTHEW MCCARL BROWN MATTHEW T BROWN MEGAN ELAINE-KERSHUL BROWN
MICHAEL BROWN MICHAEL E BROWN MICHAEL R BROWN MICHAEL TBROWN NATHAN BROWN NEIL A BROWN NELSON W BROWN NICKOLAS J BROWN NICOLE TEREECE BROWN NINO LAMAR BROWN PAULA L BROWN PHILLIP BROWN RACHELLE LYNN BROWN RAYMOND WILLIAM BROWN
REGINALD W BROWN RICHARD WILLIAM BROWN ROBERT S BROWN ROGER DALE BROWN ROGER BROWN RUSSEL ALAN BROWN RUSSELLHBROWN RUSSELL THEODITH BROWN SAMMY D BROWN SEAN E BROWN SHAQUETTA SYMONE BROWN SHAWN KEITH BROWN SKYLER BROWN
SONNY LEE BROWN STEPHEN BROWN STEVEN LANARD BROWN STEVEN LEE BROWN TABITHA EBROWN TALON SCOTT BROWN TAYLOR JBROWN THOMAS W BROWN TIFFANY M BROWN TIMMY BROWN TIMOTHY GLEN BROWN TIMOTHY WADE BROWN TOMMY RAY BROWN TRACY L BROWN
TRENTON JOSEPH BROWN TREY DONAVIN BROWN TRICIA BROWN TYLER JOEL BROWN WALTER A BROWN Il WESLEY CLAYTON BROWN WILEY ONEAL BROWN WILLIAM DAMON BROWN JR WILLIAM JONATHAN BROWN IIl WILLIAM M BROWN ZACHARY P BROWN ZACKARY AUSTIN BROWN
LEVI E BROWNFIELD ~ KIMBERLY ANN BROWN-HERNANDEZ BOBBY LEE BROWNING BRANDON LEE BROWNING ~ KIMBERLY M BROWNING ~LARRY W BROWNING NATHAN D BROWNING BRIAN BROWNLEE JOHN TROY BROWNLEE JUSTIN ALEXANDER BROWNLEE STEVEN W BROWNLEE
LINDSAY BROWNLEY ~ JOHN CONNOR BROWNRIGG ~ JUSTIN W BROXTON ~ ROBERT C BROYHILL ~ WILLIAM CHAD BROYLES ~ CALEB E BRUBAKER  ERIC C BRUBAKER ~ CHRISTOPHER S BRUBECK ~ BRIAN BRUCE  DAVID ARTHUR BRUCE ~ JASON MICHAEL BRUCE ~ WILLIAM KEITH BRUCE
STEVEN ANTHONY BRUCK JAY ROBERT BRUEGMAN JEFFERY PETER BRUER KATRINA L BRUHN CARL BRUINSMA JAMES CRAIG BRUMBELOE COURTNEY LYNN BRUMLEY BO M BRUMMELS CORY A BRUMMELS JORDAN J BRUMMELS JOHN E BRUMMET DOUGLAS BRUMMETT JUSTIN LEE BRUMMETT
KATHLEEN MAURA BRUNDAGE BRAD BRUNEAU JASON P BRUNER MICHAEL BRUNER TRACEY A BRUNER JEANNINE M BRUNET RICKARD BRUNET JOEL P BRUNING MICHAEL ALLEN BRUNNER SHANNON ALEXANDRA BRUNNER CHRISTOPHER J BRUNS JACOB TBRUNS NEIL J BRUNS
RANDALL K BRUNS DOCK TREVOR BRUNSON THOMAS BRUNSWICK ISAAC H BRUNT ALAN MICHAEL BRUTON ALEXANDER C BRUTON PADEN TRENT BRUTON DEVENTBRUTSMAN BRANDON JOSEPH HUNTER BRYAN ~HARRIS C BRYAN JR  JUSTIN DANIEL BRYAN KADEN SEAN BRYAN
TIMOTHY DALE BRYAN ~ TONY L BRYAN ~ AMBER VELIKA BRYANT ~ AMY LEANN BRYANT ~ BARRY ALLEN BRYANT ~ BRIAN LEE BRYANT ~ DON ALLEN BRYANT  ELIZABETH PAIGE BRYANT  ERIC FITZGERALD BRYANT =~ HAROLD EUGENE BRYANT ~ HEATH W BRYANT ~ HERMAN R BRYANT JR
JACOB NATHANIEL BRYANT JASON K BRYANT JEFFREY L BRYANT JORDAN B BRYANT JOSEPH BERNARD BRYANT KALEB ANDREW BRYANT KIANA O BRYANT LARRY D BRYANT MARANDA M BRYANT PATRICK BRYANT RAYMOND BRYANT WAYNE NEWTON BRYANT CHARLES J BRYEANS
KRISTIE MICHELLE BRYMER ANDREW BRYSON KRISTINE MICHELLE BRZEZINSKI JERRY E BUBLITZ TREVOR BUBLITZ RICHARD J BUBNIAK THOMAS J BUBNIAK JONLUCA BUCCI NICK A BUCCI CHARLES R BUCCIERI LINDEN BENJAMIN BUCCINO ALAN E BUCHANAN ANDREW PARKS BUCHANAN
BRIAN M BUCHANAN COLLIN JOSEPH CARON BUCHANAN DEREK CHANEY BUCHANAN HAROLD DUDLEY BUCHANAN JR HUNTER BUCHANAN JACK BUCHANAN JERRY STEPHEN BUCHANAN JOSHUA ALAN BUCHANAN JOSHUA L BUCHANAN THOMAS MARTIN BUCHANAN  BILLY GUY BUCK
CALE DONALD BUCK CARLGBUCK DAVID KBUCK EDWARD JBUCK KADENBUCK KYLEJBUCK RYANBUCK WILLIAM ANTON BUCKENDAHL JOSEPH WILLIAM BUCKLAND ANTHONY M BUCKLEY BRADY BUCKLEY BRYCE ERIC BUCKLEY DEWAYNE LEE BUCKLEY JAMES T BUCKLEY
RICHARD BUCKLEY THOMAS J BUCKLEY TYLER BUCKMIRE ADAM RICHARD BUCKWALTER CHAD JBUCKWAY CONNOR OWEN BUDD ANTHONY S BUDDE LOUBUDDE RONALD RBUDDIEJR SEAN P BUDINICH TREVOR DILLAN BUDINICH MARK W BUDNICK ABIGAIL KATHRYN BUECHELE
BRYAN BUECHLEY TIFFANY LYNN BUELL TY COOPER BUELL ALFONSO ENRIQUE BUENO PALOMA JOSELIN BUENO AVILA HARALD ERNST BUERGER DAREN J BUETTNER TIMOTHY G BUFFINGTON SARAH LOUISE BUFFY PERRY LEE BUFORD ROBERTKBUGG TYSON LEE BUGIS MICHAEL BUGOS
JARED MICHAEL BUGOSH ~ ALEXANDER NICHOLAS BUHLE ~ CHRISTOPHER JUSTIN BUIE  DUSTIN J BUIST STEPHAN BUJOLD NICHOLAS BUKACZ OLEG A BULANOV  SARAH D BULGARELLA  SHAUNTEL LARRY BULL  BROCK MICHAEL BULLARD ~CAREY W BULLARD  DANIEL LEE BULLARD
GAGE RYAN BULLARD ~ TATE TINSLEY BULLARD ~ ZACHARY DYLAN BULLARD ~STEVEN RBULLER CHRISTOPHER A BULLINGTON JOHN A BULLINS  AUDRIA JEANAE BULLOCK  BRIAN STEVEN BULLOCK  CURTIS LEE BULLOCK Ill  JAMES R BULLOCK ~ RICKY TBULLOCK TANNER B BULLOCK
MICHAEL BULMER ~ CHARLES PARKER BULSON ~ DAVID C BULTEMEIER  LINCOLN WILLIAM BULTEMEIER ~ DUSTIN MICHAEL BUMBALOUGH  BRETT DURAN BUMGARDNER  SHELBIE LEIGH BUMGARDNER ~ ROBERTR BUMPURS ~ MATTHEW BUNCH  STEPHEN M BUNCH  JEREMY S BUNDY
KYLE WAYNE BUNDY TIMOTHY M BUNDY WILLIAM D BUNGER PAMELA BUNKELMAN  WILLIE EDWARD BUNTING IIl  JOHN ANTHONY BUNTON CESAR ANTONIO MENDOZA BUOL JENNIFER DENISE BUONCUORE JAYE M BURAS ANTHONY BURBACH BROOKS J BURBACH JESSE E BURBACH
BRENNAN CRAIG BURBANK ~ ANITA KNIGHT BURCH  CHRISTOPHER ABURCH  CHRISTOPHER ALAN BURCH HOUSTEN WAYNE BURCH  JUSTINTBURCH NOLAN CHRISTOPHER BURCH ~ROBERTL BURCH TAYLOR BRENTBURCH GEORGE WILLIAM BURCHAM Il JOHNATHAN BURCHAM
TERRY D BURCHAM ~ AMANDA L BURCHELL  LUCAS W BURCHETT ~ NICHOLAS K BURCHETT ~NATHAN BURCL GREGORY LUKE BURD  JESSICA LIZZETTE BURDACKI ~ KERSTYN GAYE VELAZQUEZ BURDEN  RONALD E BURDETTE ~WAYNE DURANT BURDETTE JR  DAVID THEODORE BURDICK
BRADLEY JAMES BURDITT JONATHAN L BURFORD DUSTIN BURG EDWARD D BURGE COLE WILLIAM BURGESS DAVID D BURGESS JR DRAYSON HUGH BURGESS GEORGE ADRIAN BURGESS JAMIE M BURGESS JUSTIN SCOTT BURGESS STEPHEN SHANE BURGESS TARON LANEAR BURGESS
TATE JONATHON BURGESS  TYLER WAYNE BURGESS JORDAN | BURGETT COLE ROBERT BURGGRAVE TOM E BURGIN FREDWIN BURGOS JOSEPH HECTOR BURGOS PEDRO A BURGOS DAVID BURILA ANDRES BURITICA BRANDEN JOE BURK ROBIN BURK DANIEL KENNETH BURKARD
KENNETH J BURKARD  ALISTAIR BURKE ANGELA E BURKE BRYAN BURKE CHRISTOPHER M BURKE CLINTON E BURKE COREY J BURKE DANNY RAY BURKE DAREN MATTHEW BURKE DEREK A BURKE ERIC C BURKE JEFFREY LELAND BURKE MATTHEW J BURKE NICOLE CLARICE BURKE
PAYTON RBURKE  RICHIE D BURKE ~ SHELLY BURKE STEPHEN RBURKE TAMMYBURKE ZANDER REED BURKE FERNANDO BURKE GIRON ~ ARTHUR LEE BURKES ~DONALD G BURKETT = SAMANTHA BURKETT ~ MATTHEW BURKEY  NICHOLAS R BURKEY LAWRENCE E BURKHALTER
MITCHELL WILLIAM BURKHALTER MICAH GABRIEL BURKHARDT DARRIN GENE BEESON BURKHART ERIN ELIZABETH BURKHART STACY R BURKHART BRIAR ALEXANDER BURKHEAD FRANKIE BURKHEAD MARY BURKHOLDER PHILIP OWEN BURKHOLDER BARNEY B BURKS IV TYLER LYNN BURKS
WARREN SHEA BURKS RYAN BURLEIGH SAMUEL JOSEPH BURLESON THOMAS BURLINGHAM KAESON SCOTT BURN QUINTEN BURNES WILLY H BURNES AUSTIN MICHAEL BURNETT DUNCAN ALAN BURNETT GRACE E BURNETT GREGORY A BURNETT JAYDAN BURNETT JONATHAN BURNETT
KEVIN NA BURNETT ~ MICHAEL F BURNETT ~ RYAN BURNETT TERRYJBURNETT TODD BURNETT TRACYM BURNETT CHRISTOPHER BERNARD BURNETTE ~ JANET DELIN BURNETTE ~ LAUREN JELLISON BURNHAM  THOMAS L BURNHAM JR  BRANDON L BURNS  CHADWICK R BURNS
CHRISTOPHER DEAN BURNS DAVID K BURNS DELIA P BURNS DUSTIN BRENTBURNS GABRIEL BURNS GREGORY GENE BURNS JACK HENRY BURNS JAMES BURNS JAMES M BURNS JEFFERY BURNS JEFFERY SCOTT BURNS JONATHON LYNNE BURNS JUDITH ELAINE BURNS KELLY R BURNS
LORIABURNS NATHANIEL BURNS NICHOLAS K BURNS SETH BURNS TRENTON LEE BURNS VICTOR E BURNS WESLEY JBURNS MAX O BURNSIDE SHAD SHAIN BURNSIDE  ASHLEY NICOLE BURR RONALD A BURR CORY R BURRAN MICHAEL L BURRAN ~ CONNIE THALIA BURRELL
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TED GRAUL JOHN J GRAVANTE JACOB SCOTT GRAVATTE MICHAEL GRAVEL RAYMOND GRAVEL DUSTIN GRAVELLE FREDERIK GRAVELLE ANDY RAY GRAVES ANTHONY KEITH GRAVES CORNELIUS D GRAVES DONOVAN L GRAVES JAMES DUSTIN GRAVES KELLAN GRAVES KIMBERLY J GRAVES
LANDEN DEAN GRAVES WARREN GRAVES JOSEPH V GRAVITT ANDREW STABLER GRAY ASHTON SHAWN GRAY BOBBY CARL GRAY CHARLES DARNELL GRAY CHRISTIAN ADAM GRAY CYNTHIA G GRAY CYNTHIAW GRAY DUSTIN MICHAEL GRAY GAYSON RODELL GRAY Il IAN ALEXANDER GRAY
JASON THOMAS GRAY JEREMY DEWAYNE GRAY JOEIN GRAY JORDAN HEATH GRAY JOSHUA ADAM GRAY JOSHUA MICHAEL GRAY KAGEN H GRAY KENTWILLIAM GRAY KERRY GRAY KEVIN GRAY KEVIN D GRAY LEVENNA D GRAY MARY KAY GRAY MICHAEL J GRAY MITCHELL THOMAS GRAY
NATHANIEL LINDELL GRAY PILIATE GRAY RACHAEL D GRAY ROCKY GRAY RYAN G GRAY SHAWN MAURICE GRAY SHELLEY GRAY SYDNEY PAIGE GRAY TIMOTHY M GRAY WILLIAM R GRAY GEORGE K GRAYSON JOHN W GRAYSON JUSTIN GRAYSON BENJAMIN THOMAS GRAZIANO WAYNE GREEGOR
KASEY ROBERT GREELEY ADAM GREEN ALEX JGREEN ANDREW WAYNE GREEN BAYLIE K GREEN BRENDAN GREEN BRIAN PATRICK GREEN CHAD M GREEN CHARLIE BRENT GREEN COLTIN DRAKE GREEN DAMIEN JAMES GREEN DANIEL R GREEN DANNY JOE GREEN DAVID GREEN
DONNIE C GREEN DREW W GREEN  ERIC LEE GREEN ERICA L GREEN ETHAN JAKE GREEN FRANCY GREEN GARYL GREEN GARYTGREEN GREGORYS GREEN HEATHER GREEN HUNTER JGREEN JACOB ALLEN GREEN JAMES LLOYD GREEN JR JAMES W GREEN JARROD S GREEN
JAZMA MONTIQUE GREEN JEFFREY C GREEN JEFFREY S GREEN JENIFER KATHERINE GREEN JENNIFER LYNNE GREEN JOANNTGREEN JOHN GREEN JOHN HENRYHENDERSON GREEN JOHN RALPH GREEN JOHNTGREEN JOHNNYE GREEN JOHNNY JGREEN JONATHAN DEWAYNE GREEN
JONATHAN HAROLD GREEN ~ JONATHAN LEE GREEN  JOSHUA GREEN  JUSTICE SHAMAAD GREEN ~KASEY GREEN KENDALL GREEN KYLE GREEN KYLE C GREEN LANS EZEKIEL GREEN LOUIS SHAWN GREEN  MADELINE ELIZABETH GREEN ~ MARIE GREEN MATTHEW CHARLES GREEN
MAURICE C GREEN MICHAEL E GREEN MITCHELL LEE GREEN NICHOLAS A GREEN PAMELA D GREEN PATRICK GREEN PETER D GREEN RANDALL D GREEN ROBERT CORDARIUS GREEN RYAN JGREEN SAMUEL THOMAS GREEN SCOTTA GREEN SCOTTG GREEN SHANE LEWIS GREEN
SHANNA E GREEN  SHILOH GREEN  SPENCER RUSSELL GREEN ~ STEPHEN GREEN ~ STEVEN RAY GREEN SUSANW GREEN THOMAS A GREEN ~ TIMOTHY ADAM GREEN  TIMOTHY DAVID GREEN JR  TODD MICHAEL GREEN TORRENCE GREEN TROYW GREEN  VICTORIA BROOKE GREEN
WILLIAM EDWARD GREEN WILLIAM SCOTT GREEN CONNOR JAMES T MICAH JON T WILLIAM J K ANGELITA GREENE CHAD A GREENE CONNOR GREENE DAVID ALLEN GREENE DOUGLAS E GREENE ERIK NEIL GREENE GARY E GREENE JACKSON COLE GREENE
JAMES WYATT GREENE ~ LORI ANN GREENE ~ MARCELLOUS THEODORE GREENE ~ MICHAEL DANIEL GREENE ~ MICHAEL TYLER GREENE ~ RANDALL B GREENE ~RODNEY GREENE RODNEY L GREENE  STEVEN A GREENE ~ TIMOTHY B GREENE  TRAVIS GREENE ~WADE ANTHONY GREENE
CHARLES LOGAN GREENFIELD ~ RYAN SCOTT GREENFIELD ~ STANLEY GREENHAM  LISA GREENIER ~ KEVIN GREENSTREET ~EDWARD M GREENWALD ~ KRISTOPHER MICHAEL GREENWAY ~ DAVID W GREER  EDWARD W GREER ~ GRATH CHARLES GREER ~ JACOB LEE GREER ~ JAY J GREER
JOSEPH PRESTON GREER  KIP CHARLES GREER  KOLBIE L GREER  KOLYN DEAN GREER MACI GREER MARCIE J GREER MATTHEW GREER NATHANIEL WAYNE GREER ROBERT JAKE GREER ROBERT LEE GREER STEPHEN G GREER EDWARD WAYNE GREER  JIMMY DARRELL GREEVER
WILLIAM J GREEVER DELBERTLEROY GREGG JR DEREK R GREGG DESHAUN GREGG JARROD O GREGG JOSEPH M GREGG OWEN JOSEPH GREGG TRAVIS MICHAEL GREGG HOUSTON PAUL GREGGS MARION LANE GREGGS SHAUN MICHAEL GREGORICH ANTONIO GREGORIO DANIEL GREGORIOU
ADGER LEROY GREGORY JR  AUSTIN WAYNE GREGORY  BRENDON W GREGORY  CASEY SCOTT GREGORY  DANIEL JOHN GREGORY  HAROLD W GREGORY  JEFFREY MICHAEL GREGORY ~ JONATHAN P GREGORY ~ MATTHEW W GREGORY  MELINDA RAE GREGORY ~ NORMAN GREGORY
ASTHON LEWIS GREGORY CALDERON GAVIN DALE GREICO DUSTIN R GREIWE KAYTLIN C GREIWE JASON GRENIER EDWARD ALAN GRESCH EMILY LYNN GRESENS JOSHUA E GRESHAM LANCE TAYLOR GRESHAM MARIA KRISTINE GRESSLER SCOTT FRANCIS GREVE GABRIEL GREY NATALIE GREY
ALEXANDER ROSS GRIBBLE  BRIAN ALLEN GRICE CHASE GRICE DAVID RGRICE JAMES GRICE MICHELLE R GRICE ODELL BEACH GRICE RONALD GRICE JORDON X GRIEGO GARRETT GRIEMAN BRANDON BJORN GRIER  ERNEST LEROY GRIER  KRISTIN GRIER  DAVID JOHN GRIESER
ALEX S GRIFFIN ALSTON ISAIAH GRIFFIN BRAD DAVID GRIFFIN BRANDON N GRIFFIN BRIAN J GRIFFIN CAITLYNN PAIGE GRIFFIN CLIVE BRYANT GRIFFIN COLTIN RILEY GRIFFIN DANIEL T GRIFFIN DAVID A GRIFFIN DERRICK AUSTIN GRIFFIN GLENWOOD M GRIFFIN  HANNAH NICOLE GRIFFIN
JARED DEREK GRIFFIN JOHN SPROTT GRIFFIN JONATHAN TAYLOR GRIFFIN JONATHON GRIFFIN KATELYN PALMER GRIFFIN KEITHRICK DUANE GRIFFIN KURSHAUNRICK DONTE GRIFFIN MATTHEW ASHLEY GRIFFIN MICHAEL W GRIFFIN RUSSELL D GRIFFIN RYAN J GRIFFIN RYAN MATTHEW GRIFFIN
TIMOTHY P GRIFFIN TODD HARMON GRIFFIN TRACY N GRIFFIN TREVOR ALAN GRIFFIN DONALD GRIFFIS CASEY ALEC GRIFFITH CODY AUSTIN GRIFFITH DAWN MARIE GRIFFITH ERIK GRIFFITH JOHN J GRIFFITH JOHN STEPHEN GRIFFITH JR JUSTIN E GRIFFITH KACEY L GRIFFITH KACY L GRIFFITH
KEVIN GRIFFITH  MICHAEL LADARION GRIFFITH MICHAEL W GRIFFITH JR  ROBBIE DONNALL GRIFFITH  SHANE MICHAEL GRIFFITH =~ SHIRLEY-ANN GRIFFITH-MAYERS  JAYDA G GRIFFITHS TYLER LOGAN GRIFFITHS GRAHAM GRIGELIS CHRISTOPHER E GRIGG  CALVIS ROMONE GRIGGLEY
ALAN S GRIGGS CHRISTOPHER S GRIGGS GARY GRIGGS Il JESSIE L GRIGGS JOHNNY C GRIGGS JOSEPH DYLAN GRIGGS KENAN RASHAUN GRIGGS NICHOLAS WILLIAM GRIGGS SAVANNAH GRIGGS SHANNON K GRIGGS WILLIAM S GRIGGS ALEXANDER GRIGOROV JOSHUA ALFONSO GRIJALVA
PEDRO P GRIJALVA CASTRO CHARLES GRIM  JUAN S GRIMALDO MARTINEZ CHARLES A GRIMES DAVID C GRIMES JR  JACKSON CADE GRIMES  JAMES JOHN GRIMES Il JAMYR JORDAN GRIMES ~ JASON D GRIMES  JILLIAN GRIMES ANDREW WINFIELD GRIMM  JACOB NATHANIEL GRIMM
JOSHUA GRIMM  JAMES PORTERFIELD GRIMSLEY MATTHEW CHASE GRIMSLEY ROY E GRINFIN HENIA NATALIE GRINGARTEN CHAD MICHAEL GRISHAM MELISSA ALLYSON GRISHAM  PHILLIP KOREY GRISHAM CARL W GRISSETT MICHAEL ANTHONY GRISSETT HEATHER RENEE GRISSOM
TIMOTHY GRISSOM  TYLER RAY GRISSOM  JASON P GRIZZARD CLYDET GRIZZELL MICHAEL PATRICK GROBE CHARLES E GROCE ADAM GRODHAUS MATTHEW CHARLES GRODI DANIEL J GROFF LAURA ANNE GROFF BRYAN DOUGLAS GROGG MICHAEL AARON GROLL THOMAS J GROLL
GREGORY P GROMEK SHAWN C GRONDIN MARK GROOM CHAD W GROOMS HAROLD GROOMS JR KYLE GROOTJANS PHIL D GROOVER BRIANA E GROSCHE ROY ELSON GROSE BRADLEY GROSHONG PAMELA SUSAN GROSS TINA L GROSS MARGARET CLAIRE GROSSHUESCH ERIC F GROSSMANN
ADAM M GROTE CONNOR MARTIN GROTENHUIS JAMES E GROTH LONNIE L GROTHE CHERI A GROTHOFF DALTON CARY GROUND AMANDA JEAN GROVER NATHAN ALAN GROVER ANDREW B GROVES CHRISTIAN GROVES IAN ROBERT GROVES NICHOLAS A GROVES TRISTAN GROVES
ALLISON NICOLE GRUBBS ~ DARRELL M GRUBBS ~ MARKUS GRUBE ~ JOSHUA GRUBER  THOMAS MICHAEL GRUDZINSKI ~ DYLAN ANDREW GRUENINGER ~ COREY GRUHL LOGANRGRUNIG ~ MATTHEW L GRUNKE  STEPHEN RYAN GRUSSING =~ THOMAS GRUZESKI ~ MEREDITH GRZINCIC
JUAN GUADARRAMA MALDONADO MANUEL GUADIANA MANUEL GUADIANA-MEDINA YAHAIRA ALEJANDRA GUAJARDO HECTOR R GUARDADO LOKESH GUBENTHIRAN TIMOTHY JOSEPH GUBITZ JOSE ALEJANDRO GUDINO ACEVEDO KYLE S GUEL JASON GUENETTE NICOLE ELIZABETH GUENTHER
CHRISTOPHER S GUERECA  CHRISTIAN GUERRA  ANTONIO GUERRA BAUTISTA  FRANCISCO GUERRA BAUTISTA ~ JORGE G GUERRA LOPEZ ~ ANTONIO GUERRERO  ARIEL VELASCO GUERRERO ~ CESAR EMMANUEL GUERRERO ~ CHRISTIAN MANUEL GUERRERO  DANIEL NA GUERRERO
DANIELLE ERICA RENEE GUERRERO EZEQEIL M GUERRERO FLAVIO DANIEL GUERRERO JESUS R GUERRERO MARIO GUERRERO MIGUEL GUERRERO RICARDO J GUERRERO ROBERT BOBBY GUERRERO SERGIO FABIAN GUERRERO CLAUDIA GONZALEZ GUERRERO JORGE CABRERA GUERRERO
ANA GUADALUPE GUERRERO CHAVEZ CRISTIAN GUERRERO HERNANDEZ EVA J GUERRERO ROQUE ALEXANDER JOSEPH GUESNIER SHELBY NOLAN GUESS AARON MICHAEL GUEST TORI GUETZKE DENIS AMILCAR GUEVARA LORENA GUEVARA VICTOR GUEVARA ALEXANDER GUEVARA LOPEZ
JULIO GUEVARA MORALES ZACHARY RYAN GUFFIE DYLAN PIERRE GUIDA FRANCISCO GUIDO JR BRET GUIDRY BRYCE GUIDRY CHRISTOPHER DAVID GUIDRY ALFREDO GUIJOSA JAZZ D GUILD MARIO ALBERTO GUILLERMO REYES DANIEL N GUILLIAM RON R GUILLIAM JUSTIN GUILTNER
RAMON LAZARO GUIMIL VEGA JEREMY K GUIN M RAYMOND GUINA LARRY D GUINN ROBERT GUINN MARTHIN PILA GUINTO AARON LAMONT GUINYARD BASSEM GUIRGUIS ZACHARY ANDREW GUISE KRISTEN M GUISTI SOMESHWAR GULABSINGH NAGPURE ERIKA GULACSI ERNIE GULACSI
ROBERT GULLEDGE  TIMOTHY MICHAEL GULLETT JOHN A GULLEY KALEB MATTHEW GULLEY GINGER LEA GULLICK KARL E GULLION WAYNE GULLION HEATH LOGAN GUMB STEVENTGUMBEL AYMAR GUMBS RONALD D GUMM  CHRISTI GUMMALAUSKI  VIJAYARAJ GUNASEELAN
SURESHRAJA GUNASEKARAN WILLIAM L GUNDER RONALD E GUNDERMAN BRIANNA W GUNDERSON AUSTIN GUNN CHRISTOPHER M GUNN KENDAL CHEYENNE GUNN KENNETH GUNN ETHAN SCOTT GUNNELL BRIAN DAVID GUNNELLS BRIAN SCOTT GUNNELS EMALIE GUNNESS-MARAJ
LASHAWN GUNSBY ANDREW JAMES GUNTER KARLA GUNTHER KELLI GUNVILLE SHWETA GUPTA TARUSHIGUPTA VISHAKHA GUPTA JEREMIAH GURDEN CHAD RYAN GURGANUS AARON P GURLEY HOLDEN GAGE GURLEY JEREMY FGURLEY LARRISHIA JANAE GURLEY RONALD A GURLEY




STEWART B GURLEY TAMMY LYNN GURNEY BRYAN GURR KALA GURUSAMY GURUMURUGAN G GURUSAMYS JAMUNA GURUVAIAH KAREN L GUTHEIL RICK JOSEPH GUTHIER ANTHONY C GUTHRIE BRITTNEY KAITLYN GUTHRIE MARK A GUTHRIE RYAN J GUTHRIE TAWSHA GUTHRIE
TYLER GUTHRIE ANGEL JAVIER GUTIERREZ CARLOS C GUTIERREZ EFRAIN GUTIERREZ JOSE C GUTIERREZ JUAN M GUTIERREZ JULIAN ANGEL GUTIERREZ PEDRO GUTIERREZ ROBERT JOHN GUTIERREZ STEVEN GUTIERREZ DIEGO OCHOA GUTIERREZ DIEGO OSVALDO MENDEZ GUTIERREZ
JORGE LUIS VENTURA GUTIERREZ ~ JUAN ANTONIO LUNA GUTIERREZ ~ ROBERTO IVAN GONZALEZ GUTIERREZ ~ SERGIO ADRIAN LUNA GUTIERREZ ~ VICTOR DAVID RAMIREZ GUTIERREZ ~ JOSE JOAQUIN GUTIERREZ DAMIAN  REGULO GUTIERREZ DAMIAN HECTOR GUTIERREZ DE ARCOS
CESAR ALFONSO GUTIERREZ GUZMAN JOSE DE JESUS GUTIERREZ LUNA GUILLERMO GUTIERREZ ROSAS JOSE RAUL GUTIERREZ SALAZAR MIGUEL ANGEL GUTIERREZ SALAZAR TRACY M GUTMAN SANDRA GUTOWSKI WILLIAM R GUTZMANN DANIEL GUY RONALD GUY TRACY M GUYETTE
AMANDA L GUYRE AUSTIN DANIEL GUYSE CLINTON JGUYTON KEITH GUYTON KEITHH GUYTON JR BERNARD P GUZEWICZ JR SHAWN MICHAEL GUZEWICZ CESAR GUZMAN ELIAS M GUZMAN ELISEO D GUZMAN LUIS E GUZMAN MELANIO GUZMAN JOSE ADRIAN JIMENEZ GUZMAN
FERNANDO GUZMAN ALMONTE VICTOR GUZMAN ANGUIANO JOHAN SEBASTIAN GUZMAN CRUZ JOSE INES GUZMAN DIAZ JOSE LUIS GUZMAN DIAZ ANETH ITZEL GUZMAN MARTINEZ OMAR GUZMAN TELLEZ CRISTOBAL GUZMAN-MARTINEZ VY BROOKE GWIN VINCENT ALEXANDER GWYNN
MATTHEW JAMES GYARMATI  QUINN-TINHHA  KEITH A HAAKER BRIAN K HAANPAA WADE OBRIAN HAANPAA AMANDA K HAAS  DAWN MICHELLE HAASE  JOSEPH RAY HAASE  MATTHEW D HAASE JAMES W HABLAWETZ JR THOMAS HACH DARCY HACHE BRYSON JOSEPH HACKER
DREW MICHAEL HACKETT JUSTIN A HACKETT MICHAEL GARY HACKETT RONALD D HADAWAY GREGORY WAYNE HADBERG LYALL HADDEN BROCK ALAN HADDOCK DYLAN RANDAL HADDOCK HAYDEN B HADDOCK JAMES BLAKE HADDOCK ROLANDO HADDOCK-RODRIGUEZ CHELSEY HADDON
ERIC D HADDOX JOSHUA BLAINE HADDOX PRESTON JOSEPH RILEY HADEN WISAM M HADI TAYLOR DAVID HADLEY JESSE L HAENITSCH ROBERTL HAFER DIANE J HAFF JOHN D HAGAMAN BROCK ALEXANDER HAGAN ROBERT ETHAN HAGEMAN RYAN L HAGEMAN MICHAEL W HAGEMEIER
BRYCE N HAGER CODY LEVIHAGER CODY MICHAEL HAGER DENNIS M HAGER LOGAN C HAGER RICHARD A HAGER ~WILLIAM KENNETH HAGEWOOD  DAVID RYAN HAGGERTY LISA HAGGERTY JONATHAN LEE HAGOOD LANE C HAGOOD TIMOTHY AUSTIN HAGOOD  EMIL A HAGOPIAN
JOHN ARA HAGOPIAN TYLER HAILE KEVIN L HAILEY UNKNOWN HAILEY CHRISTOPHER R HAINLINE SCOTTHAIPEK JARED RAY HAIR DOUGLAS W HAIRE RICHARD EARL HAIRE Il JEFFERY K HAIRRELL MOHAMED HAJI RAGAB CYRUS HAKIMI MICHAEL HALCRO AUSTIN L HALE BRETT HALE
CAMERON THOMAS HALE CODY NICHOLAUS HALE JAMES DAVID HALE JASON DERIC HALE JEFFREY AHALE JOHN LUKE HALE JOHN LYMAN HALE KEITH HALE KYLERHALE STEVEN LEE HALEJR VELVETLAJEAN HALE VINCENTEWING HALE JAMES KENNARD HALES JOHN DAVID HALES
WILLIAM MCKINLEY HALEY MICAH BENJAMIN HALFACRE ALYSSA B HALL BLAKE NOBBE HALL BRADLEY ALLEN HALL BRYAN JHALL BRYCE DAVID HALL CHARLES SPENCER HALL CHASE G HALL CHRISTIAN SHAY HALL CHRISTOPHER G HALL COOPER SHANE HALL COTY NATHANIEL HALL
CURTIS MITCHELL HALL DALE HALL DANNY S HALLJR DAVID WHALL DEAKON HUNTER HALL DENNISW HALL DEREK ALLEN HALL DERRICK RYAN HALL DEVON ROBERTHALL DYLAN ROBERTHALL EMILY REBECCA HALL ERIK ALAN HALL EVALYNN HALL GRACE MARIE HALL HEATH HALL
HUNTER RHALL ISAAC HALL JACOB PRESTON HALL JACOB SAMUEL HALL JAMES THOMAS HALL JAMES W HALL JEREMIAH W HALL JESSE HALL JOHN HALL JONATHAN KYLE HALL JOSHUAH DEAN HALL JUSTINTYLER HALL KENDALL HALL KIM CHALL KRISTIHALL KYLE XAVIER HALL
LEE CURTIS HALL LISA MARIE HALL MATTHEW J HALL MAURICIO ABRAHAM HALL MICHAEL W HALL NAVADA ALVARANTE HALL SR NICHOLAS HALL NOAH ALAN HALL NOAH G HALL OWEN M HALL OWEN STEPHEN MITCHELL HALL PAUL HALL PHILLIP HUNTER HALL REGINALD HALL
RICKY HALL ROBERT HALL ROBERTLEE HALL SCOTTHALL SEAN HALL SHAUNDA L HALL SKYLER CHRISTIAN HALL STEVE ALLEN HALL STEVEN LUCAS LEE HALL SUMMER GRACE HALL THOMAS HALL JR TONY C HALL WILLIAM L HALL Il AMBER NICHOLE HALLER DAVID MAXIMUS HALLETT
SAMUEL ROLLYN HALLFORTH CLAYTON M HALLIBURTON COREY S HALLIBURTON AARON BARNEY HALLING CHAD LAMONT HALLMAN JARRED ARAMIS HALLMAN KADEN THOMAS HALLMAN MICHAEL HALLMAN MATTHEW SCOTT HALLMARK NATHAN AARON HALLMARK LINDA HALLOWELL
TYLER LEE HALLUM NEIL W HALPIN KYLE JHALSEY TREVOR ALLEN HALSEY CLARK BAKER HALSTEAD WILLIAM CODY HALSTEAD LINDSEY MICHELLE HALSTED DON L HALTINER TOBY ISSAC HALTINER GAVIN NEAL HALTOM JASON H HALTOM ALDEN JAMES HALVERSON ANTHONY B HAM
KEVIN HAM  FATIMA HAMADE DOUGLAS HAMBERGER JOSEPH C HAMBERLIN PHILLIP W HAMBERLIN AMANDA MARIE HAMBLIN DAVID C HAMBLIN JORDAN D HAMBLIN NICHOLAS HAMBLIN NICHOLAS GAYLE HAMBLIN PHARRYN L HAMBRECHT PHILLIP J HAMBRECHT DUSTIN J HAMBY
GARY BLAKE HAMBY ~ RASHA HAMDALLAH  CHRIS HAMEL BRENTHAMER DUSTIN K HAMES  JOHN C HAMES ~MICHAEL EARNESTHAMES ~ CHRISTINA ROSE HAMIEL ~ AVERY HAMILL  AARON LAMAR HAMILTON ~ ANDREW M HAMILTON ~ BARRY ALAN HAMILTON ~ BEVERLY S HAMILTON
BRANDON J HAMILTON BRAYDEN GRANGER HAMILTON CAMERON HAMILTON CASEY S HAMILTON CHARLES HAMILTON COLBY HAMILTON DEXTER MANUEL HAMILTON DILLAN HAMILTON DONAVON A HAMILTON GREGORY D HAMILTON JEFFERY L HAMILTON JENNIFER MCELYEA HAMILTON
JOEL HAMILTON JOSEPH E HAMILTON JOSHUA RAY HAMILTON MARK JASON HAMILTON MICHAEL C HAMILTON REBECCA WALLACE HAMILTON SCOTT F HAMILTON SEAN C HAMILTON TOM A HAMILTON TYLER HAMILTON TYLER WADE HAMILTON VINCENT P HAMILTON WILL HAMILTON
WILLIAM KURT HAMILTON  HARLEY SCOTT HAMLETT MARK ANTHONY HAMLETT = MICHAEL L HAMLETT WILLIAM CHASE HAMLIN  ALAN KEITH HAMM  COREY DAVID HAMM  DORIAN KRISTIAN HAMM  ELI BRODY HAMM  ERIC C HAMM  JAMES HAMM  JOHNATHAN D HAMM  JOSHUA HAMM
KAYLA RACHELL HAMM ~ MICKEY L HAMM  PHILLIP LEEHAMM  ROBERTLYLE HAMM  CHRISTOPHER DREW HAMMACK ~ JAMESON CORDELL HAMMACK  LEVI BRYAR HAMMACK ~ ZACHARY HAYDEN HAMMACK ~ AUSTIN JHAMMAN ~ CYNTHIA JHAMMAN  JORDYN NETHNEL HAMMAN
JAMES RUSSELL HAMMELL ~ AUSTIN MICHAEL HAMMER  ISAAC S HAMMER  KACEY ELIZABETH HAMMERBERG ~ AUSTIN J HAMMON ~ BOBBY RAY HAMMOND  CORY A HAMMOND  JOSHUA STEPHEN HAMMOND  LANCE C HAMMOND ~ MATTHEW Q HAMMOND ~ MICHAEL PAUL HAMMOND
NICHOLAS W HAMMOND SEAN HAMMOND THOMAS L HAMMOND JR WALTER LEWIS HAMMOND JR ANTHONY RAY HAMMONDS COREY JUSTIN HAMMONDS EDGAR JUSTIN SHANE HAMMONDS JESSIE CHANAN HAMMONDS KENNETH D HAMMONDS RICHARD LEE HAMMONDS RYAN M HAMP
QUENTIN R HAMPSHIRE  BILLY JOE HAMPTON BRENT A HAMPTON DANA O HAMPTON JAMES ADAM HAMPTON  JASON HAMPTON  JASON EDWARD HAMPTON ~ KRISTEN HAMPTON MATTHEW SCOTT HAMPTON REDONDRIC ONEAL HAMPTON  RYAN B HAMRE  LAUREN SIERRA HAMRICK
MIN KYU HAN JENNIFER HANAKEE CHARLES RILEY HANBACK HANNAH YANG HANBACK CARLENE HANCOCK CHARLES SHAWN HANCOCK COREY RAY HANCOCK DOMINIQUE JAWUAN HANCOCK JAMES THOMAS HANCOCK JOHN CODY HANCOCK MICHAEL THANCOCK RANDALL A HANCOCK
SHAWN THANCOCK STEVEN E HAND DANIEL | HANDLER DALTON DEWAYNE HANDLEY PAUL E HANDLEY PAULA N HANDLEY RICKY SHANE HANDLEY ROGER E HANDLEY ROGER JARED HANDLEY WALKER LANE HANDS JUSTIN WILLIAM HANDSEL PHYLLIS MORRIS HANDWERG KENT RYAN HANEY
MADISON NICOLE HANEY RYAN PAUL HANEY VICTOR W HANEY RYAN M HANK TONY M HANKERSON SCOTT HANKEY ANTHONY HANKINS DARYL G HANKINS JOHN D HANKINS JOSHUA DEWAYNE HANKINS RYAN SCOTT HANKINS STEVEN W HANKINS WILLIAM L HANKINS AUSTIN L HANKINSON
BRADY COOK HANKS JAMES P HANLEY JASON K HANLEY JASONVHANLEYJR MARY C HANLEY BRANDINICHOLE HANLIN ROBERTW HANLIN ALLISON R HANNA BENJAMINTHANNA DARREN L HANNA JUSTIN LYNN HANNA JUWAN FERNANDO HANNA KELVIN A HANNA KYLE THANNA
MARK A HANNA HOWARD D HANNAH NOAH C HANNERS ~ KELSEY BRETT HANNIGAN JAMIE T HANNIS BRIAN HANRAHAN SEAN PATRICK HANRAHAN  LISA MARIE HANSELL SEAN HANSELL CHERYL L HANSEN CHRISTIAN N HANSEN DAMIEN HANSEN DAVID J HANSEN ERIC E HANSEN
GREG L HANSEN JACOB DOUGLAS HANSEN  JAEGAR STEVEN HANSEN JESSE G HANSEN JOHN A HANSEN JOSEPH K HANSEN KEVYNN HANSEN  KIRBY JOHN HANSEN MATTHEW J HANSEN NICHOLAS C HANSEN PAUL W HANSEN  RILEY C HANSEN RUSSELL HANSEN SCOTT R HANSEN
SKYLAR BRETT HANSEN  STETSON RON HANSEN  SUSAN H HANSEN  TED HANSEN TODD L HANSEN WESLEY HANSEN  JOSHUA BRYAN HANSER CALEB HANSON CHADLEY E HANSON DOYLE MILES HANSON  JASON L HANSON  JONATHAN HANSON MARKTHANSON MICHAEL HANSON
MILES HANSON NATANIEL SHAPIR HANSON TRAVIS J HANSON JACOB DEAN HANTHORNE CAL DANIEL HARBACK KEITH HARBINSON TIMOTHY HARBISON NATHAN HARCROW JOHN G HARDEE DEVIN TYLER HARDEN DYLAN KODY MAX HARDEN GAUGE ANTHONY HARDEN JOHN W HARDEN
RICKY C HARDEN RAMESH HARDEO WILLIAM J HARDER DANIEL R HARDIE ERIC M HARDIE LISA D HARDIMAN CODY HARDIN DAVID ANDREW HARDIN DONALD E HARDIN HEATH HARDIN HUBERT ANTHONY HARDIN JOSHUA A HARDIN STEPHANIE NICHOLE HARDIN  STEVEN HARDIN
AARON G HARDING CHRISTOPHER F HARDING JACK S HARDING JR KARLA S HARDING RICHARD HARDING ROBERT A HARDING RYAN HARDING WILLIAM R HARDING WILLIAM R HARDING JR ADAM S HARDISTY LOGAN THOMAS HARDMAN MARK HARDMAN  FRANK LAMAR HARDRICK
BRIAN THOMAS HARDWICK CARSON MICHAEL HARDY CHRISTOPHER HARDY JAMES MARCUS HARDY JONILE HARDY KURT D HARDY LINDSAY KATELYN CAMP HARDY SKYLER EARL HARDY WALKER LOUIS HARDY DONALD HARE VAIBHAV HAREKAR JUSTIN W HARGIS BRANDON S HARGRAVE
CEDRIC HARGROVE WALLACE LEE HARGROVE ANDREW TYLER HARIKE NIKHIL HARISHCHANDRA MHATRE ANN MARIE ISAACSON HARKINS BRUCE FLETCHER HARKINS CODY JAMES HARKINS ROBERT M HARKINS WILLIAM HUNTER HARKINS HOWARD J HARKNESS JENNIFER J HARKNESS
MICHAEL D HARKNESS ~ PETER HARKNESS OLIVIA LIZABETH HARL  JASON MICHAEL HARLAN  BRIAN K HARLESS ROBERTTHARLESTON JEANNE MARLENE HARLEY CAMERAN M HARLIN JASON N HARLIN  DAVID C HARLLEE ERNESTM HARLOW BRIAN A HARMES DUSTIN A HARMES
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SAMANTHA LYNN HILBURN KENNETH JAMES HILCHEY SHANE HILDEBRAND BRENTL HILDEN CHAD HILDRETH BRADLEY JHILFIKER BART A HILGE BURKE ALAN HILGE PAULTHILGENBERG LEANN F HILGERT TYLER L HILGERT FOTIOS HILIAS KEVIN HILKER ALEX MICHAEL HILL ALEXIS HILL
AMBER NICHOLE HILL ANTHONY BLAKE HILL BRAD HILL BRANDON JUSTON HILL BRIAN JAMES HILL BRIAN MATTHEW HILL CAMERON DREW HILL CASEY ALLEN HILL CHARLES SILAS HILL Il CHASE J HILL CHET MATTHEW HILL CHRISTINA HILL CHRISTOPHER K HILL CLAYTON TAYLOR HILL
COLT ALEXANDER HILL  DALE LHILL DERRICK ELLIEHILL DESMOND AVANTA HILL DEVON HILL DONALD HILL DONALD JOSEPH HILL DUANEHILLJR DYLANWHILL EMILY DANIELLE HILL FRANKWHILL GREG L HILL HENRY CORALL HILL HUNTERLYNNHILL JACK ALEXANDER HILL
JAMES LAWRENCE HILL JAMES M HILL JAXON CHILL JEREMYKHILL JIMLHILL JOHNCHILL JOHN MATTHEW HILL JOSHUAHILL JOSHUAERTISHILL KEITHWHILL LISAWHILL MACKIEJEEMPHILL MARCO JEMEL HILL MATTHEW HILL MATTHEW AARON HILL MATTHEW LEE HILL
MCKENZIE LEIGH HILL MICHAEL ANDREW HILL MORGAN DANIELLE HILL NATHAN L HILL NICHOLAS R HILL NORMAN TYRONE HILL PHILLIP ROGER HILL ROGER L HILL ROSE VICTORIA HILL RUSTY JHILL RYAN HILL SCOTTW HILL SETHHILL SHAWN D HILL TAMARCUS DEVONN HILL TIM HILL
TIMOTHY WILLIAM HILL TODD R HILL TRACE WILSON HILL TYLER JHILL TYLER LEE HILL ZACHARY HILL ZACHARY RYAN HILL AUSTIN D HILLE LOGAN MATTHEW HILLEBRENNER NICHOLAS GENE HILLER MITCHELL B HILLEY SHARON K HILLEY BARRY HILLGARTNER CHRISTOPHER DYLAN HILLIARD
COLTON BRICE HILLIARD MARSHALL TERRY HILLIARD SONYA MICHELLE HILLIARD TERRY E HILLIARD GABRIELLE NICOLE HILLIKER JOHN JOSEPH HILLMAN BRIAN J HILLS DYRON ELLIOTT HILLS GARY HILLS JOSHUA HILLS KIRK ALEXANDER HILLS RAGENA GAIL HILSABECK GEORGE W HILTON IIl
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JOHN O HINES JOSHUA DAVID HINES LANGSTON P HINES Il MORGAN GRACE HINES TAVARIS HELMUT HINES COREY LYNN HINKLIN MAYRA FERNANDA HINOJOSA VICTOR JAVIER HINOJOSA ANDREW A HINOSTROZA DANIEL HUGO HINOSTROZA TOBY DEAN HINSHAW ISAAK ANDREW HINSON
KENNETH HINSON CHRISTOPHER P HINTERSCHER KALEB D HINTON PATRICK LEE HINTON RONALD J HINTON TONY NA HINTON




